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Corporate Profile
o 3 M1y

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (the “Group”;
SEHK stock code: 1929) listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong in December 2011.
The Group's vision is to become the most trusted
jewellery group in the world.

Founded in 1929, the Group's iconic brand
“CHOW TAI FOOK" is widely recognised for its
trustworthiness and authenticity, and is renowned for its
product design, quality and value. A long-standing
commitment to innovation and craftsmanship has
contributed to the Group's success, along with that of its
iconic retail brand, and has been embodied in its rich
90 year heritage. Underpinning this success are our long
held core values of “Sincerity ® Eternity”

The Group’s multi-brand strategy comprises the
ARTRIUM, JEWELRIA and CTF WATCH brands that are
endorsed by the CHOW TAI FOOK master brand, in
addition to other brands including HEARTS ON FIRE,
T MARK, SOINLOVE and MONOLOGUE.

The Group’'s commitment to sustainable growth is
anchored in its “Smart+" strategy, which is in place to
promote long term innovation in the business, in people
and in culture. Another asset underpinning sustainable
growth is a sophisticated and agile business model. This
supports the Group by fostering excellence and
extending opportunities along the entire value chain to
communities and industry partners across the world.

With an extensive retail network in Greater China,Japan, Korea,
Southeast Asia and the United States, and a fast-growing
e-commerce business, the Group is implementing effective
online-to-offline (“020") strategies to succeed in today’s
omni-channel retail environment.
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. 2018
O u r M I le Sto n eS 20 1 6 Collaborated with GIA to bring digital diamond

grading reports to consumers via blockchain

ﬁ 1Fa H’\J E E ﬁﬁ 20 14 Pioneered the T MARK HGIABFAERBEREMHEBERE

diamond brand with truly YHAOETESR
Opened the Group's 2,000t POS traceable natural diamonds
20 1 O in Wuhan, Mainland China and BAIFE PR AEA R
acquired the U.S. premium BT MARK #E4 dh i2 5
Op_ened the. 1'00..(.)m Mainiand diamond brand HEARTS ON FIRE
China POS in Beijing and 93807 3 ok L P 2 S
purchased the 507-carat £2000ETEY - A UHLE
Cullinan Heritage rough =5 B 2 HEARTS ON FIRE
diamond for US$35.3 million —
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CHOW TAI FOOK

1956 JEWELLERY

POS in Beijing,

Launched 999.9 gold Mainland China &-4" .t;.&&*

jewellery products. RS0} HEARTS ON FIRE' ] 4

The 999.9 fineness of AL E R

pure gold was adopted BAAGBHUEZTEDY
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1 929 by the Hong Kong 20 1 9

government in 1984 L& Celebrating 90" Anniversary under
Established in Guangzhou, H999.9F & H T - the theme “Heritage ® Innovation
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Unveiled “A Heritage in Bloom’
the Cullinan masterpiece which is
centred upon 24 D-colour internally
flawless (DIF) diamonds cut from

the Cullinan Heritage, an exceptionally

2011

Listed on the Main Board

rare 507 carat Type lIA rough diamond
Chow Tai Fook spent three years

2003 of the Stock Exchange of cutting and polishing
. ‘ Hong Kong and opened it [ BRI | REAE
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Believing that inclusion and sharing are essential
to social progress
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8 ‘ Chairman’s Statement
FRBES

Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

¢ This year marks a significant moment for the
Group, a time in history which we are proud
to have reached. Drawing on our passion for
“Sincerity ® Eternity”, Chow Tai Fook shaped
the course of history with amazing
innovations along the way.

SERAREFENEERSUNERE - AXE
REE [EHH o k18] REMEERE 15X
LELLAIE » ZEEATEFERS o 99

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry B3R &lif8i +
Chairman EJ&




Dear Shareholders,

2019 marks our 90" Anniversary. | feel immensely grateful that
Chow Tai Fook has straddled nine decades with a tremendous
success and strong heritage. Adhering to our core values
of “Sincerity ® Eternity” and staying focused in our core strengths,
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group has thrived and become a world-
renowned jewellery enterprise.

Performance Review

| am pleased to present FY2019 annual results of the Group.
FY2019 was a year of inflexion. The Group enjoyed a smooth
sailing in THFY2019, while it was overcast with macro uncertainties
in 2HFY2019. Yet, the Group's underlying competence remained
strong and the Group managed to drive growth in FY2019 against
the backdrop of the headwinds. Our “Smart+ 2020" three-year
strategic plan had a strong start since FY2018 also helped
contributing to the revival of the operations in FY2019.

During FY2019, the Group’s revenue rose by 12.7% year-on-year
to HK$66,661 million. Core operating profit surged 24.4%. Profit
attributable to shareholders of the Company grew by 11.8% to
HK$4,577 million, while earnings per share was HK$0.46.

The Board has proposed a final dividend and a special dividend of
HK$0.20 and HK$0.30 per share, respectively. The payout ratio,
excluding special dividend, approximates 76.5% in FY2019.

Chairman’s Statement
FERES

FHRE -
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Chairman’s Statement
e

Outlook

As we traverse THFY2020, we expect that the US-China trade
tensions would continue to be volatile while the global economic
growth remains soft. While noting the mixed signs of progress
in the latest stage of the trade talks, | am indeed pleased to see
some signs of recovery of consumer sentiment in Mainland China
over recent months which boosted our growth there.

The Group will adhere to its thorough planning of gaining a foothold
in Mainland China, especially in lower tier and county level cities to
fully capture the rising purchasing power of consumers. In addition,
our biggest market Greater China is seeing healthy economic
trends with the fruits of decades of urbanisation turning into rising
middle class consumption. Being the world’s key economic
powerhouse, the Chinese government will continuously roll out
multiple stimulus measures to bolster its domestic consumption
and tackle current macro-economic challenges. Indeed, measures
such as tax cuts and reduction on value-added tax should mitigate
short-term negative impact and boost local consumption. The
Group has been strategically establishing the presence in the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area for decades, with
strong POS network, artistic incubation space and advanced
infrastructure projects. The increased connectivity and integration
within the region will give more room for economic development,
foster the flow of people and goods and promote regional
cooperation and interactions. At all events, we remain optimistic
and confident about the long-term prospects of the jewellery market.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEIARHKESEBAERA A

REE

A A2020 AT FEF RMESREE HME
MEERs % BREAERASHERN - BAE
SHUFMRBES - AARARIPE A YER
SR AMBERTS - BSBRMNEHEEE -

AEESEEMBETEAMRE RS CHETE
BRERBBTMGERNE TOEEEHHEEEE
NETHRR IR EH o thoh - R EERBIZRAN
G BREEREDRR  RECEREEHTFN
BEC RN ERTEBEN UMK - FEER
EREETEERDNRR  PEBRAESEEHRET
ZHEMNEBEREER RHAATHE  BYEAHN
LERENE - FEH L HARAM N ABERSTE
i EZEBFEREPINEER  REEHHEE - A
SEREERANEBEMSEE2HRTF FCETEE
BE - LERATEHBE BNEEEHMNEER
BIER - BEEAXMAFBENRERA - TEE
REEBEHRZER  FHAR - DRER - REEANA
FEEE - RBREEMNFRET - RMAYKRETISH
RIBATRRIGLE -



A Time to Sow and a Time to Reap

This year marks a significant moment for the Group, a time in
history which we are proud to have reached. Drawing on our
“Sincerity ® Eternity”, Chow Tai Fook shaped the
course of history with amazing innovations along the way.
Committed to nurturing high-calibre staff, the Group in turn
achieves continuous development and sets benchmarks to shape

passion for

the jewellery industry. Our latest blockchain initiative on T MARK is
one of the splendid exemplars of how we disrupt the industry
standard. As a visionary jewellery titan, | think the transformation is
an endless journey that edges us to keep pace with times and stay
at the forefront of the disruptions so as to deliver a seamless and
unigue customer experience. | am confident that if we work as
united as one and strive for persistent innovation, we will definitely
have more mileposts ahead.

| would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to all loyal staff of the
Group, present and past, all incumbent and previous Board
members for their strategic guidance, our shareholders, business
partners and customers who together have made Chow Tai Fook
successful. As Chow Tai Fook's 90" Anniversary celebrations rolled
in, | do hope all will join us and share the joy.

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Chairman
Hong Kong, 6 June 2019

Chairman’s Statement
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Business Model Innovation
AR R

Business Model Innovation
AR A

To cater for the evolving customer
expectations, we reposition our
business around the customer needs
and refine our existing business
models to continually create, deliver
and capture value.

AWEBEREESNEE  RRE
BEEREFREBEN  LEERM Value

RANBFEES - FERIE - BENES e
o ‘ Proposition
EEER

To deliver exceptional
customer experience

that creates long-term
differentiation and loyalty

REAEHETRE 8
RIS S 708 E

Resources
&iE

Key resources that our value proposition requires

EMWEEEZRAFNERER \y/
A /

Chow Tai Fook Strong cash flows Intellectual
heritage and culture capital
BAXEEGRTXt MR BHEXR

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A



Business Model Innovation
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Revenue MOde'_ Brands and

products
u&x*ﬁﬁ e ER

Revenue streams on how we extract the value

o
o

BARREENBAR
Multi-brands
ZmhE
In-house collections
[ § BRARIER
OEM Licensed products
; R EERE REER
Ef::!?:::t?g: ODI\{I e Izranﬁ collaborations
-:;IE—E&.I_&EE Jﬁﬁfﬁﬁgﬁ'l'i;a =[x} El:l 'ﬂE New retail
ggzgijlm Sale§ channels concfpts
SHEEE RIHEERS
Self-operated POS
HETEH
Franchised POS Experience shop
MEZEH BEEE
r\ E-commerce Pop-up store
ETEH TR R P
\J Retail partners Social shopping
. ZEEM HRREY
Others it\r/zts(ig:znts Cﬁ:qlouLd\ kiosk
it RIS =fla
Self-service
experience corner

BYERE

Process Model
FiRiE

Key processes that help to create and deliver the value
BYRAIZNEEEENERRE

D g5 N =)

Internet Blockchain Automation Data analytics
of Things application of production g o
9Bk 48 ERHEER EEEEE
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Annual Results at a Glance

Annual Results at a Glance

FEXEHNE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BZE201963A31BLFE

Revenue

= 3
HK$ million B&E#& Tt

66,661

YoY change B tb &1t
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Dividend per share for the year?®

BREERE?

Core operating profit'"
EEEZRA
HK$ million BE&#& Tt

6,972
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Including special dividend per share

BEERENRS

HK$ &t HK$ 8T
O [ ] 6 5 0 (] 3 0
Dividend payout ratio %
(Special dividend excluded) 80 76.5%
ZEREER(TBEFIRKRE) 70 66.0%
60 51.3% 54.4%52.3%
o 50
; 6 5 A) 0
[ 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
(1) Core operating profit, a non-IFRS measure, being the aggregate of gross profit and other income, (1)

less selling and distribution costs and general and administrative expenses and unrealised loss
(gain) on gold loans, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete
understanding of its operational performance and the underlying trend of its core businesses

(2)  Being a total of full year dividend of HK$0.35 per share and special dividend of HK$0.30 per share. (2)
The proposed final and special dividends of HK$0.50 per share which are subject to the approval
of shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FIABKREELEEFR AT

Earnings per share
BRERN
HKS &

0.46

YoY change Bt &1t
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13 13 13 13

As at 31 March
MA3A31H

Net gearing ratio

FEFBEMAILE

2019

33.2%

Net assets per share As at 31 March
BREEFHE MW3A31AR
HK$ & T

2019

3.1

EEEEBF Y IFEERM R EAHE - HEARAMKENAR
RIHE RS HKAAR —RETRAT BESEEORERBIE(KES)
ARAREELHEEBEENESBR T REALERARBELEBN

HHBS

BREEKRE2FRE 03B LMERFFIRE 0308 ZATRARAR
R R 8 0.50 BT AR B RAEAR R A EERFEFKE it



As at 31 March 2019
#2019%3A318

Retail network and performance

TEARRRE

Hong Kong and Macau
FEERIRM

101

POS
TEH

a2

Net openings
FHE

FY2019

a8.7%

SSSG
FEHER R

Annual Results at a Glance

Mainland China
oh 3 Py it

2,988 .

FEXENRE

FY2019

POS Net openings SSSG

TEH RS

E-commerce

EFEH

FY2019

RSV

ZEE

al13.2% 4.8% 13.6%

YoY change of respective RSV of respective retail

Eilz4X(4 {EHEEATEE sales volume
1GHERHE

Chow Tai Fook employees

AXEET

30,400+ OQ

Total number of employees

BTHAH

Number of employees by reportable segment
REUERSBEASHETIHE

78.1% 21.9%

Mainland China Hong Kong, Macau and other markets

hEA &t BPIREMTS

Chow Tai Fook membership programme

AXEEasE

3,250,000

Total number of members

BEAH

Members’ repeat purchase as a % of respective RSV
EERHBEEMATEEZENIL

FY2019

22.2%

Mainland China
HRE R it

34.5%

Hong Kong and Macau
EEREM

Annual Report 2019 4F %}
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Financial and Operational Highlights

MR EERE

Financial and Operational Highlights

MBEREERE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
For the year ended 31 March BZ3A3MALEE BB ER- -7 BEER BEBT ER- -7
Revenue = 64,277 56,592 51,246 59,156 66,661
Gross profit EH 19,072 15,641 14,963 16,213 18,602
Core operating profit™ EEEEEF M 6,691 5,050 4,649 5,606 6,972
Profit for the year R F 5,536 2,979 3,151 4,203 4,684
Profit attributable to shareholders 773 71 P& 58 i 15 3 7
of the Company 5,456 2,941 3,055 4,095 4,577
Earnings per share (HK$) BRAF (BT 0.55 0.29 0.31 0.41 0.46
Dividend per share (HK$) BRARE (&)
Full year dividend (HK$) 2FERE (BT 0.28 0.16 0.16 0.27 0.35
Special dividend (HK$) BRI S (BoT) - 0.64 0.35 0.30 0.30
Gross profit margin E = 29.7% 27.6% 29.2% 27.4% 27.9%
Adjusted gross profit margin® ERABENERNE 29.2% 28.9% 28.5% 27.2% 27.9%
Core operating profit margin” FTELEFERMERD 10.4% 8.9% 9.1% 9.5% 10.5%
Net profit margin Y Al & 8.6% 5.3% 6.1% 7.1% 7.0%
Full year dividend payout ratio® 2ERBEKO 51.3% 54.4% 52.3% 66.0% 76.5%

(1) Core operating profit and the corresponding margin, a non-IFRS measure, being the aggregate of
adjusted gross profit and other income, less selling and distribution costs and general and
administrative expenses, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete
understanding of its operational performance and the underlying trend of its core businesses

(2)  Adjusted gross profit margin, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of unrealised loss (gain)
on gold loans, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete understanding of
its operational performance and the underlying trend of its businesses

(3)  Special dividend excluded

(1) TEELHEFIREREN X HZERMEREENTE  BERER
MEMNRAMBENST  REERDHEERAAR —RETERAY - &
ARBELSFHEEDEAM T RELERARROEBNERBES

(2) FEABENHEFXLFZEREMBEREEUFE MR TESEENR
BREEB (KRS NTE  ARFARELBEEDEER T HRELERA
REBNERBD

B  TRERRE

For the year ended 31 March HZE3AZMBLEE 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Mainland China B A it

SSSG FIEEEEE (15.6)% (9.6)% (5.2)% 8.0% 3.4%

SSS volume growth F/EHEEE (15.8)% (8.4)% (15.8)% 1.2% (3.3)%
Hong Kong and Macau EEREREM

SSSG FIEEEEE (32.8)% (21.7)% (12.4)% 10.2% 8.7%

SSS volume growth RIEHEER (27.7)% (23.9)% (18.8)% 6.1% 1.3%
Retail sales volume (unit) HE (480

Mainland China R A 3, 13,637,000 13,280,000 12,004,000 13,416,000 14,518,000

Hong Kong, Macau and HE BNk

other markets Hmis 4,907,000 3,971,000 3,152,000 3,169,000 3,390,000

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A



Financial and Operational Highlights 17

HHREERE
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million HK$ million
As at 31 March ®3A31H HEET BHEET BHEET HRET BEET
Non-current assets IEMENEE 7,038 6,670 7,133 8,258 8,459
Current assets MEEE 54,083 49,005 42,269 49,312 53,778
Current liabilities MEAE 19,880 18,764 15,788 20,719 27,471
Net current assets MEVE B 34,203 30,241 26,480 28,593 26,307
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 700 1,162 1,112 2,753 3,363
Net assets BEFE 40,541 35,750 32,502 34,098 31,403
Total assets BERE 61,121 55,675 49,402 57,570 62,237
Inventories Ty 39,798 31,377 29,259 34,929 39,486
Cash and cash equivalents®” B NBREEEYMYW 8,478 13,001 7,943 7,944 7,641
Bank borrowings RITER 6,751 7,920 6,793 7,923 10,057
Gold loans HefEE 8,338 6,513 3,216 5,335 8,012
Net debt® BEIEFEE 6,611 1,432 2,066 5,314 10,428
Net assets per share (HK$) BRREEFEGBT) 4.1 3.6 3.3 3.4 3.1
Net gearing ratio® SBEAREEHLERG 16.3% 4.0% 6.4% 15.6% 33.2%
Inventory turnover period (day)” FEREH(XE)D 320 279 294 296 299
Return on equity® A& 7N [B] 3 &R ©) 13.7% 8.3% 9.7% 12.3% 14.9%
(4)  Bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits and short-term bank deposits included (4) BERTEHRRS  DERRITFRREHRITER
(6)  Aggregate of bank borrowings and gold loans, net of cash and cash equivalents (6) WOTERLRESEEZRBRASRRSEED)
(6)  Aggregate of bank borrowings and gold loans, net of cash and cash equivalents, divided by total 6) MITEHARESEEZARNBRRESRREESEY) MIAESAE
(7) ;il\i:gyinvemory balances, excluding packing materials, at the end of the reporting period divided (7)) BMEBRFEEA(TEELRYE) RIAFNHEERZE - BIRIA365
by cost of goods sold for the year, multiplied by 365 or 366 =X 366
(8)  Being profit for the year divided by total equity at the end of the year (8)  FAEFIBRIAFRES BT
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million HK$ million
For the year ended 31 March BZ3A3MALEE ER- 7 ER- -7 BEER BEBT ER- -7
Operating cash flows before LBEASEFBRI LKL
movements in working capital RERE 7,288 5,787 5,702 6,879 7,774
Net cash from (used in) KRS (A
operating activities IRE F5E 7,568 13,897 6,252 2,851 8,431
Net cash from (used in) HEEEBME (TR
investing activities HeF5E (3,093) (1,045) (1,147) (1,577) (1,222)
Net cash from (used in) BERBME (PTA)
financing activities REFHE (5,472) (8,008) (9,771) (1,753) (7,212)
Net increase (decrease) in RekBReEEY
cash and cash equivalents wmCRD) F5E (996) 4,845 (4,667) (479) (3)
Capital expenditure BEAMAX (2,768) (1,046) (862) (1,084) (1,392)
Pro forma free cash flows® BEERBESR 2,764 10,690 1,989 3,019 4,100
(9) Net cash from (used in) operating activities less purchase of jewellery collectibles, capital (9 HKETFHHEFMAALFERBERTLE EARAZIRESEET
expenditure and net movements for gold loans #3)
Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences M Bt SR F R AR
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‘|8 Financial and Operational Highlights

MEREERE
As at 31 March W3A31H 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
POS distribution? SEHRSMHO0
Mainland China B 2,124 2,179 2,246 2,449 2,988
Hong Kong &E 93 89 83 80 82
Macau P 19 20 19 19 19
Taiwan =y 16 23 22 22 22
Cambodia i - - - - 1
Japan SN - - - 2 3
Korea g% [ 1 4 5 7 9
Malaysia BRAER 1 1 2 2 4
Singapore o 1 1 1 1 2
United States EJE 2 2 3 3 3
Vietnam g - - - - 1
Total @y 2,257 2,319 2,381 2,585 3,134

(10) SIS and CIS excluded (100 TRIEEFRERENBE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FIABKREELEEFR AT
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Managing Director’s Strategic Report

BEALSERERES

FY2019 marked another year of growth for our

business. Our core competence as an innovative and

agile industry leader has yielded positive results.

KPP ER N 2019 B B E E 4 E 8215

SR o ERRIF

BENTEREE  ERMBIERREAVBRTIT
VETBHIRR o

Mr.Wong Siu-Kee, Kent ERE &£

Managing Director = S Z 418

FY2019 marked another year of growth for our business. Despite a
dampened macro-economic outlook due to continued US-China
trade tensions in 2HFY2019, our core competence as an innovative
and agile industry leader has yielded positive results.

We have three long-term goals, namely market share expansion,
customer experience improvement and stable returns to our
shareholders. We have strategies and plans in place across the
Group to ensure that we achieve these objectives.

Our “Smart+ 2020" strategic framework, a three-year strategic
plan focused on enhancing customer experience, launched in
FY2018, has provided us with powerful impetus for growth. Over
the last year, we have achieved several exciting strategic
milestones as a result. Through the relentless and diligent
execution of our “Smart+ 2020" strategic framework, we are
confident that we can deliver a seamless and compelling customer
experience that ensures we create long-term shareholder value.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A

BMOEBR00MBEFELERTEE-BE
019 BEE T HEFXEZERRBFE  PET
RBRERNS  BERAMBENTERESE &R
(RIEE-S: ﬁ&&/u HFENT - BUSTHREIKR -

BMBE=AREBE  HRABRAMBEEE 27
BEER ARARIRGERES - AEK L
B RMHETEMERRAE  REAREEH
B -

ﬁ1FﬁEA2018ﬁ7ﬂE&¢J§T&”E’J [Smart+ 2020] KBS 1E
AR PIREE KRG EE) N - [Smart+ 2020 3R
BM[”” T—EAP=-FHREMETIES - ZINE
FERER - B RBEERNITE  BMKRDHESE
SAEBROHMER BB ERF MM IT
[Smart+ 2020 FREEIEZR - HMIEL AEER IR AL
BIEAMBEYRS  ARFAEREEE -



Business Development

Customers' preference in our key markets have changed rapidly
over the last five years. Some themes are common and some are
specific to their respective markets. Nowadays, consumers are
increasingly sophisticated to seek more personalised products and
exclusive experiences. This phenomenon is particularly true for
relatively affluent groups. Younger customers, on the other hand,
focus on mobile, social media and online experiences as an
important benchmarks to evaluate their selection of brands. These
two common themes are generally applicable across all of our key markets.

Mainland China shares these common themes, and has the
additional challenge of being a vast and geographically diverse
market with dispersed retail channels that are forcing brand owners
and retailers to reposition their network and channel strategies to
stay relevant.

In Hong Kong and Macau, retailers have to deal with longer-term
challenges, such as perusing incremental growth in these relatively
mature markets, along with the evolving travel and spending
preferences of inbound visitors.

In overseas markets, particularly in Southeast Asia, we see
potential opportunities that we have yet to fully explore. Southeast
Asian countries have greatly benefitted from globalisation trends.
Their production capacity has increased rapidly in response to rising
labour costs in Mainland China over the past few years. With the
emergence of a larger and richer middle class in those Asian
economies, we believe that there will be huge demand for quality
products and services.

As for the scale of the global diamond jewellery market, it stood at
sheering size of US$82 billion in 2017". The United States alone
has captured 50% of the global market share. Looking across the
United States diamond market’s value chain, which is highly
fragmented and organised around functions, we believe that there
is ample room for us to add value to the upstream, midstream and
downstream through our built-in capabilities.

(1) Source: De Beers the Diamond Insight Report 2018
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EBER

BERLF BMXI2HSNBETSHZ(CAELR
BORERRFEANBE - &80 B 5 E =B R B
EMHARR - 25 BEHEERRERET
P EECtERMEBBROBTREBEMES
WEARBEERNEEEM S EARE - ERFE
BEH MMEEaRReAFH EREREELE
MERAREEARE AAL  FAMEBREARER
BPEEEMS -

REAME LR LA EEB LI BRI EZ R
MBETE FHTERBRA/DE  ARMHER
BONOBLEL - B mIE R T EEE TR RE RPN
RIEHREE - MBI AR - AR EU-TIHH I -

REELRM  TERLSARYEORENE - Wk
& P EAR ST A A RO T 35 SR B OIS & 0 A K R B B
BABRZIRETEBESFOEE -

ERBHITS  CERBGHE  RMBIEFEZE
FREMBAERKE RETEZRE2RIECBE T RS
X BEHF  REFERNELDREN  UEY
TEAM NG ERABTIRA - ERETRTZEE
HWOPERRESLETEMNEERRPERE  HMEE
BHHEEERIREOFRESHEERY

RE20177F2RBORET SN HEZDE20E
E0 ZBEMET2H0%TMIHEE X - fEEH
ERELTSNEERE  TEEGEMESESE
Rt HRFBEDERMOERHBMEBEE N
Bl TEE -

(1) ERFR: ML 2018 F@ATTERERS
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Retail Network in Mainland China
oh 3 Ay 3th T £ 4 4

As at 31 March 2019 2019638318

CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY & X &% &

HEARTS ON FIRE

2,769 ros zaw 3 pos 2ux: 159 sisicis g/ mmmm
ARTRIUM B XEEE T MARK

2 ros=an 4 pos zas 500 cis samm

JEWELRIA B X{EEEE CTF Watch B XiEsEER SOINLOVE MONOLOGUE

32 ros e

113 ros zas

Total POS in Mainland China FE A BT £

2,988 ros zsn

Mainland China
CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY and endorsed brands

Across our established CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY retail
network, we have rolled out and upgraded selective POS to
JEWELRIA and ARTRIUM, targeting sophisticated customers
seeking international luxury jewellery selections and unique
experiences. Our shops are segmented strategically in order to
provide matching products, environments and experiences to
our diverse customer groups.

Deepening market penetration will be one of our key areas of
focus over the next three to five years. Lower tier cities, in
particular those at county level, will be further explored through
franchise model in order to leverage franchisees’ local
knowledge and access.

Other brands

Multi-brand strategy continues to thrive in Mainland China to
enrich our product offerings and differentiation that broaden our
customer spectrum.

HEARTS ON FIRE, a premium diamond brand with delicate
cutting and polishing skills, is rolled out in relatively mature
markets in the form of SIS and CIS, leveraging the strength of
our existing network.

T MARK, our proprietary diamond brand with a unique
traceability feature, penetrates quickly in Mainland China
primarily in the form of CIS.

SOINLOVE and MONOLOGUE target millennials’ specific
needs. They will be further rolled out through online and offline
channels to acquire and cultivate brand awareness amongst
new younger customers.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEARBHRELEB AR QT

27 ros zes:

38 roszaw;

ot E A it
JE K ¥R 2K EE % B St o B

REMERKXANBRBARAEZEHEF - H M
BOREENTERN B2ABARAREEER
FARABEE HYERARZERERBEER
MARKEE - HMS KRB &S EDT
ERCAFR ATANEETHERERONER
BRIENBMER -

BATSEERREMAR=ZERFEHMIT
Rz - HMSE-—FNAMBEAFBRR
MW LERBERRENTS - AZRINERD
B A E AN o

Hib 5

TmERBRPEABERAE RMATHES
EmEENEER{L  URHEERNBERE -

BEEREDARTETIZNSREARE
HEARTS ON FIRE @ BEZMBENTEHEE - 1
EE KA T 5 AR E R EAZEREEEE -

BAEAEPUENZEBEDRETMARKIER
AR ETEAMTIS -

SOINLOVE X MONOLOGUE #t# F& — R M4 E
FERk-MARMBEBENG TR TREERE -
WAE ZFEMBER > (EMELMEMEDE -



Retail Network in Hong Kong, Macau and other markets

& BFREMTHRTEES
As at 31 March 2019 2019638318

CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY & X &% &

Hong Kong and Macau & i# & #F9 Other markets Hfth 715

98 ros =z 31 roszan

ARTRIUM B XEEE

1 roszaw

Total POS in Hong Kong, Macau and other markets
R REMTHISETER

146 ros =8

Hong Kong, Macau and Other Markets

Hong Kong and Macau

CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY and endorsed brands

e Selective POS opening for CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY is
planned in FY2020.

e ARTRIUM made its debut in Hong Kong as an exclusive

showroom to provide exquisite jewellery products with unique
experience to our high-end customers in the market.

Other brands

e \We will consider the rollout of other brands in FY2020 to capture
younger customers in the market depending on market demand.

Other markets

e We will focus on CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY by further
market penetration through partnerships with local retailers.

e New openings in FY2019 covered Cambodia, Japan, Korea,
Malaysia, Singapore and Vietnam.

e Further explorations for opportunities in Southeast Asia, in
particular the growth potential from Mainland tourists and local
customers there.

e Regional exclusive products with locality features will create
differentiation in our product offerings.

Wholesale Business

e We established Chow Tai Fook North America (“CTENA")
business hub in Boston, the United States, which is positioned
to be a leading, single source wholesaler by delivering products,
services and know-how especially on technological innovations
that help drive profitability and strengthen jewellery retail
businesses in the North American market.

e CTENA will offer customised, specialty collections in the
diamond and fine jewellery segments, as well as private label
offerings, to address the evolving needs of jewellery
consumers.

e The Group’'s know-how and scale, combined with the deep local
knowledge and experience of the North American team allows
us to deliver deep value to the retail jewellers in North America.

Managing Director’s Strategic Report
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HEARTS ON FIRE

15 roszew

T MARK

1roszens 5D csram
E& B R EMBTHIS
FB %A

BAREIRE K B o

AT BIP 2020 01 B A R
g o

ERERBAAREEZRIZE
= i B AR A

L EURARAARKETE

EXFZE - BEMH
EENREERMAEBENER -

Hitb i g

BAERFHI5E T - 58I 2020 BFEH W
H i e R A F R -

Hip s

BMERIERARNEHRE -

E—RAMBELER -

019 MFEFRNEHEERBE HAR

R - BOREET - HTINK KM .

ﬁzﬂ’ﬁﬁ—rﬂﬁ ERRmE D EmEE - CEFFRE R
MR M E R A G RE S o

HEWTERA

o

-

BPEHAENFENREEBER
ER{ -

BIEE M@

X

BMEXBERTEXRZIBAANBILERERZ
(TAXBIEED  EEMARIEET S P EME
BEM AR BHER  RRTENRETER
REER REARLEEMRAF T ENEE
M MBEHILETENKETEFNRMEE
MIRZ TSN RETEEBNERE -
BARBIESSEELNSRIKE HISREE SO
FEeR ITHEREXMEER DEHEETH
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BEEENZEZMNBNAE N EIEXEREEH
MENAATENZERES RILXKETER
REREOEE -
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“Smart+ 2020” Strategic Framework
[ Smart+ 2020 ] FKE&HEZS

Our “Smart+ 2020" strategic framework is a three-year strategic work plan supported by our dedicated
Smart working teams, which are tasked with the delivery of each strategy from conception through to execution.
H I8 [Smart+ 2020] HKEIERE —ERB=FORBEMEITEE
AEESMant TEEKED - AESERRNEEUAZHRIT

SMART ™

2020

Customer Experience

*

Brands and Products " ;ulzure
BHeRES ‘ f
Retail Experience ... \ R Insights
FTERR ‘ R

Customisation el
E i

Innovation Technology Sustainability

B B RECE-EE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FIABKREELEEFR AT
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Brands and Products mhRER

ARTRIUM
AXEER

Artisan jewellery pieces with
meticulous craftsmanship

FEOTETENKRED M

el jewELR:A

International jewellery e — ;
product offerings EARTS ON FIRE'
EnnEapEy e . s L

A ¥

HEARTS ON FIRE
US premium
diamond brand
with exquisite
cutting
craftsmanship
TR E TEE
XESREAMDE
4+

CHOW TAI FOOK

JEWELLERY
BAXiEH%E
Iconic brand
with classic T MARK
product offerings In pursuit of true diamond
R HREDD authenticity and traceability
e BYPEAERRER

SOINLOVE
Top of mind
jewellery gifting
product of
MONOLOGUE millennial
Stylish fashion jewellery women
for young generation F—Ruh
FR—ABIEE & XBEER
HREEH KEEM
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e Two highlighted pure gold and 22 Karat gold collections, namely e ARABEHEZRY R17916K 5| 5 5l B4l &
CTFeHUA Collection and 17916 Collection were well-received R22KEERZEY  ETBRREIEHEET S
by customers for their craftsmanship, originality and creativity.

Managing Director’s Strategic Report

BEELREERERES

CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY and endorsed brands B X% S R R %

CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY ARBHRE

e CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY, an iconic brand with 90-year o MEBEINFREIHEZAFRUEREARNERSE  EEG
heritage, continued to invest and innovate in product offerings HE KT ETEERIRE MBI -

and features.

e Revamped initiatives continued in selective CHOW TAl FOOK e BENKFENBAAREREZTEUMETEHENL

JEWELLERY POS to offer varied store layouts, experiences and DIRETRMNPIEEE  BYEBREZTENER
diversified product offerings. IR o

e The CTFeHUA Collection emphasises a natural balance of o ARBEARINEEL ULBEHEERAEE ZHN
cultural footprint and modern aesthetic. A CTF e HUA specialty BARMAE - AABEAZFEN2019F4 AEHE
shop was opened in Shunde, Mainland China in April 2019. A B o

Highlighted collections of CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY
EAXERENERRIIESN

oo N

17916 Collection in 22 Karat gold is
a response to evolving demand
from customers for diversity

in jewellery products
LA22K £ 3TiEM 17916 RF B fEm 2
BRUHZHECKEERNER

CTF e HUA Collection transforms historic culture
into a trend with dedicated gold craftsmanship
AREERRIABENES TEBER U5
B AR

CTF e HUA specialty shop in Shunde, Mainland China
AR B 9 3 B A2 Y B K AR (R P SR

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A
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Fantastical Creatures Collection ARTRIUM showroom in Hong Kong
NERRHKE R URBENEARBRERYZE
ARTRIUM BAAREE
e Our first ARTRIUM showroom was opened in Hong Kong in o HMR2019FIAEEERREHARERER
March 2019. It is poised to offer an unprecedented luxury NE BERBEETRHAMRENEEREER
jewellery experience. Guests are invited to browse a selection BEEURRENALARINEREEERKRNTE
of jewellery tailored to their tastes and needs in an elegant, KEXRN - BRERURBARAEEEZZ LW RS
private showroom. The exceptional customer service in Sh BREEEBNEMNKEE M -

ARTRIUM brings beauty and enjoyment to customers during
their appreciation of the exquisite jewellery creation.

e Fantastical Creatures Collection was awarded “High-end o AERRKERINEEFRRAANML2019FHERE
Jewellery Best New Arrival” of Hurun Best of the Best Award ;a:r'ﬂﬁnu RBIEN [ S RKEFHE] UREZHEED
2019 in Mainland China in recognition of its perfect balance of THEMTELS °
meticulous craftsmanship.

JEWELRIA BAXEELRE
e JEWELRIA continues to build up its international product J Hj(?%gﬁﬁit ENBINSIANE LT MmE  UEBFE
offerings by bringing in more new brands from overseas. RHRE MEAS

MEMOIRE's products at JEWELRIA The Group's spokesperson, Wang Kai, was invited to the
BAiEE ) MEMOIREE & opening event of JEWELRIA at Xi’an, Mainland China

SEREATNERLFRAAREENTEAMAR NGRS
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T MARK

e T MARK has been disrupting the jewellery industry since its
launch in 2016. We revolutionised industry best practice with
the innovative "4Ts” concept and the use of blockchain
technology that strengthen the T MARK product as a guarantee
for a natural and authentic diamond.

e |In FY2019, sales of T MARK products accounted for 19.4% and
25.9% of the RSV of our diamond products in Mainland China
and Hong Kong and Macau, respectively.

e RSV growth reached 75.8% and 72.8% in Mainland China and
Hong Kong and Macau, respectively.

T MARK

TMARKE 2016 F#HEHIAR —EEEZREKE
¥ RPIBMERETITENREED - A
[ATs] Mo ME R ERM - R T T MARKE @
RAMEE -

K209 BFE - TMARKE G HMEFBERA
WARBEMEFANEAERTEEMEL DA
19.4% [ 25.9% -
RAPBEABANFTEMREFANTEEERD A
75.8% [ 72.8% °

Application of innovative technology and value-added services to enhance 4Ts’ marketability

FE R RIM R W R B ERFE R T 4Ts B HIERSI N

Value-added protection on
T MARK diamond

e In collaboration with key insurance providers, a value-added
service on selective T MARK diamond products will soon be
available for customers in FY2020.

- Anti-counterfeiting jewellery ID card

e Traceability of T MARK diamond is further enhanced with an
anti-counterfeiting feature on the T MARK jewellery ID card.
Scan of the unique code on the jewellery ID card will provide
the traceable records of the matching T MARK diamond.

T MARK &R B (R &

HMBERERBRAAAE REFRAESE
T MARKERE REERT - BBERB RN 2020
R EFEHEL TS

ApBRHKEEEF

RE— R T MARKE A B FIRFTEW M - FiF
MT MARKZRE 35 KB 0BT A 158 - 7 A i 28
HERBET TNBEART BB RHER
T MARK A #) RT3 B ACEE ©

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEARBHRELEB AR QT
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Famous artist Sammi Cheng was invited to Touch Collection from T MARK
a promotional event of T MARK T MARK (48] $& 86 %5

FRAZBAE B E T MARKR RS

Digital diamond grading report BISERETEES
e Our collaboration with Gemological Institute of America (“GIA”) e BMEXZHBAMAKR(IGIAlNEGEER R R
to adopt blockchain technology allows our customers to il BERRBEKARTANENCIABLEERE
receive their diamond’s permanent and immutable GIA grading R e

certification.

e As of 31 March 2019, GIA digital diamond grading report was o M201943A31H BB F10EZ= & B8 #

made available at 10 POS in Hong Kong and shall be rolled out GIABBEAEEEFE N 20200 HEER
to Mainland China in FY2020. B A HELT o
N~ Third-party certification E=FHRE

e The integrity and traceability of T MARK have been certified by e 2019948 - T MARK#Y A] 58 14 A0 7] 38 9 14 &
the world's leading inspection, verification, testing and SGSHRFE - SGSAEIKE LR - BF - Al
certification third party, SGS in April 2019. RERBHE=FRA -

Annual Report 2019 4 ¥
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HEARTS ON FIRE jewelleries were presented with the art HEARTS ON FIRE sponsored the
of Niki de Saint Phalle at “Women In Art” VIP dinner in Beijing 13" Asian Film Awards, some of the invited
HEARTS ON FIRE %8 & #ii L 5B # % [Women In Art) guests were wearing HEARTS ON FIRE

HHBEE FENiki de Saint Phalle f &1 {E % — B E H

HEARTS ON FIRE

e In FY2019, RSV growth of HEARTS ON FIRE was -21.9% and
18.6% in Mainland China and Hong Kong and Macau,
respectively.

e Sales of HEARTS ON FIRE accounted for 2.0% and 4.3% of the
RSV of our diamond products in Mainland China and Hong Kong
and Macau, respectively.

SOINLOVE and MONOLOGUE

e SOINLOVE and MONOLOGUE were successfully introduced to
younger customers through revolving interactions between
online and offline platforms.

e Endorsement by key opinion leaders (KOLs) on social media
and product collections with appealing stories proved to be
successful in marketing SOINLOVE and MONOLOGUE to our
targeted customers.

-
o
w
£
)

3 I'II. s

R g
. QL S
r —r o —
~ = A S

jewelleries during the event

HEARTS ON FIREEB) T £ 13EEMEFZ KL -
HnZEEEMEHEARTS ON FIREEKREZE 2/
EE

HEARTS ON FIRE

R B R i DA I & & SR P9 - HEARTS ON FIRE
R2019MBEENTEEERS HIR-21.9% R
18.6% °
HEARTS ON FIRE 5% %8 {5 £ 14 * B ;a3 A &%
ERMEMNEBELEMETEEGLD N R2.0% K%
4.3% °

SOINLOVE % MONOLOGUE

SOINLOVE X MONOLOGUE —E JA K% i@ 4R 8
BTFENED  KINRS —RRFENET

SOINLOVE X MONOLOGUE % #t 2% # 82 &) 3 ¢
EREMKOLEE  AEERRIBETRSIESE
BEE - DR EEER M B EEE

Baby Ring Collection from SOINLOVE Lightboom Collection Customer sharing KOL recommendation on
SOINLOVE BB 3| from MONOLOGUE on social media MONOLOGUE jewellery
MONOLOGUE Lightboom %7 BRI KOL#7MONOLOGUE

DE KEEH

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A



Cloud kiosks were installed in the technology
infused shop at Guangzhou, Mainland China
to provide digitalised customer experience
kA7 7 FR B PR b B N 69 A R OE T b g BR
THEE  EEEZXHUH MEYER

Retail experience

Technology infused shop

Responding to evolving customer purchase behaviour,
especially amongst the younger segments, selective shops in
Tier | and Il cities in Mainland China will pioneer the application
of in-store technology.

Cloud kiosks were installed in-store to provide a renewed
shopping experience, a wider selection of products not limited
to store level and support an enhancement in transaction
efficiency. We opened the store with these innovations in
Guangzhou in FY2019.

Experience shop

Experience shops with thematic layouts were opened in
selective locations in Mainland China after the success of our
experience shops in Hong Kong in FY2018. Each experience
shop is infused with its respective local culture to create a
unique blend for each market.

A "heritage” themed experience shop in
Xi'an, Mainland China

R ERERIA[E] REBRORERIE
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R EE R R B 15 T

s RUAHEEMEANEE HHERFEN
—R - BRPRREAR— DR TREE LR
REEENMARIF R XER

s FAREZMWMAURHSTOEYER  RBHES
THBRBREANERREE  XAKERATRSH
o 2019 BREFE - HAERMNAREERE
TRHRH S o

BBk S

e B2018HBFERBERRNEERIERSKY
& - FAAIR P E A E R B R E R AR A
BRE-SHEREFOBRAZHOXL X@BH
BREHOBYER -

A “gift giving” themed experience shop in Hefei, Mainland China
MR E RS R [ ] AERMNERE
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@

Mainland China
chE Ry ith

As at 31 March 2019
7A201943A31H

2,200,000

Number of members
E5HEH

Chow Tai Fook membership programme

AXEE S

FY2019

Members’ repeat purchase as a % of respective RSV

Hong Kong and Macau
EERIRM

As at 31 March 2019
A20194%3A31H

1,050,000

Number of members
EEHH

FY2019

Members’ repeat purchase as a % of respective RSV

BEEEEERESEEZ T L GEENEEHEEEEEZE L
Self-service experience corner BBEERE

Extension of grab-and-go concept at self-service experience
corner in designated locations enables us to reach a broader
group of target consumers with ease and explore more
opportunities in different settings. During FY2019, 26
self-service experience corners were installed in locations
such as hotels and VIP lounges in some key train stations in
Mainland China.

New themes and exclusive jewellery collections were introduced
to increase the attractiveness of our experience corners.

Customer relationship management

In Mainland China, customers can manage their membership
accounts through their mobile devices. They can also redeem
the earned bonus points through WeChat mini programme for
lifestyle rewards and privileges at anytime.

Members are also invited to join the loyalty programme, Good
Living Plus (GLP+), for additional privilege redemptions including
leisure, hospitality and travelling enjoyments at our partners’
facilities to enjoy greater privileges.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEARBHRELEB AR QT

e NEETHBEEANERE Lgrab-and-go
B ABRMESEBEEANBEZBERM
RAARSRERELZEE - R2019BFE -

BT R E A  E e EEE - KRB ANEIEH
EEES  HRB26EADERE -

e BEFEREHENTEATENUREANHRT - K
ksl E LT -

FEEREER
° EA‘:P.Wﬂﬂ BEEAMNARHEEEEEES
AR ERME N RFRIEES BEAE

iﬁﬁiﬁaﬁ%“ﬁéﬁ%@% o

o o
(GLP+ & B3 8l
%?ﬁ&ﬁé%%ﬁﬁZ%ﬁ

Mo E 8 ﬁﬁgiﬁ% AMGood Living Plus
EXRIMBRERE B
B JE RREEE -
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Customers can witness the full
manufacturing process of their
customised order in our C2M
experience centre

BEERC2ME EHE O OA RE
HEHTEMBERERE

Customisation 5E i
e Our C2M experience centre in Shenzhen serves as a platform to o IFEYIMC2ZME ERELH L2 —AHER TEM
interact with our customers and enhance customer experience Fa - REBERED-ONEEHIFTHERFMHESR -

who use our D-ONE customised order system.

e Customisation initiates when customers selected their diamond o EEREBULEMNBAMNKAE  HMEEAFS

and jewellery settings according to their own preferences. EHLF - BaebSmart A EERBEIE MR
Our intellected Smart production framework enables us to 24 /NF MR TE Il FT B LA R AT - C2M B FEBE O
manufacture a customised order and have it be ready for FOTEET R 2020 M B IEXF A o

delivery within 24 hours. The grand opening of C2M experience
centre is expected in FY2020.

D-ONE customisation procedures
D-ONE % &l 2 FF

&

-

Select a setting Personalise Make online Production Ready for delivery
and a diamond the product payment within 24 hours
EERATER B 5 1 R 34 HETRF 24 NEF MR M
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Insights

e |nventory assortment efficiency has improved since an analytics
programme was applied to our inventory management system
for gold products in Hong Kong and Macau at the beginning of
FY2019. The need for manual adjustment is greatly reduced
since the inventory assortment process has become more
digitalised and efficient. This analytics programme shall be rolled
out to Mainland China upon the full launch in Hong Kong

and Macau.

e Members' check-in through Smart Trays was piloted at certain
selected POS in Mainland China. This initiative helps us identify
loyal members and provide relevant products and services that
help facilitate product design and assortment strategies.

Our frontline staff presents jewellery products on Smart Tray
BRSBTS ETRERKEER

Live broadcast of Managing Director
ERQECERSEREER

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FIABHKREEESFR AT
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Culture

Celebrating our 90" Anniversary
Live broadcast of Managing Director, Kent Wong

e The first live broadcast from Kent Wong, the Managing Director,
to all employees from different regions of the Group took place
in March this year to kick off our celebration to the 90t
Anniversary of Chow Tai Fook.

e |everaging this remarkable milestones, we invited Han Meilin,
the prominent artist who created the 2008 Beijing Summer
Olympics mascots, to design a limited edition gold badge
exclusively for our 90" Anniversary celebration. As a token
of our appreciation to our employees, every employee was
entitled to an extra day leave and a 90" Anniversary gold badge.

Corporate video
* A new corporate video with a theme of “Heritage ® Innovation e
Sharing” was launched in April this year.

CTF Brand Hall

e |ocated at our Shenzhen headquarters, the CTF Brand Hall
opened in May this year showcasing the key milestones of the
Group and jewellery culture over the past 90 years.

Managing Director’s Strategic Report
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The opening of CTF Brand Hall at our Shenzhen headquarters Corporate video
BREMRY G EAEREEFRE TrERR

QR code access to
corporate video
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Loupe — Design Residency Programme

Loupe — &&&tEfE AT El

FY2019

20

International and local designers

BAPR B A 5% 51 B

Designers-in-residence participated Seminars organised by

in jewellery exhibitions designers-in-residence
EEiZ st BIRREHAT 2 MK ERE BRETETEE IS AT Bl MBI T1ELH

A designer from the Design Residency Programme
shared her designs with potential buyers during the
Hong Kong Jewellery and Gem Fair in September 2018

BB BB R 201859 ARTMESHEEHEE R
B BRI E R

Internal innovative incubators

Unbounded working environment

e The “Slash” working space concept was developed to provide
an unbounded and user-friendly working environment that
enables the flow and exchange of ideas. It is a new working
model aimed at providing work flexibility and instilling creativity
in our teams and our people.

e An internal online communications tool was piloted in FY2019
across Mainland China. The tool streamlines work through
progress tracking digitalisation for projects and administrative
tasks. It also serves as an effective and efficient virtual
communication platform.

External innovative incubators

Loupe

e Design Residency Programme is established by Loupe for the
development of design talent in the jewellery industry.
Opportunities are offered to these local and international
designers, including the participation in different exhibitions to
showcase their jewellery collections.

e \We equip our design talent with additional skills in order to
further develop their careers. These include special jewellery
making techniques, practical knowledge in business operations
and sales techniques, along with market updates through
interactions with the industry.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEARBHRELEB AR QT
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Operations

To adapt to a changing business environment, our three major
corporate functions, namely human capital, finance and information
technology, were transformed in order to create greater value for
all other business units.

While streamlining work process through better use of system and
technology, the corporate functions emphasis on partnering with
business units, translating data into insight and providing support
and analysis to facilitate business decisions.

We believe these changes are essential in supporting the Group's
sustainable development into the future.

Global Intellectual Capital

Managing Director’s Strategic Report
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T aneRT 30,400+

M201943831H

@ Mainland China
rhE it 18.9%

Hong Kong, Macau
and other markets

&8 RMREMTS

20.2%

Total number of employees
As at 31 March 2019 ST

Number of employees by reportable segment Number of employees by function
REERSBESHETHH RERISHETHH

@ Sales
SHE
Production
£E

General and
administration

—RRAITH
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A move to Global Intellectual Capital

In Chow Tai Fook, every colleague is a brand ambassador and
advocate for positive change across the organisation. With the
support of the most advanced technology and Total Quality
Management and collaboration systems, we empower our staff
to make continuous improvements and intend to become an
employer brand of choice.

With this goal in mind, our Human Resources Department was
rebranded as Global Intellectual Capital Hub in FY2019.

Unleash our employees potentials to be innovators

A comprehensive talent development strategy was established
to attract, retain and inspire our people and to ensure the
ongoing sustainable development of the Group.

To compete in this increasingly complex and volatile business
environment, we are committed to providing numerous learning
opportunities to every member of staff, ranging from personal
growth to cross-industry training.

In addition to sharpening our employees’ skillsets and
capabilities, in support of their future development under the
ceaseless wave of disruption, there are other key areas of focus
in our talent development strategy.

CTF Academy

Qualifications Framework

To systematically recognise and enhance employees’
knowledge, we regularly offer four types of accredited
gemstone and jewellery courses to all staff. These are
recognised by the Qualifications Framework.

In August 2018, we were commended by the Education Bureau
as a “QF Star Employer” in recognition of our active support
and participation over the past years.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEARBHRELEB AR QT
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FY2019

1,100+

Number of learning programmes offered

ER#ESRERE
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Training and development

wEal R

1,571,000+

Aggregate training hours (include online training)
Rl 4B EE B (B iEAR b El)

Internship programme

“Smart Learning” Internship Programme aims at supporting
tertiary students and undergraduates in the development of
their competency in the jewellery business. As part of this,
“Smart Experience” programmes were offered to visually-
impaired students and this was endorsed during the Asia
Recruitment Awards in 2019.

Job rotation programmes between marketing, sales
management and human resources were arranged for interns,
including those visually-impaired, so that they may acquire new
professional, inter-personal and communication skills.

The programme successfully inspires young talent and builds
the creative mindset, which brings new visions and ideas into
the company.

Management trainee programme

Our two-year management trainee programme accelerates the
professional development of fresh graduates. Comprehensive
training and coaching by senior executives, job rotation and
international exposure are emphasised throughout a customised
learning journey.

With the aim of providing professional skills, knowledge and
developing leadership competencies, the programme is
designed to groom our highest quality talent to become future
industry leaders.

REEHE

[BEXE] ABLFBEEXHRATFEMAZER
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Management sharing session with our management trainees
EREREREINEDETIELR

Executive leadership programme

A leadership development programme, tailored to seven
different levels of executives in Mainland China, is a step-by-
step approach that encourages executives to gain experience,
optimise self and peer learning, and unleash their all-round
problem-solving and innovative thinking abilities.

In March 2019, this was recognised as one of the Top 20
Digital L&D Best Practices by the China Europe International
Business School for its outstanding performance in promoting
digital learning.

Chow Tai Fook executive summits

e The interactive and engaging summits were attended by over

2,100 employees this year. The annual town hall meetings are
for executives to understand the latest management direction
and share a mindset of our future workforce who is able to
embrace change in nowadays disruptive business environment.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A

Chow Tai Fook executive summit featured an interactive
sharing between the management and employees
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Cross-company collaboration and exposure

e To broaden our employees’ exposure, and equip them with
cutting-edge knowledge of today's ever-changing business
environment, we engaged in a wide-ranging collaboration effort
with different leading experts and outstanding companies.
These included:

o An insightful tutorial by Wallace Chan, a leading jewellery
artist who showcased our management trainees with
contemporary art and craftsmanship combined with
innovation, history and culture.

o DigiTalent & HEARTS ON FIRE Influencer Programme was
jointly organised by Chow Tai Fook and New World
Development Co Ltd, providing participants with an exclusive
opportunity to learn and practise digital marketing via social
media.

o Cross Company Leadership Forum, co-organised by Chow
Tai Fook, Maxim's Caterers Ltd, New World Development
Co Ltd and Pfizer Corporation Hong Kong Ltd, provided
participants with insightful, thought provoking information
through company visits and forums on the hot-button issues
disrupting today's business environment.

Managing Director’s Strategic Report
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Our management trainees joined the sharing session
presented by Wallace Chan, the renowned jewellery artist
who crafted the masterpiece “A Heritage

in Bloom" for Chow Tai Fook
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Information technology and data governance

Strong information technology capabilities, coupled with quality
information and data, serve as the fundamentals that support
our business objectives and growth.

IT governance framework

We formalised our IT Governance Framework, that has been in
place since FY2017, covering four key elements:

o Business alignment — to provide a structure for aligning IT
strategies and priorities with business strategies and
priorities. Provide a framework that guides the allocation of
important IT decisions to different parties within the Group.

o Resources management — to prioritise and allocate resources
across different IT projects.

o Performance measurement — to set up a mechanism and a
platform for evaluating the performance of project outcome.

o Risk management — to monitor and manage IT related risks.

Our main objective is to build differentiating IT capabilities, that
fully support the execution of our business strategies.

During FY2019, we have enhanced our demand and project
management mechanism, to ensure our IT resources are being
prioritised in effective ways that maximise value creation for
the Group.

Data governance

As data is a vital asset for our business development, we
launched our data governance programme to ensure we have
the best quality data for evaluating business performance and
enhancing operational efficiencies. This also paves the way for
our digital transformation.

Our programme focuses on three key areas that ensure data
quality is up to the highest standard:

o People — to maintain data ownership and stewardship
effectiveness for setting up data standards and quality at
every stage of its life cycle including capture, store, use and
archive of data.

o Process — to setup processes that capture, store, organise
and secure the data properly.

o Architecture — to create an IT infrastructure with proper data
structure that allows efficient data processing and usage.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEARBHRELEB AR QT
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Business Outlook and Strategies

In light of the macro headwinds and a tough comparison base as
we head into THFY2020, we are cautiously optimistic for FY2020.
The US-China trade talks may take some time to settle in our view.
Nonetheless, with the stimulus measures from the Chinese
government such as lowering reserve requirement ratio, various
tax cuts, spurring lending, particularly to small and medium-sized
companies and enlarging infrastructure spending, we believe these
would help to mitigate the impact on the economy and consumer
sentiment. As to grab a greater market share and optimise the
Group's brand competence in Mainland China, we will continue to
deepen our market penetration strategically in lower tier and
county level cities in Mainland China in the next three to five years.

As such, our “Smart+ 2020" three-year strategic framework
serves as the backbone for our business development and
transformation. We are delighted to observe some recognisable
outcomes underpinned by technology, innovation and
sustainability. We would continue our efforts in the following areas,
namely: (1) Implementing multi-brand strategy and enriching retail
experience to breakthrough customers’ inherent expectations on
jewellery store; (2) Reinforcing customer experience with
personalised engagement in the manufacturing process through
the customer-led C2M business model; (3) Building up of effective
operation models by deriving useful insights from big data
analytics; and (4) Incubating talents internally within the Group and
externally for the jewellery industry by promoting the innovative
and entrepreneurial culture and providing broader horizons to
unleash their creativity and talents.

Managing Director’s Strategic Report
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We are determined to prioritise sustainability as the overarching
principle of our future development over the next decade. Our
sustainability strategy initiatives are focused in four priority areas:
(1) By committing to Responsible Sourcing across our supply chain,
we will meet the optimal industry standards and practices;
(2) To foster heritage and craftsmanship skills and to promote
product innovation under Craftsmanship, Innovation & Technology;
(3) To protect our planet via a sustainable operation under Resource
Efficiency & Carbon Reduction; and (4) To cultivate a decent
people-centric workplace, and uphold our People Focused attitude
though nurturing wellbeing in our community. These measurable
goals will steer us towards the Group's centenary. Please scan the
QR code that will take you to our Sustainability Report for details.

EE E Please scan the QR code
i " |eading to our Sustainability Report for details
=] MBS MRS [THARRRS ]

Lastly, | would like to express our gratitude again to colleagues
who have worked for us over the past nine decades. Their passion
in search of customer service excellence has set an inspiring
example, and this has laid the groundwork for the Group's future
growth and success.

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent
Managing Director
Hong Kong, 6 June 2019

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A
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Business Review
& 3¢ 6]

Our operations recorded vibrant growth in revenue and core operating
profit during FY2019. All product categories exhibited positive growth
during the financial year among which gold products illustrated a
relatively stronger performance.

2019 E - RMIEBEEMBNERBEREIRELRNITRGE

BYHHER - FEEREIRPBRFERNLIZEER  HAESERWN
RIMAHEZRY -

Revenue Breakdown EEEPAS
Group &5

Revenue by reportable segment XTI 2D EBEISHIELEE

For the year ended 31 March Z38318LLFE
(HK$ million B&8T)

YoY change
G224
70,000 66,661 a127%
64,277
60,000 56,592 59,156
51,246
50,000
58.9% 63.7% a15.3%
40,000 59.5% 62.2%
60.5%
30,000
20,000
. © @ Mainland China
10,000 41.1% 40.5% 39.5% 37.8% FEIRE
Hong Kong, Macau and other markets
&8 RFREMTS
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
1HFY 2HFY
YoY change YoY change
BBEE BBEE
E¥xF T®EF
Revenue (HK$ million) EXB(ABERL) 1HFY2018 2HFY2018 1HFY2019 2HFY2019 El4-2(4 El>4--X(4
Mainland China A i 14,944 21,860 18,022 24410 4 206% a11.7%
Hong Kong, Macau and B ORFIREMTIS
other markets 9,810 12,542 11,681 12548 4 19.1% 0.0%
Overall mee 24,754 34,402 29,703 36,958 a 20.0% a 7.4%

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FIABKREELEEFR AT



e The Group’'s revenue grew 12.7% in FY2019, supported by °
recovery in both Mainland China and Hong Kong, Macau and

other markets.

e Revenue from Mainland China climbed 15.3% in FY2019, mainly o
fuelled by POS openings. Majority of the openings in FY2019

was franchised, echoing the Group's effort to deepen the
penetration into the lower tier cities.

¢ |n Hong Kong, Macau and other markets, revenue rose 8.4% o

year-on-year in FY2019. A strong growth of 19.1% was recorded
in THFY2019, while the growth subsided to zero in 2HFY2019
as macro uncertainties clouded the consumer sentiment and
the effect of high base kicked in.

Business Review

ESdo]

BEETENMEEE  RFALREMTSENER K
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Revenue by product (excluding jewellery trading and service income from franchisees)

RERESHELE(TLEKREES R INABMRBEKRN)
For the year ended 31 March 8838318 L EE

(HK$ million B&8T)

YoY change
T 2
70,000 4o 65,966 A13.9%
60,000 56,126 57,892 228% a93%
26.9% 50,821
50,000 26.8% 23.7%
25.3%
40,000
30,000 53.3%
\ i 59.4%
55.8% 57.4%
20,000 @ Gem-set jewellery HREEH EEH
10,000 Gold products EE£E R
! 14.4% 12.4% 11.5% 10.9% Platinum/Karat gold products $1$ K& E M
0 5.3% 5.0% 5.7% 6.0% B55% a57% @ Watches 888k
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
% of Revenue SR 1HFY2018 2HFY2018 1HFY2019 2HFY2019
Gem-set jewellery HREEREH 24.2% 23.4% 23.4% 22.2%
Gold products EEEM 57.8% 60.5% 60.5% 61.5%
Platinum/Karat gold products A KEEMR 11.3% 10.6% 10.5% 10.7%
Watches ik 6.7% 5.4% 5.6% 5.5%

e All product categories exhibited positive growth in FY2019, °
among which gold products demonstrated a relatively stronger
performance. As a result, revenue contribution of the gold

products increased by 170 basis points to 61.1%.
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Mainland China

Revenue by operation model

REEBEXTTHEER

For the year ended 31 March ##Z3A31HILLFE
(HK$ million B&#&T)

YoY change
50,000 R
42,432 a15.3%
40,000 37,842 36,804
33,670
31,019
30,000
717% a83%
75.8% 76.3%
o
20,000 78.6% 78.4%
10,000
24.2% 21.4% 21.6% 23.7%
0
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

In Mainland China, our retail revenue represents sales from self-
operated POS, e-commerce and other direct channels, while
wholesale revenue represents sales to franchisees and
provision of services to franchisees.

Revenue in Mainland China rose 15.3% in FY2019. On a
constant exchange rate basis, revenue was up by 16.1% during
the financial year.

Wholesale revenue jumped 37.9% as more franchised POS
were opened in FY2019 while we deepened our reach in the
lower tier and county level cities. Those franchised POS in
county level cities were operated under sell-in model where
sales is recognised when products are delivered to our
franchisees. For the rest, which making up the majority, are
under consignment. We retain inventory ownership until sales
transactions are completed with retail consumers, upon which
wholesale revenue is recognised.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A
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EERNZE UTEHBETKHEERSAT - H i
REFEHARE  MXHTRE SRR B LEEE -



Hong Kong, Macau and other markets

Revenue by operation model RZEEXENDHEEE

For the year ended 31 March ##Z3A31HILLFE
(HK$ million B&#&T)

30,000 YoY change
26,435 El:4--314
24,229 28.4%
25,000 22,021 2235
20,226
20,000
15,000
5
- 95.3% 92.3% 952%  a11.8%
10,000 95.4%
5,000
o 1.8% 4.7% 4.6% 7.7%
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

e |In Hong Kong, Macau and other markets, our retail revenue
represents sales from self-operated POS, e-commerce and
other direct channels, while wholesale revenue represents sales
to franchisees, sales to retailers and sales from jewellery
trading.

e Retail revenue expanded by 11.8% year-on-year in FY2019

thanks to a healthy SSSG as market recovered.

e \Wholesale revenue, on the other hand, dropped by 31.9% year-
on-year due to a reduced sales in jewellery trading which led to
a decline in revenue contribution by 290 basis points in FY2019.

Business Review

ESdo]

Tt AFIRAMBTIS

0@ Retail B8
Wholesale #t 3%

e RER RFLHEMME  RANTELXEER
BHEZ2ZEH ETAKMHEBERRENEE
B MEtBE2XBARANERBEEER D H
BHEERANKEREEINHEERE -

° 2019 MFE - XBRMISERMBKBIBRENRE
HERE  TEEERETRFLN11.8% -

o H—JE - H2019FREEUREBRSHER TR
HEEEERFTIE31.9%  HEEBARMAED
290 A& F -
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50 Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEWEDN
SSSG FIEHERER
Group #=H

SSSG by major market BREEWIZEINHEAEHEER

26.0%
23.0%

17.4%

11.4% 13.0%
4%

° 9.1%
T 5.2% °
9.0% 7 o 5.7%
. ./6.8%\\./.
5.4% 5.0% 0.7%
3.8% .
\.AO% —e- Mainland China FEI it
7.4% Hong Kong and Macau &8 & &P
1Q 20 30 4Q 10 2Q 3Q 4Q
FY2018 FY2019
FY2018 FY2019
SSS volume
SSSG SSSG growth
FEHEER EEHEER FEEHEER
Mainland China PR A a8.0% a 3.4% v 3.3%
Hong Kong and Macau EFEHE MR a 10.2% a 8.7% a 1.3%

e The recovery track of SSSG in both Mainland China and Hong o FEAMNUEREBLRMNREHESERI NA

Kong and Macau, commenced since 2HFY2017, extended into 2017 R FE T FRBEMNERADUR—ELE
1HFY2019. Yet, a weaker performance amongst both markets BE2019MMEE L F - AT - 2019 EE
was seen during 2HFY2019 against volatile macro backdrop. THFNERBEERERAKRE  EMATMHEHE
With a tougher comparison base, the momentum of Hong Kong REEHZD - AHBREHERENERLT  BBR
and Macau was softer than that of Mainland China. SRPIEIE RB) T KA BRI o

e SSS in Mainland China went up by 3.4% in FY2019, mainly o 20190 FEANMMREEHEERI4%
driven by ASP increase. SSS volume growth remained muted as FEXFHEBLAMTH - AEHEERTER
customer traffic may have been diverted to online channels. MEBAR EREMBMNE - STARMOETFEHS
Including our e-commerce business, Mainland China SSS X% PEAMHREHEENERBEREEZ2.4% -
volume decline narrowed to 2.4% and SSSG would be 3.0%. EEHEREANA3.0% °

e Hong Kong and Macau delivered a SSSG of 8.7% in FY2019, o 20190 E - BARRFIMSETHEERIEE
backed by both ASP and volume growth. BRALE  ERJEHEEER8.7%

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEARBHRELEB AR QT



Business Review

¥ ERE
Mainland China o 5] 3t
SSSG of major products FEERMREHEEER
16.1%
4.8% 5 0
1 13.6% 10.8% 1% 13.5%
8.1%
3.3%
° -1.4% -1.4% ° -
° ° 7.7% ° 1.0% 4% 19
\.O//SS% 0% o 0.1%
109 -e- Gem-set jewellery BRE EHR E 8
o Gold products E4E S
10 20 30 40 10 20 30 40
FY2018 FY2019
FY2019 FY2018
SSS volume
SSSG growth Same Store ASP Same Store ASP™
FEHEER FEHEER BEFHEE EEFEEED
Gem-set jewellery REER B v 1.4% v 1.6% HK$6,700 HK$6,600
Gold products HLEM a6.2% v 6.2% HK$4,400 HK$3,900
Platinum/Karat gold products e KEE®R v 0.8% a23% HK$1,700 HK$1,700
Watches Bk a4.7% v 6.6% HK$16,300 HK$14,600
Overall raw a 3.4% v 3.3%

(1) Same Store ASP on FY2019 Same Store basis

In Mainland China, SSSG was generally supported by gold
products which delivered a growth of 6.2% in FY2019.

Gold products ASP was lifted by 13.2% largely due to an
increase in the average weight per gold product sold during the
financial year. The success of CTF ® HUA Collection also played
its part. The average international gold price depreciated by
1.8% year-on-year during the year.

Gem-set jewellery SSS declined marginally by 1.4% in FY2019.
Yet, its respective RSV grew healthily by 7.7%. Same Store
ASP of gem-set jewellery increased slightly to HK$6,700.

SSSG of watches also remained resilient at 4.7% as ASP
improved to HK$16,300 in FY2019.

(1)

B/ 49 & (B LA 2019 B B FE O [R) i fE L

R E R B R REHER20198 R
EH186.2% H7HE - B AT SO REHE
#E -

20190 HFE - TBEBNRDERCERFHEN
BRI ELESOTFHEELI13.2% - T
KEERFII ORI EIET RO » 479 -
B F S (B T 1.8% ¢

20190 REFE - RESR BN F/EHSEM TR
1.4% 81 - HEMANZEERRERT.7% < K
TR E AR E T EER MM EAZE6,700%8
ﬁ: °

20190 R BHRAEHERTHEEAZE
16,3008 TTMERA4.7% * BERBE N o
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Hong Kong and Macau EEREM
SSSG of major products FEERMREHEEER
40.7%
30.9%
206%  222% oo L
° 8%
8.5% / \,/ 26.4%
=2 15.6%
) -5.6% 2.6%
7.4% ‘
o -0.9% o
4.4% -2.3% —_ o
82 -10.4% -o- Gem-set jewellery BRE EZH E &
Gold products £ E R
1Q 20 3Q 40 1Q 2Q 3Q 40
FY2018 FY2019
FY2019 FY2018
SSS volume
SSSG growth Same Store ASP Same Store ASP"
BEHEER BEHEBE R BE P EE BEFHEED
Gem-set jewellery KRB ERE v 0.8% a 5.4% HK$11,000 HK$11,600
Gold products BELEM a 14.4% a25% HK$8,200 HK$7,300
Platinum/Karat gold products A KEEMR a 3.8% v 2.0% HK$1,800 HK$1,700
Watches Eix a52% a6.1% HK$57,500 HK$58,000
Overall wRam a 8.7% a 1.3%
(1) Same Store ASP on FY2019 Same Store basis (1) REFHEEA2019 8 BFEERNREEERE

e Gold products delivered a SSSG of 14.4% in FY2019, boosted °
by both volume and ASP increase. Same Store ASP increased
by 11.6% in FY2019 due to an increase in the average weight
per product sold.

e A healthy SSS volume growth of 5.4% was recorded for gem- °
set jewellery in Hong Kong and Macau during FY2019.
However, ASP trend of gem-set jewellery had turned negative
since 2QFY2019 as consumer sentiment in high-end segment
weakened owing to the deteriorated macroeconomic
environment.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A

2019M BAFR  EESERMBEATHEBAEF
B SR8 14.4% 1 FLE 4 B0 & -
2019F B MREESHESNTFHESNE
MR T BT 11.6% -

D01OF B/ - B TR PIHE SRR B 580 L 8
B4H(85.4% HIRFEE - A - B 2019H KT
E-FENG  RREERALE  HBTERE
REBBEL RERERRE GO THEEST

BB



Business Review

¥ e
Mainland China Business chE R #h Y TS
POS movement by store brand™” — Mainland China ZE&HREEI ST ELEE — fEAH
During FY2019
As at " 31.3.2017 31.3.2018 2019 B E 31.3.2019
Total Total Addition Reduction Net Total
st st i > SRR st
CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY REAEBHKHE 2,118 2,317 603 (117) 486 2,803
CTF WATCH ARiEE & 117 106 11 (4) 7 113
T MARK T MARK - - 4 - 4 4
HEARTS ON FIRE HEARTS ON FIRE 8 6 1 (4) (3) 3
SOINLOVE SOINLOVE - 9 19 (1) 18 27
MONOLOGUE MONOLOGUE 3 1 30 (3) 27 38

(1) SIS and CIS excluded

RSV by product RERESHBERE

(1) TREESERENEE

4.9%
11.9% -
22.8%
5.2%
12.2% 24.0% RSV YoY change
FY2018 FY2019 TEERLLRL
) [ Gem-set jewellery Bk 8% & £ a7.7%
Gold products &% & a 16.5%
Platinum/Karat gold products $4 K £ E & a 10.9%
58.7% o Watches $# 8% a74%
60.4%
° Overall 88 a 13.3%
RSV by channel ESHEREEFHTEE
4.5%
5.2%
RSV YoY change
FY2018 FY2019 TEERER
[ ) [ ) CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY AR@EH%E a 13.6%
Other store brands®? H ff J& £ & h& @ a 6.6%
E-commerce® BT %@ A 13.7%
Overall 288 a 13.3%
(2)  CTF WATCH, T MARK, HEARTS ON FIRE, SOINLOVE and MONOLOGUE included (2) BIEEARRIES © TMARK » HEARTS ON FIRE + SOINLOVE 2 MONOLOGUE
(3)  Major platforms included Chow Tai Fook e-shop, Tmall, JD.com, Vipshop; online order distribution B) FBFAOEAARMAKERS XH ZE HRE BFEEKLE
excluded (i.e. routing online orders to POS for delivery service) RTEDR (B4R EATE R R T T EHUREF R RS
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The following analyses focus on CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY
POS which contributed approximately 90% of the RSV in Mainland
China:

CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY POS

RSV and POS by tier of cities EREHRFNESTHTEERTES

17.2%

ARBAREZEHETEAMZTEELDN 0% @ AT H
ERZEBIEDN

EAXEHRETEE

24.3%
11.3%
FY2019
37.4% % of POS % of RSV RSV YoY change Net POS movement
TEYELE TEEMSER TEERLEEL SEUFEH
[ Tier | cities —#R3m a 13.7% a50
51.4% Tier Il cities — &R ™ a 11.5% a 185
Tier Il cities and others a 19.0% a 251
58.4% =T REAM

e |n order to broaden our presence and extend market share in
the county level cities, we have been leveraging franchisees to
deepen our market penetration efficiently and effectively in
these areas. As such, the pace of expansion in Tier Il and lower
tier cities was expedited in FY2019. Net openings reached 251
POS during the financial year.

e Coupled with various growth drivers such as progressive
urbanisation and infrastructural development, RSV growth in
Tier Il cities and others reached 19.0% year-on-year and it
outperformed Tier | and Il cities during FY2019. Its contribution
increased to 24.3% in FY2019 compared to 23.0% in FY2018.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEARBHRELEB AR QT

o RMERBMNEBEE  BEARBRAMBENTIZG
B B —EEDNEBARRETEFHNTA
REHFNEHLNTHZEX - Bt - HMR 2019
PBEFEREINRT 2R EERBRTOEE LK - 1
2019 A RS B MR FIEE R 261 (AE S -

o MEBMB(LBESHEREERBEERZERY S -
=RREAMBMT R 2019 B E RN T EEKRFIE
REIQOR T BY -—RE_FWH- EER A
2018 L F E#H23.0% LA E 2019 L F EHY
24.3% -



Business Review

¥ EIRE
RSV and POS by operation model #ZZ2EERZPWTEERTEY
37.7%
FY2019
% of POS % of RSV RSV YoY change Net POS movement
TENGEE TEEMGR TEEFLZE TERTRH
) [ Self-operated & & a74% a 111
Franchised fn & a 25.8% a 375
RSV and POS by self-operated model ZEEZHEAZSHTEERTED
5.7%
37.3%
FY2019
% of POS % of RSV RSV YoY change Net POS movement
TEHELE TEEMNGL SEERLE#E SENTFRD
[ ] () Self-operated (Department store) a 0.5% v 15
40.5% HE(BHEAT)
Self-operated (Shopping mall) a 24.3% a 129
BE (ByHL)
Self-operated (Standalone store) v 11.4% w3
HE(HEEE)
e In FY2019, our self-operated POS at shopping mall o HARRHMNEMFLFEZSWEARKOERRN

demonstrated an encouraging RSV growth of 24.3% as
modernised shopping malls continued to be an attraction among
the more affluent and sophisticated customers.

e \We consolidated a net of 18 POS in standalone and department °

stores during FY2019.

B - 2019 BEE - SRR RBY DO
HETEH TEESF243% R - KES
Eidi

K209 RFE - RIVFEE T 18EFEE KL
REERARNTES -
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Self-operated CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY POS EEZRAXEGRETEY
RSV per store by store age REHEITNEBETEE
140.0%
124.3%
120.0%
94.8%
100.0%
86.4% A
FY2019 RSV per Same Store:
80.0% 71.7% HK$22.6 million®
2019&3&&%@%@@?%@ :
60.0% 51.1% 226EBET
40.0%
20.0%
0.0%
Less than 2 years'” 2-4 years 4-6 years 6-8 years 8 years or more Total
Vil 2B4F AZ6F 6Z8F 8FHL @st
POS opening date BEEEH  4/2017-3/2019 4/2015-3/2017 4/2013-3/2015 4/2011-3/2013 8/2011 or before
pening 5 3/20115REAAT
POS TEZ 335 236 200 280 453 1,504
% of POS ZEE{hLL 22.3% 15.7% 13.3% 18.6% 30.1% 100.0%
@ Ratio of annual RSV per store to RSV per Same Store (1) For POS of age less than 1 year, RSV is adjusted on an annualised basis
BEEETEEEREEYTEEZLLA) ERTRIENTES 2 SHEERFLEERE
(2)  Value-added tax (“VAT") included
BERER
Average quarterly sales F¥FEHEE
(HK$ million B&%T)
33.7%
[ ]
31.8%
26.3%
7.8
. 23.4%
sz % . 7.1 FY2018 average quarterly SSS®
20.2%/___/21 o 2018 U F BRI FEREHED
° 9%
19.9% 59 5.4 [ ) FY2019 average quarterly SSS
o 49 52 201981 B E PSR EHE
45 2 FY2018 quarterly SSS
contribution to annual SSS®
2018 M FEEEREHERY
FEREHEENTE
-o- FY2019 quarterly SSS
contribution to annual SSS
20190 N F EEER S HEEE
FEREHEFHN T B
1Q 2Q 3Q 40

(3)  SSS on FY2019 Same Store basis
e Average SSS contribution for 2HFY2019 was approximately
57%, generally similar to our normal seasonality.

e 4Q, being our peak season as driven by festive occasions such
as Chinese New Year and Valentine's Day, usually accounts for
the highest quarterly SSS contribution.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A

(3)  FESHELA2019 B BF B R R G EE%E

o 2019 E T FHSNFHREHELRF

REHELE7%

o FMEFEBEEREBHFRBA

ERELENFHERRES -
MEHERE W8

HAWET  ZFEBFERMAREHETERD

MEEER -
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E-commerce business EFEBES
RSV by product REREPHTEE
0.1%
1.7%
20.8% l
| ggo
0.0% &8%
19.2%
FY2018 FY2019
[ ) [ ) Gem-set jewellery Tk 8 Hi & £
72.0% Gold products E€E R
67.4% Platinum/Karat gold products $1& K& E M
. o Watches ###k
FY2019 FY2018
RSV YoY change ASP ASP
ZEERLEL FIHEE FHEE
Gem-set jewellery IREERE a 51.4% HK$1,600 HK$1,500
Gold products HLEM a 6.0% HK$1,500 HK$1,600
Platinum/Karat gold products AL KEE®R a 22.4% HK$800 HK$900
Overall w®mas a 13.2% HK$1,300 HK$1,400
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E-commerce business performance EFHEFERBIHRIE

FY2019

RSV T&£fE ASP EHERF

FY2019

" 4.8%

HKS1,300

FY2018: HK$1,400

FY2019

— 13.6%

of respective RSV {5EFE&{E of respective retail sales volume {5iHBASHE

E-commerce platforms Unique daily visitors"

EFEBHFEE FHROAEE—FTEFHE"

80+ |, 487,000

) Source: Chow Tai Fook e-shop, Tmall and JD.com (1)
) Source: Official Sina Weibo, Tencent Weibo and WeChat accounts (2)

=

e Qur e-commerce business delivered a RSV growth of 13.2% in °
FY2019, a slower growth relative to FY2018 as a result of a high
base of comparison.

e Higher-margin gem-set jewellery and platinum/karat gold °
products delivered a remarkable RSV growth of 51.4% and
22.4%, respectively.

e Contribution of the e-commerce business to the RSV in o
Mainland China was maintained at 4.8% during the financial
year. In terms of retail sales volume, its share to Mainland
China's operations further expanded to 13.6% in FY2019, with
12.8% and 0.8% of the contribution coming from e-commerce
platforms and online order distribution, respectively.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A

Number of followers?

BAE A

6,986,000+

BUERIR - AARAMEEEE KRR
BURRR - FORME - AR REETRP

R0 BFE BRMMETABEHERS
132%MZTEEER  HBERLHRSMEN2018
MREERIE -

ENEESMHKEEREHLAS KEERAS
RBIEE1E51.4% N 22.4% HWEESEEEE -

RAMBFE  EFEIBEBETERNENTEE
HINA8% - B HE  EFHBEBKR2019
FHRFEEFRAMHOETE-STHE136% &

EFREBFEI1E12.8% MR LFTENELH0.8% °



Hong Kong, Macau and Other Markets Business
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FE  AMIREMBTISHERS

POS movement by store brand™ — Hong Kong, Macau and other markets Z/EfREESHNETEHREH — F8  RFIREMHES

During FY2019

As at i 31.3.2017 31.3.2018 2019 B 31.3.2019
Total Total Addition Reduction Net Total

Fohy Fohy B W R Fob

CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY R XELRE 122 122 12 (4) 8 130
Hong Kong B/A 83 80 3 (3) - 80
Macau YR 19 19 - - - 19
Other markets Hibmig 20 23 9 (1) 8 31
T MARK T MARK - - 1 - 1 1
HEARTS ON FIRE HEARTS ON FIRE 13 14 1 - 1 15

(1) SIS and CIS excluded (1) AREEFERENERE

e For CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY, we opened a net of 8 POS e BMAXRBUKREMmMES - HMR2019M BRFEFEH M

in FY2019 in other markets. Retail network in Hong Kong and
Macau was stable at 99 POS.

ARBRIE A9 ETEH -

M5 ERRSETER - MEE RN TER/R

e Furthermore, we opened our debut T MARK specialty store and o AN RPN BFEEESHAZEM
our first HEARTS ON FIRE POS in Hong Kong in FY2019.

Hong Kong and Macau business
RSV by product REREFTHETEE

6.0%
9.0%

6.4%
9.5%

58.4%

61.5%

23.5%

T MARKHFIELA KR EEHEARTS ON FIREZ&E &, -

FERAMER

RSV YoY change
FY2018 FY2019 TEEBL S
o [ Gem-set jewellery 2R 28z & £ a 1.8%
Gold products &% & a 17.6%
Platinum/Karat gold products $i4 K £ & & a49%
() Watches $# 8 a55%
Overall #82 a 11.6%
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Hong Kong and Macau industry performance it RRFIHITERIR

FY2019

Retail sales of jewellery industry in Hong Kong"
EHEGEEHEREY

- 1.0%

YoY change
B4 214

Our Hong Kong and Macau performance #H{f1&# & 2FIEIRIR

FY2019

Customer traffic at POS
TEHERE

L 4.8%

YoY change
Blg 217

(1) Value of retail sales of jewellery, watches and clocks, and valuable gifts in Hong Kong according
to Census and Statistics Department of the HKSAR Government

(2)  Source: Commerce and Economic Development Bureau of the HKSAR Government and Macao
Statistics and Census Service

RSV and POS by geography #ZHEEISHTEERTER

% of POS % of RSV
ZEMMGLE ZEEMGR

Number of Mainland visitors?

A E A E?
Hong Kong &% Macau 2F3
al67% al16.4%
YoY change YoY change
El:4 14 B4 £(2

RSV settled by China UnionPay, Alipay,
WeChat Pay or RMB
VhEIRES « X4 HE » MEXNIAREEEZTEE

FY2019

— 46.5%

) KRWEH ERREECKNEENTEEHEMEE RABTBENT
K& AT At At i
(2)  BEEER: EERNTREAEREEERRERFIAAEESR

FY2019
RSV YoY change Net POS movement
ZEERL#E ZEHFES

() (] Hong Kong &% a 11.8% a2
Macau &9 a92% -

e Customer traffic saw a positive growth of 4.8% year-on-year in
FY2019, despite the fact that the growth softened in the second
half of the financial year.

e The percentage of RSV settled by China UnionPay, Alipay,
WeChat Pay or RMB to the total RSV of Hong Kong and Macau
market, a proxy for sales contribution from Mainland tourists,
lifted from 44.6% in FY2018 to 46.5% in FY2019.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FIABKREELEEFR AT

° 2010MMEE  ERERFHBLB%HWIEELRK
HETFFRIERAAE -

o DAREIRE XNE MEXNIARBEEZT
EEEFELEMTSETEEMNA DL (REK
B EAMRENEE TR M2018 M B FEH
44.6% FE 2019 B FEH46.5% ©



Average quarterly sales F¥EEHEE
(HKS million B&#T)

30.6%

25.3%

Business Review

ESdo]

27.4%

SO
22.8% ° 699,
[ ]

9
22.3% 65.0
19.7% 58.4 60.6

52.7
47.4

58.1 59.1

25.6%

FY2018 average quarterly SSS®
2018 N FEFHEERIEHES

[ ) FY2019 average quarterly SSS
20198 N FE P FERIEHE

FY2018 quarterly SSS
contribution to annual SSS®
20188 N FE S E R EHERY
FEREHEFENTE

-o- FY2019 quarterly SSS
contribution to annual SSS
20198 N FE SRS EREE
FEREHEENEE

1Q 2Q 3Q

(3)  SSSon FY2019 Same Store basis

e SSS contribution of 2HFY2019 reduced to 52% from 58% in
2HFY2018 as the unsteady macro environment deterred
consumer demand during the period, in particular during 3Q.

e 3Q, being our peak season as driven by Christmas and our
annual mega sales, usually accounts for the highest quarterly
SSS contribution for the Hong Kong and Macau market.

(3)

40

[FIJE S5 LA 2019 B B RO [R5 1 2L

2019 MFERE T+ FHESNREHEE2FRE
HEZADLH2018HBFETFFM68%EE
52% - WLV ERLERE=FEXITEBOR
BRERFNFZEMBAK T HEENTR -
E_FEEAERHRRANFEANRBIES - &
BRMANES  ZFTEBREBHEBRRFITISRE
HEPRSNFTERM -
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Financials
B 56 A 3

Despite macro uncertainties in 2HFY2019, our underlying competencies
remained strong and our profitability demonstrated continuous
improvement over the past three financial years.

EE20190BMEETHERMEETAMREE - ERMFNERTELRARY
EBRE=ETBFENBAFERESER

Profitability BAEEN
Overall #g& Core operating profit? of major reportable segment

ZU2HRSBASHEBES B

For the year ended 31 March #Z3H3101LFE For the year ended 31 March Z3A310 L&

(HK$ million B&ET)

6,000
28.5% 27.9% 5,004
° 27.2% o 5,000 4267
4,000 3,575
20.1% 18.5% 18.0% 2,942
0% 3,000 2,414
2,026 1,968
2,000 <
9.1% 9.5% 10.5% 1,074 1:339 1,042
1000 1549 o5 11853 796 2,062
) os 543 926
2017 2018 2019 2017 2018 2019

-e~- Adjusted gross profit margin” Core operating profit margin® @ Mainland China (2HFY) Hong Kong, Macau and other markets (2HFY)

RRABENENZRD FELE R R PERE (REETHE) &8 BAREMATS BBREET¥EF)
Selling and distribution costs and general and administrative @ Mainland China (1HFY) Hong Kong, Macau and other markets (1HFY)
expenses (“SG&A") as a % to revenue FER GERFEL¥E) BE - RFREMTS GERFEEL¥EE)

SHERDHERAUR —RRTHAX ((HERITHRAX )
EXRBEAIL

Mainland China E it
For the year ended 31 March B#Z3831HLLFE

Hong Kong, Macau and other markets & + BF R H fh 7715
For the year ended 31 March B#Z3831HLLFE

o
297% 28.7% 28.8% 26.7% ) 26.3%
° 24.8% Ny
22.0% °

19.3% 18.7%

18.9% 17.9% 17.6%
o, o, 11.8% 8.1%

11.5% 11.6% ° 5.3% 6.0% ’
2017 2018 2019 2017 2018 2019

Adjusted gross profit and the corresponding margin, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of
unrealised loss (gain) on gold loans, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more
complete understanding of its operational performance and the underlying trend of its businesses
Core operating profit and the corresponding margin, a non-IFRS measure, being the aggregate of
adjusted gross profit and other income, less SG&A, which the Company believes is useful in
gaining a more complete understanding of its operational performance and the underlying trend of
its core business

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FIABKREELEEFR AT
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37911
Group £=HE

1HFY 2HFY
YoY change YoY change
HREE HREE
by Toke
(HK$ million) (BE%R) 1HFY2018 2HFY2018 1HFY2019 2HFY2019 G142 Btk 2L
Revenue gEm 24,754 34,402 29,703 36,958 a 20.0% a 74%
Adjusted gross profit BB HEN 7,097 9,022 8,338 10,263 a 17.5% a 13.7%
Adjusted gross profit margin BRI B F R 28.7% 26.2% 28.1% 27.8% w 0.6%pts a 1.6%pts
BE 5% BE 5%
Other income HeA 186 222 167 229 v 10.2% a 3.1%
SG&A HERTHBAX (4,887) (6,033) (5,517) (6,508) a 12.9% a 7.9%
SG&A as a % to revenue HERITHEZ MG 19.7% 17.5% 18.6% 17.6% w 1.1%pts a 0.1% pts
EERFASM P P
Core operating profit FEEEHET 2,396 3,211 2,989 3,984 a 24.7% a 241%
Core operating profit margin FEEERTFIE 9.7% 9.3% 10.1% 10.8% a 0.4%pts a 1.5% pts

e %  AES &

Core operating profit margin continuously improved over the
past three financial years.

In FY2019, the core operating profit grew strongly by 24.4%
and the corresponding margin improved by 100 basis points.
This was attributable to the increase in adjusted gross profit
margin as well as the benefit of operating leverage.

Among the two segments, Mainland China continued to be our
main profit contributor and accounted for more than 70% of the
Group's core operating profit in FY2019.

TERERNENBE =AU RFERFERTT -

R2019MREFE - TEELHENRHIER24.4%
R B AR S R = I8 EF- 100 B8 F © bt TR
EEROENE EAARRENEERREEED) o

HPIMAREE D Eh - hEAMAEE ST EER
KR - 502019 B BUF B AG A SR Bl = 2L 2 5 M B

1@700/0 °©
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Mainland China ch 5] g 3t
1HFY 2HFY
YoY change  YoY change
HREE HREE
tuE T
(HK$ million) (EEBT) 1HFY2018 2HFY2018 1HFY2019 2HFY2019 Bt &1t Bt &1t
Revenue EERE 14,944 21,860 18,022 24,410 a 20.6% a11.7%
Adjusted gross profit R EOER 4,593 5,980 5,358 6,881 a 16.7% a 15.1%
Adjusted gross profit margin S 1B ) E TR 30.7% 27.4% 29.7% 282% w 1.0%pts a 0.8% pts
ERE ERE
Other income HiplA 131 161 102 151 v 22.3% v 6.6%
SG&A HERTHRAX (2,872) (3,727) (3,398) (4,089) a 18.3% A 9.7%
SG&A as a % to revenue HERTEAZAE 19.2% 17.1% 18.9% 16.8% w 0.3% pts w 0.3% pts
EREES iEpE iEpE
Core operating profit FELEEF 1,853 2,414 2,062 2942 a11.3% A 21.9%
Core operating profit margin FELEHTE 12.4% 11.0% 11.4% 12.1% w 1.0% pts a 1.1% pts
iEpE iEpE

Core operating profit margin demonstrated continuous
improvement across the three financial years. Thanks to
operating leverage, core operating profit margin improved
sequentially from 11.4% in THFY2019 to 12.1% in 2HFY2019.

In FY2019, core operating profit increased by 17.3% and the
corresponding margin grew by 20 basis points.

Adjusted gross profit margin in FY2019 grew slightly by 10 basis
points to 28.8%. Margin by product at retail level improved, yet
it was partially offset by a less favourable product mix and
higher wholesale contribution.

Thanks to adjusted gross profit margin improvement by product
at retail level and operating leverage, core operating profit
growth in 2HFY2019 accelerated by 21.9% and the
corresponding margin grew by 110 basis points.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEARBHRELEB AR QT

FTELEHNER AR BRFEFE L - TER
EENG TEELENETH2019MBFE L¥
FONAREZEFAZ200190 BHFEE T £ F 1
12.1% °

R2019MREFE  T2EZHEMETH17.3% kE
MRFEE N I & 20 [HEF o

R2019 M REFE - KFBENER R 10E 2
FE288% ZEEEAKERI DN ENE
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Hong Kong, Macau and other markets

Financials

BRI

FiE AP IRAMTHS

THFY 2HFY
YoY change  YoY change
HMREE MREE

I T
(HK$ million) (BE@#ER) 1HFY2018 2HFY2018 1HFY2019 2HFY2019 B[4 217 E:%:2(4
Revenue 4] 9,810 12,542 11,681 12,548 a 19.1% a 0.0%
Adjusted gross profit R EOER 2,504 3,042 2,980 3382 4 19.0% a11.2%
Adjusted gross profit margin A 1B ) E TR 25.5% 24.3% 25.5% 27.0% - a27%pts
ERE

Other income H A A 55 61 65 78 4 19.0% a 28.9%
SG&A HERTHRAX (2,016) (2,306) (2,119) (2,419) a51% a 4.9%
SG&A as a % to revenue HERITHES AT 20.5% 18.4% 18.1% 19.3% v 2.4%pts a 0.9% pts
EXERS BEL %  EESE

Core operating profit TELEER 543 796 926 1,042 A 705% a 30.8%
Core operating profit margin FELERFE 55% 6.3% 7.9% 83% a24%pts a 2.0%pts

BEDH AR

Core operating profit increased by 46.9% in FY2019 and the °
corresponding margin demonstrated continuous improvement
across the three financial years. It also improved sequentially

from 5.5% in THFY2018 to 8.3% in 2HFY2019.

In FY2019, adjusted gross profit margin expanded by 150 basis °
points to 26.3% as margin normalised, where there was a one-

off inventory impairment provision made during FY2018, and

the wholesale contribution in FY2019 reduced. Although margin

by product at retail level improved, such impact was offset by a
higher gold product sales mix.

In 2HFY2019, uplift in adjusted gross profit margin, coupled °
with an improvement in SG&A ratio, core operating profit
margin grew strongly by 200 basis points year-on-year

10 8.3%.

R2019MREFE » TREZHMIEMNA6.9% M H
HESNER=EWBRFEFELA HPEH
2018 FE ¥ FHE5% HEBEREZ20198
BEETHFH83% °

K209 BFE - EHERNEMNEMAZER
K- B H EFF150ME 3 F £26.3% © bty R
2018 FE BIE—RIEFERE MK 2019
MBEFEENHBEEHEL - BETEEDRERS
DEVEME LT - TR E S E i S 5 L 0
PSS -

R20190BBERE THF « LRHRELRWENK LT
BNEHERTRAXLEREMNRE  T2EEE
MR E RIFE M 200 A2 FE8.3% °
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Gross profit margin EHE

Unrealised loss (gain) RERESE (Is)
For the year ended 31 March HZ3A31MHLLEE 2017 2018 2019
Gross profit margin E R & 29.2% 27.4% 27.9%
Unrealised loss (gain) on gold loans HEEBERSIREE (KZE) (0.7)% (0.2)% 0.0%
Adjusted gross profit margin CRERMNENE 28.5% 27.2% 27.9%

e Unrealised loss (gain) for the year represents the net effect of (i)
the reversal of the loss (gain) recorded due to the timing
difference in recognising the effect of long and short position in
gold when we take a snapshot position at the end of the
previous financial year; and (i) the loss (gain) arising from such
timing difference at the end of the current financial year.

e \We use gold loans (short position in gold) for economic hedge
purpose to mitigate the financial impact of the gold price
fluctuations in our gold inventories (long position). While the
long-term effect of long and short positions in gold is expected
to net out each other through the sales of gold products, a loss
(gain) may arise due to a short-term timing difference between
the time when a loss (gain) on gold loans is recorded in the cost
of goods sold and the time when sales of hedged gold
inventories are recognised, when we take a snapshot position
at the end of the reporting period.

Changes in adjusted gross profit margin £& & &R EFIEEE
For the year ended 31 March Z3A31R L&

29.0%
28.0% 0.6% 27.9%
5 0.0%
27.2% 0.5% 0.6% °
27.0%
26.0%
25.0%
2018 2019

e At group level, adjusted gross profit margin increased by 70
basis points when compared to FY2018. The relatively lower
margin in FY2018 was affected by a one-off inventory
impairment provision made during that financial year.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEARBHRELEB AR QT

FRARBRER (W) 35 () BER E—EPBFE
TENEARBESHRRRRFECRBEMESL
BB R (Yam) B (i) N8 AT BT I R A E A - (HIARRE
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BPMAESER(E2RR) REERR B &R
EaehFE (R BREBNMBZE - #R
BEHARHRSRYERNBEEHERSERER
EHREE  EEREHRNFERAME - 5t AH
ERANESEEER(RE) B SRS FED
HEZHAEAREMEEE  KMAEELER
(Yzm) e

Changes in product mix in retail business
TEEBNERASED

Changes in gross profit margin by product
in retail business
ZEEBREREINENZZS

Impact from wholesale business
HEBEBHTE

Effect of impairment of inventories

FERENTE

REBEER  ERBROENETR2018HBFE
EFH70ER T - 2018 8 B F E EF K BRI 52 3%
MHFEMMEN — Rt FERERENTE -



e At retail level, benefitting from our differentiated product
offerings, gross profit margin by product improved, yet it was
partially offset by a less favourable product mix.

e |mpact from wholesale business has minimal impact to the
adjusted gross profit margin as the wholesale margin
improvement was offset by the increased wholesale
contribution.

London gold price R¥&E
(US$ per ounce :tE#7)

1,400 |

1,350

Financials

BRI

e REEEH XERBRMEAZE(CNEREE &
EmBDWENEFM LI WSO TREERE
B RMIBAOPTHCEY ©

e MEXBNYEHEHERNENXZEHEEE
i e T A HE B TR R B THIB AL B E T 'R
EINFTHEH

Logdon gold price
CE G

Average of T-120/T-150 days'"
T-120/T-150 K F3{E"

[
[
' |
| M
1,200 [
[
[
1,150 ‘
[
1,100 ‘
1.4.2017 1.4.2018

(1) Average of T-120/T-150 days refers to the average gold price of previous 120 or 150 days on
rolling basis, being a proxy of the average price of our hedged gold inventories. As gold inventories
turnover lengthened in FY2019, average of T-120 days and T-150 days was used for FY2018 and
FY2019, respectively

SG&A

SG&A by reportable segment %] 2R 5 &R 85 B985 & R T H B X

For the year ended 31 March B#Z3A310LLE&E
(HK$ million B&87T)

YoY change
14,000 El=4-214
12,025 a10.1%
12,000
10,920
10,307
10,000
62.3% A 13.5%
8,000 56.8% 60.4%
6,000
4,000
2,000 43.2% 39.6%
0
2017 2018 2019

31.3.2019

(1) T-120/T-150 K FHEHEBEBMI20RK 150K FH S HE - A
REBRMEHHELHFROFHMEIE - AR 2019 BFENH ST E
AT R 2018 MBFE K 2019 M 4F 5 BI6E A T-120 K % T-150 %
Fi{E

SHERITHRX

© @ Mainland China
HRE] R i

Hong Kong, Macau and other markets
B8 BAREMTS
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EERE

FMELD A

SG&A to revenue ratio $HERTBZIHEEHEILE

For the year ended 31 March #3831 L EE

(HK$ million B&ET)

20.1% 5 .
° 1o 18.0% YoY change
14,000 ° change
12,000 12,025 410.1%
' 10,920
10,307
10,000
0
6.9% 6.7%
8,000
6,000 3.3% 3.2%
Y 0
4,000 3.6% 2.7% 2.3% v 1.5%
' 9 0.9% 1.1% a35.7%
1% 1.4% 1.3% o529,
2,000 5%
3.8% 3.7% 3.6% 29.0%
0
2017 2018 2019

(1) Other SG&A mainly represented bank charges incurred for sales transaction settlement, royalty
fees for the sales of licensed products, certificate expenses, packing materials and utilities

e Mainland China segment contributed over half of SG&A over

the past three financial years.

e SG&A expenses increased by 10.1% to HK$12,025 million in
FY2019 as most of our major SG&A components increased,
except for rental expenses which recorded a 1.5% decrease.

e Advertising and promotion expenses increased by 35.7% and
its corresponding ratio to revenue normalised to 1.1% as more

resources have been put on increasing our brands’ exposure

and lifting brand equity.

e Thanks to operating leverage, SG&A ratio fell by 50 basis points
10 18.0%.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEARBHRELEB AR QT

—o— As a % of respective revenue FT{hAEBE XA AL

(1)

Staff costs 8 TR A

Concessionaire fees EHES A

Rental expenses &R

Advertising and promotion expenses E& R S &%
Depreciation and amortisation 78 [ # 84

Other SG&A" HAth4E RITHBAZ™M

HHERTEAXIZERHERSREELNRTTEE  HER
REROEFER FER QRWHNRKER

B P 3 43 BB 34 1 = 1L T 4 A 9 08 TR AT BB
S HRIB— o

K201 BEE - S48 RITRMZEM10.1% 5
12,026 FEETT « 1 Th R B B8 BT RE S
TEEAEA  EESHETE5% -

MR R AT % 8 B 00 QAR RIR T e
B SRS AN G5.7% R
B KRB EE1.1% BIER KT -

KR
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Major SG&A components
Staff costs and related expenses

Mainland China thE A

For the year ended 31 March BiZ3A31RL&FE
(HK$ million B&#8T)

7.1% 6.9% 6.7%

YoY change
h Eil=4-214
3,000 2,852 A11.7%
2,553
2,500
2,193
2,000 37.4%
29.8%
1,500
1,000
66.8% 59.3%
500
0 3.4% 3.2% A 36% a23.7%
2017 2018 2019
Hong Kong and Macau & &P
For the year ended 31 March 238318 1LFE
(HK$ million B&8T)
2,000 7.0% 6.8% 6.9% YoY change
o ° . At
1,551 A13.9%
1,500
1,307 1.362
33.9% 39.2%
1,000
500 58.4% 54.6%
B 7.7% 6.1% B 68% a257%
2017 2018 2019

Employees in production function excluded
) Other staff related expenses mainly included staff messing, medical care, educational expenses, etc.

=

e Staff costs and related expenses in both reportable segments
increased in FY2019. We aim for a balance between fixed and
variable portion to incentivise performance.

e |n Mainland China, increase in staff costs was generally in line
with business growth.

e In Hong Kong and Macau, such increment was largely
attributable to the additional headcount for experienced
specialists in various corporate functions so as to strengthen
the Group's capabilities for long-term sustainable growth.

Financials

37911
HERITBHRXMWEEIER
ST A RHEFRARXZ
FY2019
08 20,320
@ Average number of employees!”  YoY change
FHETHAD Eil=4-214

As a % of respective revenue FT{5 1B 2B ALt
Variable staff costs & & T K74

Fixed staff costs EE & T &4

@ Other staff related expenses? E b S T BRI X

FY2019

08 3,190
®

(1)
(2)

Average number of employees!"
FHETHED

YoY change
Eil>4-214

As a % of respective revenue FT{hAHBE E£BEA AL
Variable staff costs FZ &) & T K74

Fixed staff costs EE & T K4

@ Other staff related expenses® Eftb & T BRI X

TRELERFINET

HBTHMAXTERFEEIRRRY BERNAKSERS

R2019MRFE - MET2BYMHETRAR
HERAXEE LT - RMEEREERFBHHS 2

MES T - OSBRI -

R BA - B TAARIEIEER - EERKERIE
e
REBRRP - BIRAENFEFEAZEDSEIE
HEETEHRNES  UNREENENARENR
1B RAIFLER -
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Concessionaire fees and rental expenses HESRRELEX

Mainland China $E&it

For the year ended 31 March #Z3831H1LEE
(HK$ million B&&T)

8.7% 8.5% o YoY change
. ° 8:3% Atk
2,000 1,872 1,892 Aa11%
1,700
1,500
1,000
500
—e— As a % of respective revenue FT{EHERIE 2B DLt
o Concessionaire fees EHED &
2017 2018 2019

Hong Kong and Macau &t & &[]
For the year ended 31 March BiZ3A31HLLFE
(HK$ million B&8T)

. YoY change
8.2& Bl:4:-214
N']%
2,000 — 4%
°
1,524
1,500
1,253
1,146 v 8.5%
1,000
500
—e— Asa % of respective revenue FT{EHERIZE £ E DLt
0 Rental expenses &%
2017 2018 2019

¢ In Mainland China, concessionaire fees increased by 1.1% as o RABEIRNM  EESKEHE EAMLEMIA% -

sales improved. The slight decline in concessionaire fees ratio EEIKLELEME NI EAREEAEERNEES
was mainly due to the shift of sales mix towards gold products, EREE-—RRENTSEME -

which are generally subject to lower rates.

¢ In Hong Kong and Macau, rental expenses fell by 8.5% and e RBEBRAF 20190 BKFE NS X IR

rental expenses ratio shrank by 120 basis points to 4.9% in 8.5% MMAEHL LK TR I120MEE FE49% * £
FY2019, which was mainly attributable to the effect of the ZHR20I8H B FE/EHERRBIEMTRNT
renewals and closures in FY2018. We achieved an average 2o ZMR2019VBFEERNE S FHRIELY
reduction on rental renewal of approximately 3% in FY2019. 3% °

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEARBHRELEB AR QT



Other income, other gains and losses and other expenses

Financials

BRI

Hip - Rl RESELR R 52

2017 2018 2019

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million YoY change
For the year ended 31 March HZEZ3HABMHLEFE BHEBT BEBERT BEER El=4- 114
Other income HAb A 330 408 396 v 3.0%
Other gains and losses Hiblzs R E51E (286) 342 (276) N/ATEHR
Other expenses HiRx (215) (48) (57) a 19.1%

Other income mainly arose from the government grants
received by the subsidiaries in Mainland China.

Other gains and losses mainly represented a net foreign
exchange loss of HK$241 million (FY2018: net foreign exchange
gain of HK$343 million) due to the depreciation of RMB.

Other expenses mainly represented the amortisation of other
intangible assets arising from the acquisition of Hearts On Fire.

Interest income, finance costs and taxation

H A EBIEHR A BRI E QR ESHBFT
fHah o
HMBEEEEFZEAARERENEENER
HEE241ABE T (2018 ERE - [EH FUE
343EEBIT) °

HiFS EE AW Hearts On Fire B4 v Hih 4
FEEEHE -

FBKA - ERERBIR

2017 2018 2019

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million YoY change
For the year ended 31 March HZE3IAZMBLEE ER- -7 ER- 7 BEAT [Bl:4 - X(4
Interest income from banks RITHEHA 122 67 83 a 23.6%
Other interest income HinF 24 A 18 13 - w 100.0%
Finance costs on bank borrowings RITERFE KA (93) (111) (209) a 88.7%
Finance costs on gold loans EHEEERERA (143) (133) (161) a 21.4%
Taxation 18 (1,227) (1,629) (1,668) a 2.4%

Finance costs on gold loans increased by 21.4% was mainly
due to a relatively higher average ratio between gold loan and
gold inventory in FY2019 as compared to FY2018 as the Group
stocked up more gold inventories amid robust customer
demand.

Finance costs on bank borrowings increased by 88.7% as the
bank borrowings and the corresponding rates increased during
FY2019.

Effective tax rate decreased from 27.9% in FY2018 to 26.3% in
FY2019 as more withholding tax expenses were incurred in
FY2018.

BeBERERRTLEA21.4%  TEARRMR
010 MFERENBEERINFLMELENES
FE B FHESEEEESFEZ L EER
2018 BEFEERS

o

K219 R E - RITERBEK KN L7t
88.7% * LLTYRHNRTT B R AR ME AT 2 _EFFPTEL ©

HR2018H BEREELENTANHRS - BEEH X
B 2018F M F E #27.9% F& £ 201981 M F &
#126.3% °
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EREREDN
Return on equity BRAERE
e \We use return on equity (“ROE") to measure the efficiency of o BMERABRALHENEL TR EERET G

generating profits from each unit of shareholder equity.

e Net profit margin stayed at 7.0%. ROE improved by 260 basis °
points to 14.9% as the equity multiplier increased.

B R o

FR T EGEIFINT.0% o R [B] 3R K BE #E 2 15 B0
i 7260 EEEFE14.9% -

. :
ROE . Net profit i Fl 1 4 90/ 22.6% pts BEDE
BAERE Total equity HEz544 «J /0 (Fy2018: 12.3%)
(1) Net profit margin times Assets turnover times Equity multiplier
7.0% 5rs 11:  azms 2.0 mzew
(FY2018 : 7.1%) (FY2018 : 1.0 timesfX) (FY2018: 1.7 timesfZ)
Net profit {FiiF| Revenue Z¥# Total assets BEE
Revenue Z#33 Total assets @& E Total equity #EaE43E
Inventory Turnover and Capital Structure FEABRERREE
Inventory balances and turnover period FESRREAEHY
Inventory balances by product” EESZIPHEELELR
As at 31 March R3H31H
(HK$ million B&87T) YoV change
45,000 AL
40,000 39,327 a13.0%
34,818
35,000
30,000 2176 54.4% A17.7%
25,000 52.2%
20,000 55.5%
15,000
10,000 33.9% © @ Gem-setjewellery ZREEBRE
. 29.0% Gold products E®E M
5,000 9% 8% Platinum/Karat gold products $i&, K& &R
0 7.6% 6.0% A 23% +20.2% ® Watches 5
2017 2018 2019
(1) Packing materials excluded 1) TERESEYME

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A



Inventory turnover period by category? &ERIEISHFEEEY @
For the year ended 31 March #Z3831RLLFE
(Day X&)

350

300

250

200

150

100

50

2)

YoY change
Bl=4-2(4
294 296 299 a3daysk

235 240 239 v 1dayX

59 56

2017 2018 2019

Being inventory balances, excluding packing materials, at the end of the reporting period divided
by cost of goods sold for the year, multiplied by 365

Inventory balances, excluding packing materials, increased by
13.0% and reached HK$39,327 million as at 31 March 2019.

Inventory turnover period lengthened by 3 days compared to
that of FY2018.

As at 31 March 2019, approximately HK$4,590 million or 11.6%
of our total inventory balances were held by franchised POS (31
March 2018: approximately HK$3,290 million or 9.4% were held
by franchised POS).

Financials

BRI

@ @ Finished goods EK M

(2)

Raw materials [R47 %t

Bk MR FRER (TRERKYE) BIAFRHEKA - HRIA365

R201943A31H FEAR(TEEREDH)
EF13.0% £39,327AE T °

FEBREBHR2018MBFELEIX -

MR201963A31H MBEZEHBERMEFSE
HEERK 4,590 BB AT (£11.6%) (20184F 3 A 31
H: MBETEEFAL3,2908EBT(59.4%)) °
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EEEWED T

Capital structure EERREE

Increase

% to % to (decrease)
31.3.2018 total equity 31.3.2019 total equity 0 Gl A) Denominated Interest rate
HKS$ million {5# %5458  HKS$ million {5#EZ4%  HKS$ million currency” structure!”
As at i HEBT Bk HEBT Epidd HEBT FHEEN FlZEEO
Non-current assets  JEREEE 8,258 24.2% 8,459 26.9% 201 N/ATNE R N/AZNE
Inventories PEAS 34,929 102.4% 39,486 125.7% 4,557 N/ANE R N/A“NE
Cash and cash RekRe Mainly HKD, Mainly
equivalents? @y 7,944 23.3% 7,641 24.3% (303) RMB and variable
USD  interest rate
FER/ET FER
AR RZET RIS

Total borrowings®  @EH® 13,258 38.9% 18,069 57.5% 4,811
Bank borrowings RITER 7,923 23.3% 10,057 32.0% 2,134 HKD Variable
WL interest rate
HEF K
Gold loans BEOEE 5,335 15.6% 8,012 25.5% 2,677 RMB and Fixed
USD  interest rate
ARBRZET TE Flj &K
Net debt® FIEEREW 5,314 15.6% 10,428 33.2% 5114 N/ANER N/ANE
Working capital® BEEGO 28,593 83.9% 26,307 83.8% (2,286) N/A T3 A N/AT A
Total equity ek 34,098 100.0% 31,403 100.0% (2,695) N/ATE R N/ARiE

(1) Information about denominated currency and interest rate structure related to the condition as at (1) BEHMEEBERFXREENERA2019F3 /31 BNER

31 March 2019

ZRS)

Bank balances and cash equivalents included
As at 31 March 2019, bank borrowings amounted to HK$7,460 million and all the gold loans would (

BRERITEHBRASEEYD
M2019F3A31R 7,460 BB B LHRITERLAAELEERR 1218
AREE - 1,999 BEBTHRTEFHRER1FETSR2FRNEH

EES)

S

o

be matured within 12 months while bank borrowings amounted to HK$1,999 million would be
matured in more than 1 year but not exceeding 2 years and HK$598 million would be mature in
more than 2 years but not exceeding five years

Aggregate of bank borrowings, gold loans, net of cash and cash equivalents

Being net current assets

We principally meet our working capital and other liquidity
requirements through a combination of capital contributions,
including cash flows from operations, bank borrowings and gold
loans. Gold loans are also used for economic hedge purpose to
mitigate the financial impact of the price fluctuations in the
Group’s gold inventories.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FIABKREELEEFR AT
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e The Group's daily operation was mainly financed by operating

cash flows, and mainly relied on short-term borrowings to
satisfy inventory financing needs during peak seasons, working
capital for future expansion plans and unexpected needs. The
Group has not experienced any difficulties in repaying its
borrowings.

e The Group's income and expenditure were mostly denominated

in HKD and RMB, while its assets and liabilities were mostly
denominated in HKD, RMB and USD.

Effect of RMB fluctuation

e As part of our business operation was in Mainland China, the

fluctuation in RMB would post some impact to our
performance.

Transactions entered by the Hong Kong entities but
denominated in RMB, including the inter-group transactions
with the Mainland China subsidiaries, are converted into HKD,
the functional currency of the Group, initially using the spot rate
at the date of transaction and the unsettled transactions are
retranslated at closing exchange rate at the balance sheet date.
Such translation differences between the spot rate and closing
exchange rate are recognised in profit or loss, negatively
affecting our profit for the year when RMB depreciated.

Exchange difference also arises when i) incomes and expenses
of the Mainland China segment are translated into HKD, the
presentation currency of the Group, at the average exchange
rate, while the corresponding assets and liabilities are translated
at closing exchange rate and ii) change in closing exchange
rates at the current financial year of the net assets of the
Mainland China segment from the closing rates at the previous
financial year. Such differences are recognised in the translation
reserve in equity.

Financials

BRI

AEEEEEBIFTECIERBKLERTRE -
NEX2NEHEERREFHNFEESER
ARBERFAZMFELEES MR 2T R -
A BB R B 5R07 H 3 8 AT R 2

FEBZBEARRXETENETRARKE
MEENRBBREEAET  ARBRETE -

ARBRBHZE

HAREMEMOEBETEARMERE - ARBHIK
BHBRMNRBEBRETEE -

FERERRAAAREHENR S (B1E 8P E R K
BRABDETHEERRS) @RI FERNREE
REBRET  AREENNGEESR  MAREEDH
RBAUENETETREERBRE - BEEREYR
MEXRMEY WRBRERNERRTRER  MAR
BRESERMANFRENBRAETE

Ubsh - B IR o B A 53 B A M SR T 19
[ERB|ERET  NAKEE5EHE  MEENE
ENMBERETERBE  Li) PEALSEHNE
BB A B IR 4 52 9 A 7 B 3R 0 M8 B B R TR Y
WHEXGRES EHZRRERTNRERE
NIERBAE -
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76 Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEWEDN

e The table below illustrates the fluctuation of RMB and the o TRIIRAREESREEMIABRRENTE
impact to our financial performance:

FY2019 Closing exchange rate YoY change Average exchange rate YoY change
W B R E b #1E FHEERF L #E
RMB to HKD 0 0
ARM B v 7% v 1%
2018 2019
Constant Constant
exchange rate exchange rate
As reported basis As reported basis
For the year ended 31 March BE3A3MBLEE 2 RERERTH 2 RERERTH
Revenue YoY change BEBERLLEL a 154% a 14.0% a 12.7% a 13.2%
Core operating profit YoY change FELEET R a 20.6% a 18.7% a 24.4% a 24.9%
Changes in inventory balances Gr&EHRE L a19.4% a 13.6% a 13.0% a 16.7%
Changes in cash and cash Be MRS EEWEL
equivalents a0.0% v 75% v 3.8% a0.7%

e Revenue and core operating profit on constant exchange rate o RERERFEMNEEBRIBLE M HERS

basis are calculated by translating current year’s revenue and B D BRAFEUAREHENEEZEREE
core operating profit of the Mainland China segment in RMB BERMAF—FEZARBRBTTFHIEXRKREA
into HKD using the prior year's average RMB to HKD exchange BB RPBEEREREXRLEGHIESME
rates. We believe using constant exchange rate basis could B FE R LR -

enhance the comparability between two financial years.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEARBHRELEB AR QT



Cash Flows and Others

Financials 77
37911

Cash flows iﬁﬁi’“%
2017 2018 2019
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
For the year ended 31 March BE3AMABLEE BEET BEAT BEET
Operating cash flows before movements BEECEYHILERSRE

in working capital 5,702 6,879 7,774
Net cash used in inventories Tﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%%ﬁ m (2,424) (2,455) (2,911)

Net cash from (used in) other operating & EBE (FTE)IRES F5
activities (49) 232 629
Purchase of jewellery collectibles BEKEERE (378) (553) -
Capital expenditure NG (862) (1,084) (1,392)
Pro forma free cash flows HBEHARRERE 1,989 3,019 4,100
Net change in bank borrowings RITERFE (1,112) 1,102 2,133
Dividends paid AT B (5,148) (4,260) (6,081)
Other movements Hith &85 (787) 140 (455)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and ReRRSEEYWEMCRD) FE
cash equivalents (5,058) 1 (303)

Major cash flows items for FY2019 2019 BIEE T EHRLFREIER

(HK$ million B&87T)

Pro forma free cash flows
HERRAERE
4 4,700

18,000 ‘ I

7,774 2,911

16,000
14,000 629 1,392
12,000
10,000

8,000 7,944

6,000

4,000

2,000

0

2,133 6,081

7,641

As at A
31.3.2018

As at R
31.3.2019

(1) Net cash used in inventories included net change in inventories, gold loan raised and repayment (1)

of gold loans

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
EELSRDACRERSRE

Net cash used in inventories!”

FEMARESFHE"

Net cash from other operating activities
SREFHE

HA G R B FT

Capital expenditure

BAMX

Net increase in bank borrowings

RITERUREM
Dividends paid
2RE

Other movements

HA#E

FEMARSFEREFEFEE MEESEARESETER
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEWEDN

Capital expenditure

e The Group's capital expenditure incurred during FY2019
amounted to HK$1,392 million (FY2018: HK$1,084 million).

Capital expenditure by nature R EEISHEAFX

For the year ended 31 March #3831 L EE
(HK$ million B&i8T)

1,500 1,392
1,084
1,000
862 66.8%
66.4%
56.9%
500
36.1% 24.2%
0 7.0% 9.3%
2017 2018 2019

Capital expenditure by function ZThEEEIDMEXRFZ

For the year ended 31 March §Z3A31HILEE
(HK$ million B&# )

1,500 1,392

l 13.7%

1,084

1,000
862 27.6%
l 31.8%

500 56.3%
43.0%
17.0% 12.5%
0 8.2% 4.6% B 6s%
2017 2018 2019

Contingent liabilities

e The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at
31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

Capital commitments

e Details of the Group's capital commitment as at 31 March 2019
and 31 March 2018 are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FIABKREELEEFR AT

BEXFX
o AEER2019MBFENEARTA1,39288E
TL(20188 B /E : 1,084 HEBTL)

© @ Furniture, fixtures and equipment and
leasehold improvements

Bk - RERRENEEMERE

Land and buildings and construction in progress

T REFANERIR
Plant and machinery and motor vehicles

[ET=pSE i)

© @ Projects IBH
POS ZEE
Productions 4£7&
@ Offices BAZE

HARE
o A%MEMN201943 8310 K2018%F3A31H I
BEMEAKARE -

HEARIR
o A%MMN201943731H R20184F3A31H 0
ERAEFBEHNG AU BIRRME32
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Major Awards and Recognitions
ERIEK =T

Major Awards and Recognitions
TEREREN

Governance &i&

Corporate Governance Asia

oM EES

8" Asian Excellence Award 2018

Asia's Best CEO (Investor Relations) — Kent Wong

— Asia’s Best CFO (Investor Relations) — Hamilton Cheng
— Best Investor Relations Company (Hong Kong)

Best Investor Relations Professional — Danita On

FNERMEEALE2018

— DMNRETHRAR(RAERR) — 88E
DNREERMBRE(REAERR) — BMEk

— REREERELE(EE)

— REREEBEEZER — AR

MerComm, Inc.

Mercury Excellence Awards 2018/2019

— Silver Award (Publicity — Sustainability Awareness)
Honors Award (Websites/Mobile Media — Investor/Shareholder
Relations Site)

s

ARC Awards 2018
— Bronze Award (Traditional Annual Report — Retail — Jewellery)

Galaxy Awards 2018

— Gold Award (Design — Annual Reports — Traditional
— Hong Kong)

— Gold Award (Mobile Media — Annual Report)

— Honors Award (Annual Reports — Print — Retail:
Other & General)

Hong Kong Economic Journal

(SR EH R Mercury E#K52018,72019

— REHRTY — AIREEREHR)

— BB (BY BEIEE — REEREMEEN)

ARCK#£2018
— R (ERFH —TEHE —UH)

Galaxy X#£2018

— @R (Rt — BARERFER)

— SE(FRERE —FR)

— KEE(DRIER —TE  HHR—K)

Listed Company Awards of Excellence 2018
— Main Board (Large-Cap)

MARE M AL2018
— ER(KWE)

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FIABKREELEEFR AT



Governance &i&§

(AR E SRR

Liczad Ergerprises
& vea @’

Hong Kong Investor
Relations Association

FEREEMERHE

HKIRA 4t Investor Relations Awards —
Certificate of Excellence

FHEEBRAEREANE — S %

Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants
EEEHHAE

Best Corporate Governance Awards 2018
— Special Mention (H-share Companies
and Other Mainland Enterprises)
REMEERKNE2018 — A=

H & A 81 81 E fh A B Ay s 1 S48 51D

—~

Major Awards and Recognitions
FTERBRER

Bloomberg Businessweek/
Chinese Edition
BEmERAT, hIR

Listed Enterprises of the Year 2018
— Listed Enterprises of the Year
— Performance Award — Best Sustainability

FELEW{R%2018
— FEETRE
— RBPEE — REAFARRER

Institutional Investor

2018 All-Asia (ex-Japan) Executive Team

Rankings (Consumer/Discretionary

sector)

— Best Investor Relations Professional
Third Place — Danita On (Nominated
by the sell side)

2018 % Z All-Asia Executive Team

(TBEBR)YTE — ENFBEERER

— HEREEBEREE —F=F — ZBR
(HEHHITERS)

HERA

Hong Kong Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Awards 2018
— Merit Award (Best ESG Report
— Large Cap)
— Merit Award (Innovative Frontrunner
Award)

EFAERE e MERBREKNE2018
(REESG #EKRE — A8

— B
— BEZ(AIFELRSE)

i%
i%
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Major Awards and Recognitions
FTERBEREN

82

Corporate and Branding £ % & & ¢

THE HONG KONG MANAGEMENT ASSOtIA
HKMA/TVB AWARDS FOR MARKETING EXCELLE
AWARN PRESENTATION DINNER

Hong Kang Lice:
Awnrt

miRE N

3 Awnrds 2018 & Asian Licanal
tion Ceremony cum Netwo

World Branding Forum
57 & ks iE

DEMRIEERS
World Branding Awards 2018
Brand of the Year — Retailer
— Jewellery, Hong Kong

Asian Licensing Award 2018
— Gold Award: Best License
Best License Award

R IR A 2018
— FERERE — TEH ERREERRE T MREEARE2018
— KB BE — 2R REWRRER

— RIEWRER

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A

Asian Licensing Association

Hong Kong Licensing Awards cum The

The Hong Kong Management Association
EREESEGE

HKMA/TVB Awards for Marketing Excellence 2018
HKMA/TVB Awards for Marketing Excellence

— Excellence Award

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Digital Marketing
Practice Champion

Citibank Citation for Innovation

HKMA /TVB # 5 %K 1422018

— HKMA /TVB #5848 — =i #2
— ARBHRELE — REHBLHERR
— TEHERTT — RARIEEZ

A\ QUAMNET
OUTSTANDING
. ENTERPRISE 7

5

¢

Quamnet

EEME

Quamnet Outstanding Enterprise
Awards 2018
— Outstanding Premium Jewellery Brand
— Outstanding Corporate

Social Responsibility

EEEHANDEKRE2018
— BHSRRERS
— RECELEEFE



Corporate and Branding £ % & & ¢

Hong Kong Retail
Management Association
EETECTERE

2018 Service & Courtesy Award

The Best Team Performance Award
— Gold Award (Cheung Ming Wai, Leung
Kwan Min, Tai Victor & Zhou Yixin)

Watch & Jewellery Category — Junior

Frontline Level

— Gold Award — Cheung Ming Wai

— Bronze Award - Leung Kwan Min

— Outstanding Performance Award —
Zhou Yixin

20184 Hi BR 5 42

RELERD
— SEGRRZ - RED - BHEMR
AEM)

BREKEEAR — EERR
— & — RHE

— i — RED

— BBRRE — FEM

Hong Kong Retail
Management Association

FETETERE

2018 Service Retailers of the Year

— Mystery Shopper Programme —
Bronze Award

— Mystery Shopper Programme - 2018
The Outstanding Brand Award with
Most Visits

— 2018 Top 10 Quality E-Shop Awards

2018 R ERBTEB AL

— MIERNEE — R

— WHERNEE — 2018&m RN
HEFREE

— 2018+ RXEEAE

Major Awards and Recognitions
FTERBRER

weadaing

MHEER  £Gp(fe

ESDlife

£ES

ESDlife Bridal Award 2018

— Best Wedding Jewellery — Gold
AR SH KA 2018

— MAZELIESH

The BrandLaureate

The BrandLaureate Best Brands
Awards 2017-2018
— Most Iconic Brand in Retail Jewellery

The BrandlLaureate ff#AX4€2017—2018
— RARKRE —KETEH

Next Magazine

=BT

Top Service Awards 2018

— Jewellery Chain Store Category

IRISFEZAH2018
— BEHHKBE R TAER

Annual Report 2019 4 ¥
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Major Awards and Recognitions
FTERBEREN

Corporate Social Responsibility &£ i E &

Hong Kong Productivity
Council

FELEENRER

The 9" Hong Kong Outstanding
Corporate Citizenship Award
— Merit Award (Enterprise Category)

FEHEEBRHCERRE
— BERZ(DRHEAR)

Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency

(HKQAA)
FELERER

HKQAA CSR Index Plus Mark
EERERERT R THERBIER

CTgoodjobs

Best HR Awards 2018
— Best Corporate Social Responsibility
Award (Champion)

REANEIRAE2018
— REHEEEEERE (BE)

The Hong Kong Council

of Social Service

EEUHERBHE

Caring Company

— Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Company Limited (10 Years+)

— Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Group Limited (5 Years+)

ARRREE

— ARBHRESIT(EZ10FAL)
— AARKEEE(BEESFRIAL)

JobMarket
JobMarket K &5

Employer of Choice Award 2018
— Employer of Choice Award

— Corporate Social Responsibility Award

=i{EERH2018
— FHEEAE
— FSHHGEELERE

GS1 Hong Kong
ERERRSBHE

Consumer Caring Scheme 2018

— Consumer Caring 5 Years+ Award
Bh O ¥R ATETE12018

— MO DERF+E

International Financial News

B P &Rl 3R

Corporate Social Responsibility Awards 2018

SEHK:1929

— Outstanding Social Responsibility Contribution Award
— Caring Society Award

EHEEEAE2018

— HEATERER
— HEERE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A



Major Awards and Recognitions
FTERBRER

Corporate Social Responsibility &£ i E &

Green Council
Purchaswi$e Award (Large Corg RIRBES
HE #21 ﬂ i )

Hong Kong Green Awards 2018
— Corporate Green Governance Award — Corporate Vision
Limited — Green Management Award — Corporate (Large Corporation) — Silver
— Green Purchaswi$e Award (Large Corporation) — Bronze
— Environmental, Health and Safety Award (Large Corporation) — Merit

BEREHREAHE2018

— BEZKBERE — XED

— BHRREER — PR (REAX) — RE
— PABRRARRBRE(RBEDLE) —

— BERRZ2EER(RNAELE) —FRE

Chow Tai Foo!
g

Global Intellectual Capital IR E HE X

Human Resources

HumanResources

Asia Recruitment Awards 2019

— Best Internship Program (Silver Award)
MBI K E£2019

— HEEBFERE

Technology %

JNA Awards 2018
— Manufacturer of the Year — Cutting & Polishing

JINAK#2018
— FERERAE —JHRNT

Design 585t

Hurun Report

HHEE

Hurun Best of the Best Awards 2019

— High-end Jewellery Best New Arrival — “Fantastical
Creatures” Collection

2019 tHEHEEEWER

— ERKREHFE — DB R
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EERSREBASHN

1 Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry,
GBM, GBS (Chairman)
XA E L (GBM, GBS) (£/F)

2 Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent
(Managing Director)
ERESE (ERBLIR)

3 Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, JP
B AEMIE L (JP)

4 Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy

HEfRE

5  Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor,
GBM, GBS, CBE
5B 45 18+ (GBM,GBS,CBE)

6  Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert
BRI A o A

Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon
BPASR e A

Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey, GBS, JP
Mf2$2 54 (GBS, JP)

Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong

Rt & A&

Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia
BEEL T+

Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter
R E

Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily
BEBLL

Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton
B R ER S &

Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby

Bk Rk E

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FIABHKREEEFR AT

15  Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson
BRI A

16 Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond, SBS, JP
51818+ (SBS, JP)

17 Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul, JP
AT %E A& (JP)



Executive Director $i{TEE

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEABEHN

87

Responsibilities B &

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry* (Chairman) NC,RC  Strategic direction and overall performance of the Group
BRAEHE L (EF) AEEBNREFH RBERE
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent (Managing Director) NC,RC  Strategic planning and overall management of the Group
ERREE A (EFRKE) NEBREI IR B N e
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian* Strategic investment of the Group
EEMIE L REBERRKIRE
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy* Raw material procurement (diamonds and gemstones)
BEELEr RERE(ER - BA)
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton Financial management and corporate operations
EPIRER S = MBERRMEEE
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong Mainland China business
Rt &%t B A Hb S 7
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter Hong Kong, Macau and overseas business
BRERELE BA ORI RBINET
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert Raw material procurement (diamonds and gemstones)
PR A REHEREE (BA - BA)
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby Sustainability and innovation
BRAEE A EEE KA
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson* Bank and landlord relationship management
SRR IR S A RITREFAEREIER
Non-executive Director JEHITEE
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia*
BEEL L
Independent Non-executive Director BILFEHITESE Responsibilities =
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor NC* RC |ndependent Non-executive Directors serve a significant role
IR E L in the Board to bring independent judgment on the
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond RC* NC, performance, development and risk management of the
s EEt AC Group. As chairmen or members of the Nomination
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon acx,Rc  Committee, Remuneration Committee and/or Audit
B A Committee, they also undertake detailed governance work
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul ne, ac under the respective terms of reference of the committees.
ERERRII S BUFRTEERNESSNREEEERE  AAEENRER  B#ER
. FRERETELER - ERREZE® FMEE SR/ NERE
e o ey N BamTRARE - VRS E S S RERE T AREA
‘ TIte-
Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily NC, RC
WEERL
NC = Nomination Committee member
REZEERKE
RC = Remuneration Committee member
FHEE|KE
AC = Audit Committee member
ERZEBEME
* Committee Chairman
ZEREIRE
# Five of our directors are family members related to the Company’s major shareholders. Apart from them, all other directors of the Company are not related to each other.

TREEREARAEBZEREBHREKE - BRILZI ARRMEEMESZ ML REAE -
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EERSREBABEN

Chairman and Executive Director

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, GBM, GBS

Aged 72, joined the Group in 1971, was appointed as Chairman
and an executive Director in July 2011 and is a member of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Dr. Henry Cheng is responsible for the strategic
direction and overall performance of the Group.

Dr. Cheng is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He is
also a director of several substantial shareholders of the Company,
including Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited, Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings Il) Limited, Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited and
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited, and a director of Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited, which is a subsidiary of Chow Tai Fook
(Holding) Limited.

In addition, Dr. Cheng is chairman and an executive director of
New World Development Company Limited and NWS Holdings
Limited, chairman and a non-executive director of New World
Department Store China Limited and FSE Services Group Limited
(formerly known as FSE Engineering Holdings Limited), vice-
chairman and a non-executive director of i-CABLE Communications
Limited, and a non-executive director of SUM Holdings Limited, all
of which are listed public companies in Hong Kong.

He is chairman and managing director of New World China Land
Limited, which was a listed public company in Hong Kong until its
delisting on 4 August 2016. He was chairman and an executive
director of International Entertainment Corporation until his
resignation on 10 June 2017; an independent non-executive
director of HKR International Limited until his resignation on 31
March 2018; chairman and a non-executive director of Newton
Resources Ltd until his resignation on 9 April 2018; and an
independent non-executive director of Hang Seng Bank Limited
until his retirement on 10 May 2018, all of the foregoing companies
are listed public companies in Hong Kong.

Dr. Cheng is chairman of the Advisory Council for The Better Hong
Kong Foundation. He was a Standing Committee Member of the
Twelfth Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference.

Dr. Henry Cheng is the father of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian and
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia, an uncle of Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng,
Conroy, a cousin of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng
Sek-Hung, Timothy, and a nephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A

ERFRIITES

B4+ (GBM, GBS)

RE725 MI97MTFMALXEE - 20N F7AEZ
TAERRMTES UAARRREZESRTMH
ZESKE - BREBTABELAEBENRE i RE
BBRE -

BETAREEETHBARES - MthRARNAZ
% * Z & #Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings)
Limited * Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II)
Limited * Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited & & X 1&
(FER)BRARES  UERAKXE(EZER)BRAFH
MEARIAREEXBRARNES -

s BELEERURERARABTRMAEEE
BERAFEERATES FERAETHARAF
LRERBEEARAR (AIHEHREEZRERAT)
IRRFEDTES  EREMBAAARAFNBEIERK
FEMITES - URRFIBVERBRARIERTES -
ZERFH /BB LT ARATE -

MRFEARATEMERR AR EIFERETHLE X
NRAEREBEELTARAR  EE2016F8H4HE
o b B EERRREERARDNIELRITES
R201746 A10ABHE : BEEXBEREEFR QA
BUIERITESE N 2018F 3 A31 HEHE : TEER
BRABEIFERIERNTESE - N2018F4 A9 HEHT :
AREBERITERAPIEYIFNITES  EE2018%F
A0 HEME A ARBAEE LM ARAR -

BELTR[BERREHES | EHEEGTR - 1Y
RET_EEZERHEHEE -

BRABIRBEMELMBERLLHRE - B
BEENAR  BREFLAERDHBELENESL - A
REHELRENESR -



Executive Director

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

Aged 63, joined the Group in 1977, was appointed as Managing
Director of the Company in July 2011 and is a member of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Mr. Kent Wong is responsible for the strategic planning
and overall management of the Group.

Mr. Wong is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group and a
director of Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, which is a
subsidiary of a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Wong has diverse experience in business development as well
as in operations and management. He was responsible for
developing the Group’s market in Mainland China and in 2008 he
was promoted to managing director of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Company Limited.

Mr. Wong is chairman of the Jewellery Advisory Committee of the
Hong Kong Trade Development Council (“HKTDC") and a member
of the 2019 Fair Organising Committee of the HKTDC for its Hong
Kong International Jewellery Show and Hong Kong International
Diamond, Gem and Pearl Show, council member of The Hong
Kong Management Association, chairman of executive committee
of the Hong Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Association Ltd,
chairman of the supervising committee of the Hong Kong &
Kowloon Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Employees’ Association Ltd, a
permanent honorable president of the Kowloon Gold Silver and
Jewel Merchants’ Staff Association, a vice chairman of the Gems
& Jewelry Trade Association of China, a board member of the
World Diamond Council, a member of Hong Kong Consumer
Council, vice-chairman of the Yantian District General Chamber of
Commerce and a member of the Anhui Provincial Committee and
the Yantian District Committee of the Chinese People's Political
Consultative Conference. He is also a board member of the
Diamond Empower Fund and vice president of the executive
committee of the Youth Outreach.

Mr. Wong was named as “CEO of the Year/Luxury/Asia” at the
2016 IAIR Awards presentation ceremony held by International
Alternative Investment Review. He was also named as “Asia’s
Best CEO (Investor Relations)” by Corporate Governance Asia, an
authoritative regional journal on corporate governance, at its 7%
and 8" Asian Excellence Award in 2017 and 2018 consecutively.

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEABEHN

PITES

BEGR - WI977FMAKREE - 201N F7ARE
ERAAFEFEER IR/ARRFREEEGLFH
HEEaks  -EREEEEEAEENRBRIL

BREEE -

BEEERAEEETHEBLARANES  RAKAQRAE
ERROMBRARAABLEEERAANES -

ERXLRALENEBRMRIANZENEEL R -
BERKEMATEAMTS - XN 2008FRARAE
AREKRESTARARESTLLRE -

BERERBRAESERB(BBERR]) KEXHES
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Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, JP

Aged 39, joined the Group in 2007, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Dr. Adrian Cheng is responsible for the
strategic investment of the Group, fostering sustainability and
innovation initiatives in the areas of culture & art, craftsmanship
and creativity.

Dr. Cheng is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group,
and a director of a substantial shareholder of the Company, Chow
Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited.

Dr. Cheng is an executive vice-chairman and general manager of
New World Development Company Limited, overseeing the
strategic direction for its property development and investment
activities. He is also an executive director of New World
Department Store China Limited, and a non-executive director of
Giordano International Limited, i-CABLE Communications Limited
and New Century Healthcare Holding Co. Limited, all of which are
listed public companies in Hong Kong. He is an executive director
of New World China Land Limited, which was a listed public
company in Hong Kong until its delisting on 4 August 2016. He
was an executive director of International Entertainment
Corporation until his resignation on 10 June 2017; vice-chairman
and a non-executive director of Modern Media Holdings Limited
until his resignation on 26 August 2017, both of which are listed
public companies in Hong Kong.

Dr. Cheng is the chairman of New World Group Charity Foundation
Limited, the vice-chairman of the All-China Youth Federation, a
member of the Tianjin Municipal Committee of The Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, the chairman of the
China Young Leaders Foundation and the honorary chairman of
K11 Art Foundation.

Dr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree (cum laude) from
Harvard University and was conferred the Honorary Doctorate of
Humanities by the Savannah College of Art and Design. He worked
at UBS AG from September 2003 to April 2006 prior to joining the
Group, and has substantial experience in corporate finance.

Dr. Adrian Cheng is the son of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, the
brother of Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia, a cousin of Mr. Cheng Chi-
Heng, Conroy, a nephew of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr.
Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy, and a grandnephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A

BEMITE L (JP)

BE95K - R2007 FIMAREE - R2011F7 A%
ZERBTEEZ -BEMBELEEAEERRKKRE
KEAEEREN  TEMAE N EAAFEZRERM
BIFETE) -

BELTHORAEEETHBARNES  YRAAF
TERFAKRE(ER)BRARREKNEBERARBEARRE
TEERARNES -

BELRENERERARARNITRIEFFRALE
MEZARNBENENKERANERIET R - b
HEFEAAETEBRARRNTES  AREMR
RERRA  ERRIBAERARRFELER
ERARARNFEATEE  ZERRYRBELD
RPAR - MEEHERPEMEFRRRNTES
ZARBRBEELTARAR  BE20165F8H4H
BRhE - b D RBERREERATANITESE - R2017F
6AT0RBHE  BREEERERAFREERIEN
fTEE  MN2017F8 A 26 HEHT - LM ARIARE

R LN SN

BETANERASEREESERARER  FESD
ESFHeeaIE REARBAGEEHRRET
ZESZE FPEESFREESEER LK Art
Foundation & E &

BETHERBAEXETBM(BERE)  WER
ENLABMR A BRBERAXERERBE LM - b
RINAREE R E #2003 F9 A E2006F4 A HEIE
BRimtRT AREECERELR -

BEMELRBRABLNRF  BERLEWAK -
BEEXRENESR  BRFEERBHBEENER
AR BB RENER



Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy

Aged 41, joined the Group in 2007, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011.
procurement of diamonds and gemstones of the Group.

Mr. Conroy Cheng is responsible for the

Mr. Cheng is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group and a
director of a substantial shareholder of the Company, Chow Tai
Fook (Holding) Limited and its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited.

Mr. Cheng is an executive director of New World Development
Company Limited, which is a listed public company in Hong Kong.
He is currently a member of the executive committee of the
Diamond Federation of Hong Kong, China.

Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from The
Western University (formerly known as The University of Western
Ontario). Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheng had worked at Yu
Ming Investment Management Limited from 1999 to 2000 as a
corporate finance executive.

Mr. Conroy Cheng is a nephew of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, Mr.
Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy, a
cousin of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian and Ms. Cheng Chi-Man,
Sonia, and a grandnephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.
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Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton

Aged 44, joined the Group in 2004, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Mr. Hamilton Cheng is responsible for the
Group’s financial management and corporate operations, including
information technology and human capital management. He also
serves as a joint company secretary of the Company and a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree in
Professional Accountancy from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a Chartered Financial Analyst. He is also a
Graduate of HKloD Global Directorship Programme (HKloD.GD)
accredited by The Hong Kong Institute of Directors, committing to
achieving the highest standard of directorship and the advancement
of good corporate governance.

Mr. Cheng was named as “Asia’s Best CFO (Investor Relations)”
by Corporate Governance Asia, an authoritative regional journal on
corporate governance, at its 71" and 8" Asian Excellence Award in
2017 and 2018 consecutively.

Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong

Aged 56, joined the Group in 1985, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Mr. Chan is responsible for the Group's
business in Mainland China. He is a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group.

Mr. Chan has been in the jewellery industry for 38 years. He is a
senior adviser of the Gems & Jewelry Trade Association of China,
a member of National Technical Committee 256 on Jewelry and
National Technical Committee 298 on Jewelry and Jade of
Standardization Administration of China, a member of the standing
council of China Gold Association, an executive vice-chairman of
the Guangdong Gold and Silver Jewellery Chamber of Commerce,
a vice-chairman of the Shenzhen Gold & Jewellery Association, a
general vice-chairman of Gold Association of Guangdong Province,
a vice-chairman of the Guangdong Golden Jewellery and Jade
Industry’s Association and a director of the Gemmological Institute,
China University of Geosciences (Wuhan). He is also a member of
the Liaoning Province Committee of the Chinese People's Political
Consultative Conference.

Mr. Chan is also a non-executive director of Giordano International
Limited, which is a listed public company in Hong Kong.
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Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter
Aged 54, joined the Group in 1985, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Mr. Peter Suen is responsible for the Group's
Hong Kong, Macau and overseas business. He is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Suen has been in the jewellery industry for 34 years. He's a
member of the executive committee of the Hong Kong Jewellers’
& Goldsmiths’ Association. Mr. Suen holds an Executive Master's
degree in Business Administration from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong.

Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert

Aged 68, joined the Group in 1977, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Mr. Albert Chan is responsible for the
procurement of diamonds and gemstones of the Group. He is also
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Business from Western
lllinois University. He is a Graduate Gemologist of the Gemological
Institute of America, a Fellow of The Gemmological Association of
Great Britain and a Lifetime Member of the Gemological Institute
of America, Alumni Association.

Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby

Aged 45, joined the Group in 1999, was appointed as an executive
Director in January 2016. Mr. Bobby Liu is responsible for the
development of the Sustainability and Innovation Centre of the
Group, leading and synergising initiatives in the areas of culture &
art, craftsmanship and creativity. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Liu has over 20 years of experience in retail and administrative
management. He has been responsible for developing the Group's
e-commerce and high-end luxury jewellery business since 2010.
He has also been in charge of the Group's watch business in
Mainland China from 2016 onwards.

Mr. Liu holds a Master of Business Administration degree from
The Western University (formerly known as The University of
Western Ontario) and a Bachelor of Science degree in Computer
Mathematics from Carleton University.
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Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson

Aged 60, joined the Group in 1979, was appointed as a
non-executive Director in July 2011 and re-designated as an
executive Director with effect from April 2019. Mr. Wilson Cheng
is responsible for the Group's bank and landlord relationship
management.

Mr. Cheng is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group
and a director of Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, which is a
subsidiary of a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Cheng was an executive director of International Entertainment
Corporation, a listed public company in Hong Kong, until his
resignation on 10 June 2017.

Mr. Cheng is a vice-president of The Chinese Gold and Silver
Exchange Society. He has over 40 years' experience in
administration and finance in jewellery retail business. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from the University of
Hawaii, Honolulu.

Mr. Wilson Cheng is a cousin of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry and
Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy, an uncle of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong,
Adrian, Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy and Ms. Cheng Chi-Man,
Sonia, and a nephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.
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Non-executive Director
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia

Aged 38, joined the Group in 2019, was appointed as a non-
executive Director with effect from April 2019.

Ms. Sonia Cheng is the chief executive officer of Rosewood Hotel
Group, chairman of the advisory committee of the School of Hotel
and Tourism Management at The Chinese University of Hong Kong
and a member of the advisory committee of the School of Hotel &
Tourism Management Industry at The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. She is also a member of the Y. Elites Association, the
Young Presidents’ Organization and the Hong Kong United Youth
Association, and a non-official member of the Family Council and
the Advisory Committee on Gifted Education.

Ms. Cheng is an executive director of New World Development
Company Limited, a listed public company in Hong Kong, and
oversees the hotel division and the project management division.
She is an executive director of New World China Land Limited,
which was previously a listed public company in Hong Kong until
its delisting and privatisation by New World Development Company
Limited on 4 August 2016.

Before joining New World Development Company Limited, Ms.
Cheng worked in a major international investment bank and a
global US private equity firm specialising in real estate investments.
She holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree with a concentration in
Applied Mathematics from Harvard University.

Ms. Sonia Cheng is the daughter of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry,
the sister of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, a cousin of Mr. Cheng
Chi-Heng, Conroy, a niece of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr.
Cheng Sek Hung, Timothy, and a grandniece of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.
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Independent Non-executive Director

Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor, GBM, GBS, CBE

Aged 73, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in November 2011 and is chairman of the Nomination Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Dr. Victor Fung is group chairman of the Fung Group, a Hong Kong
based multinational which comprises major operating groups
engaging in trading, logistics, distribution and retailing. They include
publicly-listed Li & Fung Limited, Global Brands Group Holding
Limited, Convenience Retail Asia Limited and other privately held
entities. He is also honorary chairman of Li & Fung Limited. In
addition, Dr. Fung is @ member of the board of Koc Holding A.S. (a
company listed on the Istanbul Stock Exchange).

Dr. Fung is chairman of the Advisory Board of the Asia Global
Institute at The University of Hong Kong, a new multidisciplinary
think-tank to assume and carry forward the mission and operations
of Fung Global Institute, of which Dr. Fung was founding chairman
(July 2010-June 2015).

In public service, Dr. Fung is an adviser of the Infrastructure Financing
Facilitation Office of The Hong Kong Monetary Authority. Dr. Fung
was also appointed as a member of The Chief Executive's Council of
Advisers on Innovation and Strategic Development on 21 March 2018.
He is also chairman of the 2022 Foundation, a non-profit entity
focused on research into Hong Kong's long-term competitiveness.
Formerly, he was a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (January 2003-January 2018), a member of
the Economic Development Commission of the Hong Kong
Government (January 2013-March 2018), chairman of the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council (1991-2000), the Hong Kong
representative on the APEC Business Advisory Council (1996-2003),
chairman of the Hong Kong Airport Authority (1999-2008), chairman
of the Council of The University of Hong Kong (2001-2009), chairman
of the Greater Pearl River Delta Business Council (2004-2013), a
member of the Commission on Strategic Development of the Hong
Kong Government (2005-2012), chairman of the International
Chamber of Commerce (“ICC") (2008-2010), a member of WTO
Panel on Defining the Future of Trade (2012-2013), a vice chairman of
China Centre for International Economic Exchanges (2009-2014) and
chairman of the Steering Committee on the Scholarship for Excellence
Scheme (2014-2018). The Government of Hong Kong awarded Dr.
Fung the Gold Bauhinia Star in 2003 and the Grand Bauhinia Medal in
2010 for his distinguished service to the community in Hong Kong.

Dr. Fung holds Bachelor's and Master's Degrees in Electrical

Engineering from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology and a
Doctorate in Business Economics from Harvard University.
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Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond, SBS, JP

Aged 69, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in November 2011 and is chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company.

Dr. Raymond Or is also chairman and a non-executive director of
China Strategic Holdings Limited, executive chairman and an
executive director of Esprit Holdings Limited, and an independent
non-executive director of Television Broadcasts Limited and Regina
Miracle International (Holdings) Limited, all of which are listed
public companies in Hong Kong. He is also an independent non-
executive director of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
(Asia) Limited (appointed in December 2018).

Dr. Or was vice-chairman and an independent non-executive
director of G-Resources Group Limited until his retirement on 30
June 2017; and an independent non-executive director of Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China Limited until his retirement upon
expiration of his term of office in October 2018, both of which are
listed public companies in Hong Kong. He was also deputy
chairman and a non-executive director of Aquis Entertainment
Limited (a company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange)
until his resignation on 31 December 2017.

Dr. Or holds a bachelor of social sciences degree in economics and
psychology from the University of Hong Kong and was awarded an
Honorary Doctor of Social Science from the City University of
Hong Kong in 2014. He was conferred Honorary Fellowship by
Hang Seng University of Hong Kong (formerly known as Hang
Seng Management College) in May 2017.
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Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon

Aged 69, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in November 2011 and is chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Gordon Kwong is a Fellow member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kwong was a Partner
of PriceWaterhouse from 1984 to 1998, an independent member
of the Council of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange from 1992 to
1997, during which, he had acted as convener of both the
Compliance Committee and the Listing Committee.

Mr. Kwong is an independent non-executive director of Agile Group
Holdings Limited, China Power International Development Limited,
Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited, Henderson Investment
Limited, Henderson Land Development Company Limited, NWS
Holdings Limited, OP Financial Limited (formerly known as OP
Financial Investments Limited), and FSG Services Group Limited
(formerly known as FSE Engineering Holdings Limited), all of which
are listed public companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Kwong is also an
independent non-executive director of Piraeus Port Authority SA (a
company listed on the Athens Stock Exchange). He was an
independent non-executive director of COSCO Shipping Holdings
Company Limited, until his retirement on 25 May 2017; and an
independent non-executive director of CITIC Telecom International
Holdings Limited, until his retirement on 1 June 2017.
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Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul, JP

Aged 82, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in September 2012 and is a member of the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Paul Cheng is an independent non-executive director of Pacific
Alliance China Land Limited (a company listed on the AIM Board of
the London Stock Exchange); and a director of the CHG Capital
Growth Fund. He retired as deputy chairman and an independent
non-executive director of Esprit Holdings Limited in December
2018, which is a listed public company in Hong Kong; and was an
independent non-executive director of Global Logistic Properties
Limited (which was listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange until
its delisting on 22 January 2018).

Mr. Cheng was a former member of the Hong Kong Legislative
Council as well as the former chairman of Inchcape Pacific Limited,
N M Rothschild & Sons (Hong Kong) Limited, The Link
Management Limited and the Hong Kong General Chamber of
Commerce.

Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from Lake Forest
College (lllinois, the United States) and a Master's degree in
Business Administration from the Wharton Graduate School of
Business at The University of Pennsylvania.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EERSREBABEN

Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey, GBS, JP

Aged 67, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in November 2011 and is a member of the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Jeffrey Lam is an independent non-executive director of C C
Land Holdings Limited, China Overseas Grand Oceans Group
Limited, Wynn Macau, Limited, CWT International Limited, i-CABLE
Communications Limited, and Wing Tai Properties Limited, all of
which are listed public companies in Hong Kong. He was an
independent non-executive director of Bracell Limited until his
resignation on 1 November 2016 after its delisting.

Mr. Lam is a member of the National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. He also holds a number
of other public and community service positions including being a
non-official member of the Executive Council of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region and a member of the Legislative
Council in Hong Kong, a general committee member of the Hong Kong
General Chamber of Commerce, chairman of Independent
Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) Complaints Committee, a
director of the Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited and the board
of Heifer Hong Kong. He was the former chairman of the Assessment
Committee of Mega Events Fund and a member of Fight Crime
Committee.

Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor Degree in mechanical engineering from
Tufts University in the United States. He has over 40 years of
experience in the toy industry and is currently the managing
director of Forward Winsome Industries Limited which is engaged
in toy manufacturing.
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Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily

Aged 40, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
with effect from April 2019 and is a member of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Ms. Lily Cheng has served in the technology and internet industry
for over 19 years, both as an entrepreneur and as a corporate
executive. She is the founder and an executive director of Hubel
Labs Limited, a virtual applied-Al software lab. She served as the
President of TripAdvisor, APAC from 2014 to 2016 and held various
management roles at TripAdvisor, Inc. and Expedia, Inc. from 2008
to 2016. She was a management consultant with The Boston
Consulting Group from 2006 to 2008.

Ms. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Engineering and a
Master of Engineering degree from the University of Cambridge.
She is currently pursuing a Graduate Certificate in Artificial
Intelligence at the Stanford Center for Professional Development.

Ms. Cheng is an independent non-executive director of Swire
Properties Limited, which is a listed public company in Hong Kong.
She is also an independent non-executive director of Octopus
Cards Limited, a board observer and advisor to HotelBeds Group
and an advisor to the Office of the President of Mars, Incorporated.

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EERSREBABEN

Honorary adviser to the Board of Directors
Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai

Aged 87, joined the Group in 1949, was appointed as an honorary
adviser to the Board with effect from August 2011 and is
responsible for advising on procurement. Mr. Cheng is also a
director of a substantial shareholder of the Company, Chow Tai
Fook (Holding) Limited and its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited. Mr. Cheng is an uncle of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun,
Henry, Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung,
Timothy, and a granduncle of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, Mr.
Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy and Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia.

Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy

Aged 68, joined the Group in 1994, was appointed as an honorary
adviser to the Board with effect from August 2011. Mr. Cheng is a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Cheng is also a
director of a substantial shareholder of the Company, Chow Tai
Fook (Holding) Limited and its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited. Mr. Cheng is a cousin of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun,
Henry and Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson, an uncle of Dr. Cheng Chi-
Kong Adrian, Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy and Ms. Cheng Chi-
Man, Sonia, and a nephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.

Joint Company Secretary

Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton

Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton is an executive Director and Joint
Company Secretary. His profile is set out on page 92 of this annual
report under the sub-section of “Executive Director”.

Mr. Lai Sau-Cheong, Simon

Aged 58, is Group General Counsel and Joint Company Secretary.
Mr. Simon Lai is also the general counsel of Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited, a subsidiary of a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

Mr. Lai is admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong, England and Wales,
and New South Wales, Australia and has over 30 years of
experience in corporate, commercial and related regulatory
practice. He was a long standing partner and later on, consultant,
of a leading law firm before joining the Group and has extensive
experience on corporate finance matters. Mr. Lai has also served
on a number of public appointments.
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Senior Management
Ms. Leung Man-Yan, lvy
Aged 49, joined the Group in 2019, is the Global Chief Intellectual
Capital Officer of the Group. Ms. Leung has over 25 years of
experience in human resources, training, total quality management
and customer service spanning across Fintech, Media, Hospitality
and Petrochemical industries.

To promote excellence in her areas of expertise, Ms. Leung is
actively engaged in public service. She is a member of the
Organising Committee of the Awards for Excellence in Training and
Development of Hong Kong Management Association (HKMA),
and has been on the Board of Examiners of the Quality Award of
HKMA since 2008. She is also a member of the Cross-Industry
Training Advisory Committee and the Specification of Competency
Standards Drafting Subcommittee for the Human Resources
Management sector of Qualifications Framework of the HKSAR
Government.

Ms. Danita On

Aged 42, joined the Group in 2012, is the director of Investor
Relations and Corporate Communications of the Group, responsible
for maintaining effective communications with investors and
media. Ms. On has over 20 years of experiences in auditing,
management consulting, equity research, asset management and
investor relations. She is a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a Chartered Financial Analyst.

Mr. Lee Tin-Hei, Jade

Aged 44, joined the Group in 2016, is the general manager
responsible for business strategy and analytics as well as
technology applications of the Group. Mr. Lee has over 20 years of
experience in advanced analytics carrying out consulting and
business management roles with leading business analytics
corporations.

Mr. Tsang Siu-Kwong, Patrick

Aged 48, joined the Group in 1993, is the general manager
responsible for managing and developing the information
infrastructures and technologies of the Group. Mr. Tsang has over
26 years of experience in information technology. He is currently
vice president (business) of the Internet of Things Industry
Advisory Council.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EERSREBABEN

Mr. Wong Kim-Ming, Mark

Aged 57, joined the Group in 1986, is the senior manager
responsible for the operation of Diamond Department and diamond
manufacturing management of the Group. Mr. Wong has over 33
years of experience in the jewellery industry.

Mr. Cheng Ming-Chi

Aged 47, joined the Group in 1994, is the senior manager
responsible for managing and purchasing gemstones such as
jadeite, colour stones and pearls for the Group. Mr. Cheng has over
24 years of experience in the jewellery industry.

Mr. Lau King-Ming

Aged 52, joined the Group in 2013, is the general manager
responsible for managing production and logistics capacities as
well as the related infrastructures of the Group. Mr. Lau has over
29 years of management and consultancy experience.

Mr. Chan Yee-Pong, Alan

Aged 47, joined the Group in 2010, is the general manager responsible
for the branding and marketing management of the Group. Mr. Chan
has over 24 years of experience in luxury branding and marketing.

Mr. Lam Hung-Shing, Max

Aged 36, joined the Group in 2011, is the general manager
responsible for the creative design and development of jewellery
products. Mr. Lam has over 15 years of experience in jewellery
design. He was awarded Hong Kong Ten Outstanding Designer
Award in 2014 and was conferred Fellowship and Chartered Manager
by Canadian Chartered Institute of Business Administration.

Mr. Wong-Tang, Alex

Aged 60, joined the Group in 2000, is the general manager
responsible for managing the Hong Kong and Macau Management
Centre and Chow Tai Fook Fei Cui Testing Centre of the Group.
Mr. Wong has over 45 years of experience in the jewellery
industry. He holds an Executive Master's degree in Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is
also a Graduate Gemologist of the Gemological Institute of America
and a Certified Gemmologist (Fei Cui) of the Gemmological
Association of Hong Kong.
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Our Corporate Governance Framework
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Our Corporate Governance Framework
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Information for Investors
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The “4Ts" concept introduced by T MARK diamond brand in TMARKEARIEHEN [4Ts| 85 EEEEEN
ensuring our diamonds are natural and ethically sourced is reinforced EBREABRREET  BREMOEBLERABE - XK
by our rigorous controls under the agile business model. The same RAE - A—ERA(ANATA - AT2E - AIERAI=)E
set of principles, Transparent, Thoughtful, Truthful and Traceable, is RIESLEXELERNER  IRAEBEZSIERK
in place to guide the development of our corporate governance FEEMEE BB RMER

framework, supporting the Group in better achieving our strategic

objectives towards sustainable growth and development.

i Enhance accountability via institutionalised structures
and measures to drive better utilisation of resources
and fulfillment of stakeholders’ interests

| RBHE R ERE MR E - LB ARER AR
| RMERHHENTR

TraceasLe T8

TRUTHFUL TT 1

Uphold long-established culture of
integrity to safeguard the fundamental
interests of stakeholders and build
trusting relationships with them
BRHRABIMHMEUE - REFHER
EARFz RE I E EERIER

T RANSPARENT TT 40

| Implement transparent disclosures
and constructive dialogues to foster
genuine mutual understanding with
| stakeholders

| BB AR REME R
| BUE(REBSHEIRE TR

- TroucHTFuL T8

Embrace leaders with independent mindset, versatile
expertise and business acumen who steer our
long-term pursuit for sustainable business growth
and attainment of common values with stakeholders
HRABYBME AAEXENEEMNBNEERKD
EH BERMRBEKABENEKERNESR

P EhENEREESR
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Stakeholder Relations
B E B &

Stakeholder Approach

The Board has adopted a stakeholder approach to foster
relations with a wider range of stakeholders both inside and
outside the Group based on the principles of transparency,
interactive engagement and fair treatment.

In the pursuit of good corporate governance, our relationship with
stakeholders is critical to the long-term performance of the Group
and our shareholders’ value. This is because by maintaining a
close connection with stakeholders, it fosters the growth of our
value creation chain by enabling better Board decisions and
creating a supportive ecosystem for the operations.

Enabling better board decisions

From the Board's point of view, engaging with a wider range of
stakeholders helps to identify emerging trends of social needs
and business opportunities; enhance our capacity to innovate by
feeding in stakeholders’ lines of sight; foster high quality strategy
and customer-centric business model; identify synergies between
the Group and our stakeholders which encourage collaborations
and integrated solutions to future challenges.

Examples of our approaches to the key stakeholders in
connection with the above include proactive investor relations,
win-win collaboration with business partners, customer-driven
“Smart+ 2020" strategic framework, partnership with non-profit
organisations on community projects for preserving
craftsmanship and nurturing innovation, and a diversified Board
which engages with a broad spectrum of stakeholders.

Creating a supportive ecosystem for the operations

In view of facilitating corporate management, engaging with
stakeholders assists the business to gain access to a
supportive ecosystem, where valuable human capital and
social resources are available and barriers and resistance to
the business are lessened.

We embed into our operations the people-oriented culture and
value creation objectives for a wider range of stakeholders
which gather our people working together for meaningful
purposes beneficial to the communities at large.

Stakeholder Relations
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e \While mutual trust is paramount to the success of our business,

we build it up by open, honest and transparent communications
with stakeholders through active listening and communicating
with them the outcomes of these engagements.

As an iconic and trusted brand, we safeguard our reputational
capital and reduce business risks by addressing early on
potential misalignment between our corporate behaviour and
social expectations on our social, environmental and governance
performance as a responsible corporate citizen, and by
promoting both economic and social well-beings of our
stakeholders by efficient use of resources.

Examples of our approaches to the key stakeholders in
connection with the above include responsible media and public
communications, “Do Good"” campaign for caring employees
and the communities, “Listen to Your Hearts” engagement
programme for soliciting feedbacks from frontline employees
and business partners, and comprehensive sustainability
reporting for the public to understand our position and practices
on material issues concerned by the stakeholders and the
context and business realities that we are operating in and
facing with.

Stakeholder engagement

Our key stakeholders mainly include business partners, customers,
employees, investors, media and non-profit organisations. Their
primary areas of interest and the results of materiality assessment
are detailed in our Sustainability Report.

[=] 5[]
2

" Scan the QR code to refer to our Sustainability Report

= B RE2MRMN [TRERERS ]
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Investor Relations

Corporate Governance Asia
EMEEES

8™ Asian Excellence Award 2018 _
Asia’s Best CEO (Investor Relations)
— Kent Wong

Asia’s Best CFO (Investor Relations)

We are committed to being responsible and transparent
towards our investors in order to bolster their confidence
towards the Company.

Since being founded in 1929, we have stayed focused on the
development of the jewellery business. We supervise directly
the key functions throughout our value chain from procurement
of raw materials, design and production, to marketing and sales.

After we became listed on the Stock Exchange in 2011,
transparency, communication and fair treatment have always
been the core values to our approach in investor relations. We
believe that facilitating investors to make informed investment
decisions would enhance their confidence towards the Company.

In FY2019, the Company received various industry accolades in
recognition of our relentless effort in corporate governance and
investor relations.

SR ERE

— ER(KTWE)

MerComm, Inc.
ARC Awards 2018

Jewellery)
Galaxy Awards 2018

— Main Board (Large-Cap)
EHARIEBAEE2018

Stakeholder Relations
BHEBRE

REERMR

Hong Kong Economic Journal

Listed Company Awards of Excellence 2018

Bronze Award (Traditional
Annual Report — Retail —

[HRREEERRIERAE  EHETREER
o] RERMNRE -

B1929FAIsR AR M —EF T HRUKREEMN
X% HEEBEEEELBFERMERE &5
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Wbl F# wasn

Institutional Investor

2018 All-Asia (ex-Japan)

Executive Team Rankings (Consumer/
Discretionary sector)

— Best Investor Relations Professional — Third

M

7{@%2
A5 OF EX

Place — Danita On (Nominated by the sell side)

— Hamilton Cheng

— Best Investor Relations Company (Hong Kong)
— Best Investor Relations Professional
— Danita On

SE/VERMEBAI2018
— TMRETHEH(REERER) — ERE
— DNREERMBEE(REERER)
— HBIRER
— RERAEBERER(RE)
— REREEMRES — RBRR

— Gold Award (Design — Annual
Reports — Traditional — Hong Kong)
— Gold Award (Mobile Media
— Annual Report)

ARC K% 2018

— A% (EHRFHR — TEHE —KE)
Galaxy X2 2018

— ®8 (Rt — BBEEHFR)

— &8 (FHRER — FR)

2018 “£/E All-Asia Executive Team (TE1EB7A)

T — FEMEHEREAR

— REREGEBEREE —F-F — ZBRHF(HE
FoTEIRA)

Bloomberg Businessweek/
Chinese Edition

HEEERT PR
Listed Enterprises of the Year 2018
— Listed Enterprises of the Year

FELEMRE2018
— FEETRE
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Timely and transparent disclosure

Enhancing transparency has been our Board’s crucial mission in
governance. Maintaining a high level of transparency prompts
us to be responsible to stakeholders in our decisions and
operations, and to proactively prepare for scrutiny and the ever-
changing regulatory environment.

To ensure timely and simultaneous public access to the Group’s
material information, we publish announcements and results
presentations, annual and interim reports and press releases via
public channels including websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company. We also hold press and analyst conferences at
least twice a year after releasing the interim and annual results.

The presentations and webcasts for these conferences are
uploaded to our company website. In addition, we keep our
website up-to-date and provide an “Investor FAQ" section for
ease of reference. Furthermore, investors can subscribe to our
email alerts and have access to contact our investor relations
and corporate communications team directly via email at
ir@chowtaifook.com.

We publish quarterly voluntary announcements of key
operational data in standard format shortly after each
quarter end.

The Company has policies and internal control measures in
place regarding inside information disclosure to ensure
announcements are published in due course. We adhere to
the principle of providing timely, transparent and effective
disclosures with the aim of keeping the market regularly
informed of the Group's performance and minimising
market surprises.

Our motives for enhancing annual reports go beyond compliance
with the Listing Rules. The annual report is not only a means of
communication with our shareholders, but also an internal
management tool that drives us to continuously improve and
create value.
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Interactive engagement

We believe communication with our shareholders is a two-way
process. We make no distinction between institutional and
retail investors.

While we try to understand investors’ perspective, we also
share with them a full picture of our business through the eyes
of the management, including our thoughts in making
decisions, our views on market outlook, our development
strategies etc. In addition to reporting results, we take a step
forward to show how we run the business and how the Group
shall evolve in the future.

Our executive directors and senior management in the investor
relations team participate in various investor meetings,
conferences and non-deal roadshows every year. Pursuant to
our regular shareholding analyses conducted during the year,
over half of the institutional shareholdings were held by
overseas investors, mainly from Europe and North America. In
FY2019, we attended investor relations events held in Boston,
Hong Kong, London, New York, Paris, Shenzhen, Singapore,
Sydney, Taipei, Tokyo and Toronto.

We also maintained continuous dialogues with a large number
of analysts from research institutions, 17 of which published
research reports of our Company on a regular basis.

Investor visits are often arranged to our operation centres, POS
and production facilities. In FY2019, we invited investors to our
Mainland China headquarters in Shenzhen to showcase different
store and product experiences under our multi-brand strategy.

Multi-brand strategy announcement
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Meetings by investor event in FY2019
(REEEEHHE)

2019 MBI FE E =%

29.4%

19.0%

Major investor conferences that we participated in FY2019 are set

33.2%

18.4%

316

One-on-one and group meetings

— YRR

14

@ Conference call BsEEH
Face-to-face meeting E¥H 2%
Investor conference IR & &S

Non-deal roadshows

HRHER

Summary of investor relations activities in FY2019
2019 MHFEEREERFZEHEE

67%

C-level participation rate'”
REEEBRESLERED

11

Investor conferences

REEWE

10

Cities visited
EEirdi

(1) Ininvestor conference and non-deal roadshow meetings

® Non-deal roadshow ¥R 5 & (1) REAEMAGRIRSUEFNTH

BMR 2019 BMFERELENRE K EESHWT

out below:
Date Event Location
B 1) E 3] hEh
June 2018 Deutsche Bank 15" Annual dbAccess Global Consumer Conference Paris
201846 A EESRTREEMNS g
Kim Eng Invest Asia 2018 London
eREEERTE (GE
Goldman Sachs GHM Greater Bay Corporate Day Hong Kong
mRREERTE N
July 2018 J.P. Morgan’s Hong Kong/China Consumer 1x1 Forum 2018 Hong Kong
201847 A ERABIREERNE 9
September 2018 J.P. Morgan Asia Pacific CEO-CFO Conference 2018 New York
201849 A ERABIREERNE g
CLSA 25™ Investors' Forum Hong Kong
PRREEMIS B
January 2019 Deutsche Bank 17" Annual dbAccess China Conference Shenzhen
201941 A EEERTREEMNT S 3l
Goldman Sachs Consumption Corporate Day Hong Kong
mRREEWTE G
February 2019 TF Annual Strategic Conference Shenzhen
201942 A REREEHRN G el
March 2019 Daiwa Investment Conference Tokyo 2019 Tokyo
201943 A RHEEERAE R
Credit Suisse 22" Annual Asian Investment Conference Hong Kong
HEREEMNE B
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The annual general meeting (“AGM") is a platform for face-to-
face communication with our shareholders. Our Board and
external auditors attend the AGM and answer questions raised
by shareholders on the performance of the Group. Shareholders
are welcomed to stay after the AGM and meet our Managing
Director and Executive Director, Finance and Operations for
further exchanges.

In our meetings with investors, frequently discussed topics
include business outlook, gross margin, change in product mix,
POS network, industry benchmarking, capital expenditure,
inventory management, e-commerce business, dividend payout
ratio, free cash flows and so on.

Investors often give us constructive ideas that inspire us to
improve and create more values for shareholders. We are
therefore always keen to engage with investors.

Our investor relations and corporate communications team also
plays an important role in assisting the Board to obtain market
feedback, which in turn helps to strengthen the Company's
inside information policy.

We constantly monitor the share price of the Company, screen
media and analyst reports, document feedback from investor
meetings in order to understand market expectations.

Based on such information, we are able to conduct analysis for
the directors to assess whether market expectations differ
significantly from the Group's circumstances.

Such information also facilitates the Company to assess the
likelihood of material share price movement in the event that a
particular piece of information on the Group's circumstances is
made public.

Furthermore, such market signals help the Company to
determine whether certain media news or market rumours
would mislead the market and thus should be clarified; and to
monitor whether the Group's inside information that relies on a
safe harbour provision has been leaked, in which case disclosure
is immediately required.

Stakeholder Relations
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Fair treatment of shareholders

Shareholder analysis, conducted every quarter, enables us to
review our investor relations strategy and work plan. Through
well-planned roadshows and investor conferences, we
endeavour to make long-term value of the Company visible to
the investment community at large, thereby enhancing the
investment return to all shareholders.

No selective disclosure of inside information is allowed in our
Company. We have formalised controls on the sources of
information and the communication channels.

We emphasise the integrity and consistency in the content of
the annual and interim reports, which contain information
desired by investors and the public.

This set of published information is used in investor meetings
and conferences.

According to our spokesperson policy, only designated
executive directors and the investor relations and corporate
communications team are authorised to speak to or hold
meetings with investors or media on behalf of the
Company. Attendance notes and call logs are properly kept
for future reference.

Our investor relations and corporate communications team
establishes its own code of practices, which includes setting
out a quiet period to refrain from investor relations activities
before results announcement; preparing scripts and Q&As to
manage the information released to the public; and obtaining
approval from the Board on the results presentation materials.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A
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Corporate Communications

e Qur corporate communications team is responsible for
developing communications strategies and messaging with the
management of the Group, and creating, implementing and
overseeing communications programmes.

e Through effective communications of the Group’s business
development, initiatives and prospects, it helps us to promote our
corporate reputation and branding, and convey corporate messages
efficiently to a wider range of stakeholders including media.

e Apart from organising press conferences, publishing
announcements and press releases, as well as timely update of
media centre in our corporate website, we also arranged 34
media interviews and handled 64 media enquiries in FY2019, in
addition to 43 corporate events including leadership speaking,
visits to the production facilities and stores, as well as
luncheons and gatherings for media and stock commentators
held during the financial year. Furthermore, media can have
direct access to contact us via email at media@chowtaifook.com.

Stakeholder Relations
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e \We organised a tour in July 2018 engaging the Hong Kong and
regional media to visit our capabilities in diamond cutting and
polishing, jewellery artistry and automated inventory
replenishment and distribution in Shunde Ingenuity Centre. The
media also had a fun experience of making jewellery in a tailored

workshop tutored by our master artisans.

HFIN 201847 ABHEEE LM R FESE
IBEEE B EROMEEE - FREK T RRMEHE
AUENTE RETERBHEERYRAETH
MEN - 2ENERFTERMHTERMIEE 1
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e To maintain a dialogue with stock commentators and share with
them our business strategies and views on market outlook, a
stock commentator luncheon cum jewellery appreciation was
organised in December 2018.

WF?EA2018$12ﬂ%%ﬁﬁ“ﬂ%?ﬁgﬁggéﬁ
B FEMUHERTFREA  TEMMIZRMNES
ﬁfﬂ’zﬂﬁm%ﬁu SHRAE

e To introduce our artistic incubation space Loupe, the Hong Kong
and international media was invited to a gathering cum festive
workshop in January 2019. Having a chance to understand the
mission of Loupe is to nurture young jewellery talents, the
media was also thrilled to the experiences we offered in Loupe
as a communal space for public to enable their own creations.

BN BEMNENE B =M Loupe * BB R BRRE
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S EBRE

Information for Investors BREHEM
Investor calendar BEEQ
FY2019 annual results announcement 2019 EERFLENE
6 June 2019 201946 A6 H
AGM BRAEXE
2 August 2019 201948 HA2H
Proposed payment of final dividend and special dividend BRI E SRS

on or about 21 August 2019

Closure of register of members (both days inclusive)
For ascertaining attendance and voting right at the AGM
30 July to 2 August 2019

For ascertaining entitlement to proposed final dividend and

special dividend

201948 A 21 HeLAIE

EEMERMBFELTE(ERMXBEEA)
REELERRBFRAGINEG LRF
201947 H30BZE8H2H

AR IR R IR B AN Rl AR B e R A

9 August 2019 201948 A9H
Share information B EE
Company name AT &EHE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited AXEHREEEGRAR
Listing L

Hong Kong Stock Exchange BB
Stock code 153 1 50

1929 1929

Listing date LtHEE

15 December 2011 2011412 A15H
Board lot size EFEEED

200 shares 200 %

Issued share capital as at 31 March 2019
10,000,000,000 shares

Index constituent

Hang Seng Composite Index

Hang Seng China (Hong Kong-listed) 100 Index

FTSE Asian Retail Index

Hang Seng High Dividend Yield Index

Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Benchmark Index

201943 A 31 HE#TRAE
10,000,000,000 %

Rt B

BEGEEE
BAEFRE (FE L) 1005
ERTDMEEXER
BASRKRERER
BARKAEROEELERY
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Shareholder services

BRSRAR 7S

For matters relating to your shareholding such as transfer of shares,
change of name or address, and loss of share certificates, please
write to our Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar:

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen's Road East

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2980-1333

Fax:(852) 2810-8185

Shareholders can obtain the annual/interim report of the Company by
writing to our Hong Kong Branch Registrar, or access the electronic
version from our corporate website.

BB BTHORBEE MRGEE  ERMEE R
REXRE - BUEEHRBARMAGEERHBLE
M

EEREHFELERAA
B

SERBER 1835
BB 221E

B i ¢ (852) 2980-1333
& : (852) 2810-8185

PSR AT R A B R P B IRA B P B T H BB
FARARTNER, PEWE - SRR R BB
ETIR -

Investor relations

REERIE

For more information about the Group, please visit
corporate.chowtaifook.com

or contact our Investor Relations and Corporate Communications at
38/F, New World Tower

16-18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong

Tel:  (852) 2524-3166

Fax: (852) 2526-9178

e-mail: ir@chowtaifook.com

FEAARKREFE  FAE
corporate.chowtaifook.com

SR MR IRE & R R EREA
BEBERRER 16-185%
FHERAKREI8E

EiE ¢ (852) 2524-3166

85 : (852) 2526-9178

EH : ir@chowtaifook.com

General information —g&ER
Headquarters and principal place of business in Hong Kong BMEEETES XM
33/F, New World Tower BEREERREP16-18%
16-18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong it A KE 3312
Registered office M E R

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P. O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A
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Shareholders’ rights

e \We endeavour to ensure that shareholders are treated fairly and

are able to exercise their shareholders’ rights effectively.
Shareholders are entitled by the Articles and are also
encouraged to participate in the Company’s general meetings or
appoint proxies to attend and vote. Shareholder(s) holding not
less than 10% of the Company's paid-up capital may request
the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting and put
forward proposals. The objectives of the meeting must be
stated in the related requisition signed and deposited with our
company secretary at the Company’s headquarters at 33/F,
New World Tower, 16-18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person for election as
director in a general meeting, the particulars of the candidate
must be stated in a nomination notice signed by such
shareholder and deposited together with a notice of willingness
signed by the candidate to our company secretary at the
Company’s headquarters or at our Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar (Tricor Investor Services Ltd., Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong) of the Company.
The notice should be given at least seven days prior to the date
of such general meeting.

Enquiries may be put to our investor relations and corporate
communications team and the Board via email at
ir@chowtaifook.com.

Constitutional documents

e There was no change made to the constitutional documents of

the Company during the year.

Market capitalisation
e As at 31 March 2019, the market capitalisation of the listed

shares of the Company was approximately HK$79.4 billion (31
March 2018: HK$89.4 billion) based on the total number of
10,000,000,000 issued shares of the Company and the closing
price of HK$7.94 per share.

Stakeholder Relations
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Dividend information

Full year dividend payout ratio!"

It is the Company's policy to strike a balance between making
an efficient use of capital to strengthen our business
development and rewarding our shareholders with a
participation in the Company’s profits. The Company does not
have a pre-determined dividend payout ratio. In determining
the amount and form of dividend, the Board will consider the
Group’s cash flows and financial position, its earnings capacity
and the external economic conditions, its business
development plans and capital requirements, the dividend
receivable by the Company from its subsidiaries and taxation
considerations, any restrictions on the payment of dividends,
other applicable laws and regulations, and any other factors
that the Board considers appropriate. In the absence of special
or unexpected circumstances, the Company intends to declare
dividends twice a year. Notwithstanding all the above, we
cannot assure any amount or ratio for the distribution of
dividends in any financial period.

2ERBED

For the year ended 31 March 23 A31 HILFE
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Special dividend excluded

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this
annual report, the directors confirm that the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float of 10.7%, which is a
lower minimum percentage of public float accepted at the
discretion of the Stock Exchange.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEARBHRELEB AR QT

kB &#

Q]

ARBHBEHRENZAERAZEEHERIA
KBRS ZFBHAKRZEEUS F& o A2 R I
BEROKSE - EARAERNVBREEERAR &
ERSEREAEENReRBRUBNLNR - AT
BENARSNERBERR - EEBHRFIBNELRT
SR RN R E B AR AR R B R E
B REBERS  HMBEREREIRANARESES
RAEABENEFMEMEAR - RB IR RIET U
WERT  ARBABFREERMAME - BELX
At BAEERBRNEAT IR IREENE
BRI = -

—e~ Full year dividend payout ratio

2EREE

TERERHHES

ERMATBHIRE

REBEARAESHNAREN RAESHAA  EFH
RRAEHREH - NAFRMBFBIMEBITREAOR
BRI DBHREADE10.7% °



Board Governance 1 23
BEEEER

Board Governance

EXEEAR

Board of Directors
EEG

Provide leadership for and exercise control over the
Group by directing and supervising on its affairs
HEMEEARRENER - UBAGMERAREE

Nomination Committee
REEEE

Review the performance,
structure, size and composition
of the Board, assess the
independence of the
independent non-executive
directors and make
recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and
re-appointment of directors,
board refreshment and
succession plan, nomination
policy and diversity policy

BREFERR - RE - AEN
MR RHEBIERITEENE
I ARRERENEHRZEE
£ EFTEMREESE R

Remuneration Committee
FMESE

Review the remuneration policy
and structure for the directors
and senior management,
determine their remuneration
packages with delegated
responsibilities, and make
recommendations on the
remuneration policy for the
employees of the Group

B EERBREEENHMK
RRAE BEREETHMNG
B Wt AR E R B &R
e 2

Audit Committee
BZZEEE

Engage external auditors; review
the Group's financial and
non-financial information,
financial reporting system,
internal control and risk
management systems and
corporate governance report; and
hear the reports of internal audit,
compliance, anti-fraud and
whistleblowing

RESME R BB AN BAR A KR E B
BRIMBEAR  HBERER
B AR EEMAERERE R
REXERRE - RERANE
% AR REEEMBMEHIN

Executive Committee
WITEEE

Oversee the day-to-day
management and operation with
the Board's delegated authority;
monitor the execution of
strategic plans and operations of
all business units

ZREFEENREEERTEE
REEEE  EERBUEEN
HITREXBEMNEE

EHEREER S TIRERD W&
SEAEFERLEELRE

Subcommittees
INAEET

Formulate strategies and supervise
performance related to enterprise-wide
governance duties, such as risk
management, sustainability, reform and
development, human resources and IT
governance of the Group

BRI R EE B EREEE R EEN
=B PIMAEENRRBRER - A
TR HERER ANERREMR

RERF

Managing Director

ESHER

Strategic investment

SRR IR E

Sustainable development and innovation
in the areas of culture & art,
craftsmanship and creativity, driven by
branding, design, production, sales
channel, data and technology

AfmpsEss - &REH £E- HERE B
BEEMES X REN - TEMAEETE
MRS R IR R AT

Core business

ERER

Retail operations in Mainland China, Hong
Kong, Macau and other markets and raw
material procurement

ErEA - FE RFREMHENTE
EBEEREMBRE

Corporate functions
I
Finance, IT, human capital and legal

BEs - BB ANEARER
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Board Governance Framework and Major Tasks

The Board's role is to provide leadership for the Company and
direction for the management as an independent decision-
making body. Our Board is collectively responsible and
accountable to our shareholders for the Group’s performance.

The Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee each has its respective terms of reference
specified by the Board to undertake detailed governance work.
A brief summary of their tasks during FY2019 is shown on the
chart in the preceding page and further mentioned in the
sections below.

The Executive Committee is delegated with all the powers,
authorities and discretion to act for the Board according to its
terms of reference in all operational, managerial and
administrative functions concerning the Group's ordinary course
of business. It monitors the execution of the Group's strategic
plans and the operations of all business units of the Group.

Matters beyond its delegated authority are reserved to the
Board for decision, including those transactions which are
notifiable transactions or non-exempt connected transactions
under the Listing Rules; or in which an executive director has
(individually or together with others) material interest; and those
matters of onerous or unusual nature.

The roles of our Chairman and Managing Director are clearly
defined and there is an effective segregation of duties between
the Board and the management. Our Chairman, Dr. Cheng Kar-
Shun, Henry, provides leadership for the Board and ensures that
the Board works effectively and all important issues are
discussed in a timely manner. Our Managing Director, Mr.
Wong Siu-Kee, Kent, takes the lead in managing the Group's
operations and business development.

Directors’ Composition and Appointments

The Board currently comprises a total of 17 directors, with 10
executive directors, 1 non-executive director and 6
independent non-executive directors. The profile, role and
function of each director, their relationship with each other and
the membership of the board committees are set out in the
section headed "Profile of Directors and Senior Management”
in this annual report.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A
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The Nomination Committee takes a hard look at the Board
composition to align the talents in the boardroom with the
Company's strategy and future needs through a systematic
evaluation approach. It starts from a management questionnaire
to understand management’s expectation on the qualities of
their Board leaders, and then a custom-made survey with
engagement of all Board members to prioritise the challenges
facing the Company in the medium term and the urgency of
strategies to be effectively executed, as well as to suggest the
required attributes of the future Board and top management,
and to think of the personal edge each director has. Based on
the above, the Nomination Committee discusses in-depth on
the list of desirable skills, perspectives and experience required
by the future Board and top executives. We emphasise on a
productive tone for such evaluations which further promotes
active engagements and sense of openness of Board members
to plan for their own learning and development as well as the
leadership pipelines.

After reviewing the strengths and weaknesses of current
composition of the Board, the Nomination Committee sets out
objectives in searching for potential candidates and selection
criteria. It will then invite nomination of candidates and consider
a broad range of candidates who are in and outside the Board's
circle of contacts. Suitability of the proposed candidates will be
evaluated with reference to the pre-set selection criteria,
amongst which the candidates’ potential contributions and
diversity in perspectives expected to be brought to the Board
are key considerations.

The above approach guiding through the whole process of
directors’ selection, appointment, re-appointment and
succession planning has been formalised in the Company’s
Board nomination policy with a view to ensuring an optimal
Board mix with balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company's business.

During the year, Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily and Ms. Cheng Chi-
Man, Sonia who are working in the fields of technology and
customer experience, respectively, have been recommended
to the Board for appointments in accordance with the
nomination policy and process. The Board expects them to
play a part in contributing to our “Smart+ 2020" business
innovation strategies.
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e The Company has a Board diversity policy. The Company

believes that greater diversity of directors promotes good
corporate governance because it enables better Board decisions
to be made attributable to thorough considerations, broader
insights and risk intelligence through multiple lenses. Diversity
also enables the Board to better understand our customers’ and
stakeholders’ needs.

The Company sees diversity as a wide concept and believes
that a diversity of perspectives can be achieved through
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
skills and knowledge, regional and industry experience, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, gender, age, length of
service and other qualities of the members of the Board.

The Company endeavours to form a high-performing Board with
appropriate combination of competency and diversity of
perspectives aligning with the Company's strategy and
objectives. In forming its diversity objectives, the Company will
take into account its own business model and specific needs
from time to time.

e The diversity of the Board is summarised in the following charts:

Independence Age

B EB

41%

6

INEDs
BYFBITES
@ INED B FHTES
NED JEi17# S
59% 6% ED $UTEE
INEDs’ length of service Gender
BIAEBITESRBEH TR

7

Average years of service

SRR FHA
@ 0-6 yearsF

7-9 years®

83% 88%
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Our Board members come from diverse business and
professional background. They have worked for industries which
have operations similar to us, such as consumer goods,
manufacturing and supply chain, and also emerging industries
horizontally across the customers’ lifestyle and enjoyments,
such as lifestyle products and fashion,
entertainment, travel and hospitality, innovation and technology,

leisure and

healthcare, finance and insurance.

In terms of market experience, apart from our major markets
Mainland China and Hong Kong, knowledge about the Europe
and US market are well supplemented by our independent
directors. Besides, some directors are closely in touch with the
young customer and high-end customer segments.

For the professional knowledge, in addition to expertise in retail
and jewellery, quite a few Board members are professionals in
corporate strategies and risk management, listed company
governance, capital market and finance, and some of them are
knowledgeable in the field of technology and data analytics.

The Nomination Committee held three meetings within the
year during which, amongst other things, the performance,
structure, size and composition of the Board were reviewed.
The Nomination Committee reviews the measurable diversity
objectives and the progress of achieving them. The joining of
two female and young directors in April 2019 has contributed
to a desirable Board mix in view of gender and age diversity.
Looking forward, we expect more Board members to have
acquired proven experiences in young consumer market and
business innovations, and the Board as a whole to possess
broad spectrum of connections and intelligence across
multiple commercial fields which embarks idea crossovers
and collaborative innovations along the consumers’ value
chain in a wider market.

All directors have formal letters of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years, subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Articles. Appointments to the
Board and Board committees are made for specific terms to
facilitate regular reviews and planning for any adaptations in the
structure and composition of the Board.
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Board Effectiveness
Leadership and control

Strategies drive our risk-based management approach
which aims at seizing emerging opportunities amid the
changing external and internal environment,
achieve sustainability.

in order to

For strategic planning, strategy and risk evaluation workshops
are held to facilitate the Board to devise the Group's strategy
plan for the forthcoming year and determine the critical tasks
and key performance indicators. We also organise annual
corporate planning day to lay down the work plans for various
business units and arrange budget meetings to discuss on the
annual financial budget of the Group.

For strategy execution, the Executive Committee holds monthly
meetings to receive the performance reports, monitor the
financial budget and analyse the outcomes of the Group's
strategies in order to review or make appropriate adaptations.
Sub-meetings of Executive Committee dive deeper into each
business segment to supervise on critical aspects such as
strategic prioritisation, resources allocation and performance
measurement around the corporate strategies, the planning and
building of profit drivers and budgets, managing the portfolios of
products and customers and so on.
diversified businesses and flat organisation, the Executive
Committee is developing an effective process to improve

In view of increasingly

noou

communications across “core business”, “strategic investment”

and “corporate functions” to “connect the dots” and help
promote synergies as well as the alignment of talent, reward,

culture, risk appetite, and controls with the corporate strategies.

In the four Board meetings held during the year, the Managing
Director took the lead to make reports to the Board on various
aspects, including business performance and prospects, financial
performance, risk management and corporate governance.
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During the year, the Board allocated sufficient time to discuss
on strategies related to development of multi-brands, product
differentiation, expansion of wholesale business, and
technology applications in enhancing customer experience,
diversifying sales and marketing channels and in maximising
production efficiency. In addition to the “Smart+ 2020" three-
year strategic framework, the Board further laid down the long-
term goals in relation to market share expansion, customer
experience improvement and stable returns to our shareholders.

Between Board meetings, the Company also provides monthly
updates to all independent directors on the Group's
performance and position to enable them to make balanced
assessment and objective judgement in Board meetings for
the benefit of the Group. The monthly pack includes financial
summary against budget, latest news about our operating
regions, product and consumer markets, corporate news
highlighting our milestone achievements and key events, and
a brief of matters arising from the monthly Executive
Committee meeting.

The enhanced accountability and objectivity of the management
are built on the scientific management approach mentioned
above which promotes a professional management style.

Board independence in decision-making

We believe that independence is crucial for the Board to work
effectively to create value for our stakeholders as a whole.
Notwithstanding the family stake of 89.3%, the Company is
committed to maintaining a balance among the interests of the
stakeholders by implementing various corporate governance
policies and practices.

The Group and the controlling shareholder exhibit independence
in regard to their respective operation, asset holding and
financial management. The business nature differs from each
other so that conflict of interests are minimised fundamentally
in the absence of directly competing business.
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Driving for long-term value is the main objective in making Board
decisions. During the year, the independent non-executive
directors raised questions actively in Board meetings and Board
committee meetings, taking into account both the commercial
context and the perspectives of minority shareholders, and
enabled the Board to make thoughtful decisions which we
believe would be regarded as reasonable by third parties and to
keep the interests of the controlling shareholder and other
shareholders in alignment. In view of this, independent directors
nominated to the Board are required to be of sufficient calibre
and experience for their views to carry weight and for them to
pose constructive challenge to Board proposals. Private meetings
were also held for independent directors to meet the chairman of
the Board without the presence of other directors.

In respect of our approach to connected transactions, we work
together with related companies mainly for collaborating efforts
in marketing to explore value-added services for our common
customers. With each of us contributing our edge, we believe
such efforts could enhance the competitiveness of our brand
and shareholders’ interests as a whole.

When approving a connected transaction, apart from the
fairness of the agreement terms, the independent directors also
consider the commercial rationale and the benefits brought by
the proposal to the business of the Group.

It is a norm for the director who is a connected person in
relation to the connected transaction tabled for approval to
declare his interest in advance and then abstain from voting on
that resolution, regardless of the materiality of such interest.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from all the independent non-executive
directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board is of the view that all the independent non-executive
directors are independent.
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Compliance and audit

The Board is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the
Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, primarily the Listing Rules, the
Companies Ordinance and the Securities and Futures
Ordinance; and for developing and reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance.

The Company has established its policy for inside information
disclosures as well as its internal controls on the reporting and
monitoring systems so that material matters are escalated to
the Board in a timely manner for them to judge whether inside
information exists and whether an announcement is required to
disclose inside information in due course.

All our directors and employees are bound by the prevention of
insider dealing policy of the Company and should refrain from
dealing in the Company's securities if they are in possession of
any inside information of the Group.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules regarding the securities
transactions by all the directors and those employees who are
likely to come across inside information because of their duties.
Having made specific enquiry of all our directors and relevant
employees, they confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code and the
Company's code of conduct during FY2019.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are discussed
in the section headed “Corporate Governance"” in this annual
report. During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company
was in full compliance with all applicable principles and code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code")
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
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The Board, supported by the finance department, is
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of
the Company and the Group. The directors were not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The statement by the auditors of
the Company and the Group regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company
and the Group is set out in the section headed “Independent
Auditor's Report” of this annual report.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year. They
reviewed the financial statements for the Group's interim and
annual results. They also reviewed reports on the Group's risk
management, internal controls, internal audit and
whistleblowing system, and discussed the related matters
directly with the management, external and internal auditors.
The Audit Committee has reviewed and was satisfied with the
effectiveness of our risk management and internal control
systems. Further details are included under the section headed
“Risk Management Report” in this annual report.

The Audit Committee has reviewed and was satisfied with the
external auditor’s independence, objectivity and effectiveness
of the audit process. During FY2019, the total fee paid/payable
in relation to audit services provided to the Group amounted to
HK$6.6 million, of which a sum of HK$3.0 million was paid/
payable to our principal auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, and
the remaining was mainly paid/payable to other auditors
performing audit work for the Company's subsidiaries
in Mainland China which were subject to local
statutory requirements. The remuneration paid to
PricewaterhouseCoopers and its affiliated firms for services
rendered is listed as follows:

BEXZ MBI TEEREARRNALE
Ik - EF W IABEM AT e HAEERHE
IR DB AK B K B R Y S S I AR R B (R 4A]
ERTHARESE o A FIA 5 3 2 B Bt A P98
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MAFEHRE B AZBENHE ] —6 -
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FY2018 FY2019

Types of services HK$°000 HK$'000
REER THET FExT
Audit services! EizRE M - 2,976
Audit-related services™ EZBE R - 1,137
Non-audit services®? B ZARTE @ 4,442 2,553
4,442 6,666

Notes:

(1

PricewaterhouseCoopers has been appointed as the auditor of the Company since FY2019. No
audit and audit-related services were provided in prior years.
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(2)

In FY2018, non-audit services comprise primarily services on internal audit, tax compliance and
IT system enhancement provided to the Group. Services on internal audit was ceased since
the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the independent auditor of the Group. In
FY2019, non-audit services comprise primarily services on tax compliance and IT related
services to the Group. None of these services provided compromise the independence as
auditor, in terms of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants, and were reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.

Dedication and evaluation

The directors have diligently and actively engaged in our Group's
business. Each executive director has his own role and function
to oversee the Group's operations. They formulate corporate
strategies, supervise operations and take part in day-to-day
management. They attend the Company’s business meetings
and monthly meetings of the executive directors, managing
director and senior management, provide leadership over and
supervise the attainment of the Company’s business objectives.

Their performances are closely related to the results and
development of our Group. As such, the Board (including the
independent non-executive directors) reviews and evaluates
their performance by the Group's success in strategies,
operating efficiency, effectiveness in risk management and
internal control systems, reliability and disclosure standards in
financial reporting, corporate governance standards and
milestones achieved in sustainable development through various
management reports and the annual report, taking into account
investors’ feedback and comments.

Our independent non-executive directors have devoted
sufficient time attending to the Board's business and affairs and
have high attendance in Board and committee meetings.
Outside the boardrooms, they also spend time visiting our
operations, speaking to the senior and middle management or
internal auditors, attending training and reading latest updates
which are relevant to their roles in governance.
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Attendance at AGM and Board meetings

BRRBFXENES TS HRL Bk

Number of meetings attended/eligible to attend for FY2019

2019 M FEHE AEREFEERE

Annual
General Board Nomination Remuneration Audit
Meeting Meeting Committee Committee Committee
BRERBFAE EZEgeR REZES® FTMES® EREER
Executive Directors HITESE
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry BRAE L il 4/4¢ 2/3 1/2 -
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent BHRERE 1N 4/4 3/3 2/2 -
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian B A5 1 171 4/4 - - -
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy BEE L 11 4/4 - - -
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton ERER S & 1/1 4/4 - - -
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong PRith 2 554 11 4/4 - - -
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter FREma - 1/1 4/4 - - -
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert PR il 3/4 - - -
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BiRATE 1N 4/4 - - -
Non-executive Director EWNITESE
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson ESRIZ ST A& 1/1 4/4 - - -
Independent Non-executive
Directors BIUFPITES
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor BEEE L 11 4/4 3/3¢ 2/2 -
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond BB E L il 4/4 3/3 2/2°¢ 3/3
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon B8 & il 4/4 - 2/2 3/3¢
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul BRI S & 0/1 3/4 3/3 - 3/3
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey N ER S 0/1 4/4 3/3 - 3/3
Note: B 5
C  represents the chairman of Board or the relevant Board committees C BESENIERESZEENERF
¢ |n addition, we use evaluations to drive continuous improvement o ItAN - BAMIARE A B IS ENGE - UREEN

and foster a sense of urgency with respect to critical change
initiatives. We also strive to keep benchmarking to the best
practices of corporate governance against regulator and investor
priorities, leading market practices, and governance recommendations.

During the year, we took a fresh look at the agenda, allocation
of oversight responsibilities and processes of the Board
committees to enhance their effectiveness. The Nomination
Committee has re-crafted its agendas to develop a more
effective process for promoting the alignment of corporate
strategies, with the review on board composition, board
diversity objectives and finally the nomination and selection of
directors, and succession planning for the future.
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e The Audit Committee has re-defined its oversight

responsibilities into six core areas, including (i) external audit,
(i) financial, non-financial and narrative reporting, (iii) financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control
systems, (iv) internal audit, (v) compliance, fraud and
whistleblowing, and (vi) corporate governance. It has also set
out clearly in its updated terms of reference the objectives of
the oversight duties in each of these areas and the information
and processes required by the Audit Committee for review.
The Audit Committee considers that cross-referencing the
reports from all these governance functions gives them a
holistic view and enables the Audit Committee to discharge its
governance duties more effectively.

The Remuneration Committee is considering to devote more
time to the oversight of the Group's talent strategies and culture
building which, in addition to effective incentive systems, are
also vital to drive our human capital towards the achievement of
strategic goals.

In the last year, we conducted a survey to collect directors’
feedbacks on the quality and adequacy of information provided
to the directors. With regards to the ever-changing retail
landscape, our independent directors anticipate to have more
details on the customers and business model and strategy
execution for the Board meetings and more time shall be
allocated to consider forward looking issues. In order to enable
the right information to flow up to Board meetings, we
recognised the urgency to have a right governance structure to
oversee the strategy execution, especially upon the re-
organisation of the Group into businesses and innovation
businesses. During the year, sub-meetings of the Executive
Committee have been set up for different business segments.
This helps the Executive Committee to “connect the dots” and
compile a whole picture of the Group's strategic map and mark
its check-points for presenting to the Board.

Meanwhile, we are committed to enhancing the disclosure
standards of our annual report and the level of transparency for
investors and other members of the public, with a view to
supplying meaningful information which would enable
stakeholders to play a part in evaluating and scrutinising the
Board's performance in corporate governance.
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Remuneration and Continuing Development

The remuneration policy for the executive directors and senior
management is incentive-based, with a significant portion of
discretionary bonus being linked to the overall performance and
profitability of the Group, as well as the share price of the
Company. This aims at enhancing accountability by a better
alignment of their rewards with the interests of our shareholders.

The Remuneration Committee shall ensure that such incentive
systems are well designed to attract, motivate and retain
qualified members of the Board and the management in order
to support the achievement of strategic long- and short-term
goals of the Group as well as to promote value creation for the
benefit of the shareholders.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the
year. Amongst other things, they reviewed the remuneration
policy and structure of directors and senior management,
including the general principles on determining executive
remuneration, components and the calculation basis; and the
market benchmarking in view of the Group’s scale of business
operations and its strategic positioning. In order to ensure the
effective implementation of the remuneration policy, the
Remuneration Committee examined the historical and target
correlation between directors’ remuneration level and the
Group's performance, the fixed and variable remuneration
structure, and market benchmarking for individuals.

Training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management were reviewed and monitored by the
Nomination Committee. We take a strategic approach to re-align
training and development of the management with a view to
driving performance towards our strategic goals. The main
theme is to sharpen the strategic vision and competency of the
management in embracing the era of innovation and disruption.
Each year, the Company organises forums inviting inspirational
speakers and workshops where our leaders coincide to propel
the business priorities.
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e The Company has committed to enriching the roles to be played

by young management and creating promotional opportunities
in their career paths which in turn will promote the sustainability
of the Group's business. Furthermore, as new roles and
responsibilities are emerging across the organisation to meet
the changing strategies, the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee expect to spend more time in the
oversight of the re-aligning of the management succession
planning and leadership development process.

We tailor-made induction programme for new directors in view
of their respective board experience, roles and committee
appointments, as well as their expertise and areas of interest
and potential contribution. The aim is to help the new directors
understand our business and operations, as well as the
strategies and competitive environment, so that they are
enabled to make value-added contributions to the Board,
particularly on providing advice on the strategies. We arrange
briefing sessions and site visits with focused topics, for
example, on how the latest technology applications and
innovative projects are helping the Group to enhance customer
experience, and how automated and customised smart
production is progressing in our production sites. These
occasions also facilitate networking between the new directors
and other Board members and the management team, and help
the new directors to get a feel of the Board culture and
corporate culture.

In addition, new directors can access our online resources
centre specifically created for all Board members. The resources
centre contains the latest information about our business model
and strategies, industry trends and market profiles, business
and financial performance, as well as statutory duties and
responsibilities of directors and corporate governance policies of
the Company. We will further arrange other induction activities
after receiving feedbacks from the new directors on which
areas they expect more in-depth briefings so as to make
efficient use of directors’ time.
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e \We strive to foster a Board culture where ongoing learning is

expected and enabled, and Board members share their
expertise to enhance overall Board knowledge. We share
articles and seminar information in the form of custom-made
newsletters and organise Board seminars related to hot topics
relevant to our Board and our businesses, such as leadership in
times of changes, changing workforce, organising for digital
transformation and updates on governance duties etc. Keeping
abreast of the market pulses, we hope this helps catalyse a
high-performing Board in exercising critical oversight and
objective judgement over the Company's latest developments.

Surveys are conducted to understand each director’s learning
needs, and such surveys are analysed together with their
training records. This analysis assists us in identifying the top
priorities for Board education and planning for the next year.

e The directors’ training records during the year are summarised

HMENEERBERBRER MY ZTEENEN
Exexit URSEFSERNME - BB
HERGNEBABENAMGEEERE S ENNE
ARADEXERFEEEN TEEHEETTH
B MEMBERER2NE ANEREE -
BEUNAREBULREAEENRHERS - &
MAELZERTSEEE  RAZESIRREA - HA
RARFERFEEENERMTEHE -

BPABEHENT A THREREFNEEFE 1
BRI FOIEIIREETON - DMERBBIEMH
FIHARE—FEESEIIMRE TENEBERT -

EEEFAMEIGSEMENT

as follows:
Other professional development
activities
HEEERRED
Attending
trainings
organised by As attendant/
Name the Company As speaker reader
HEARDT fEhdHEE
i AR ER#EE EE
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry HRLE L v/
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent BRELE v v/ v
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian BEME L v/ 4
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy gEEkE v v
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton PR ER SE A v v
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong Bt & v v
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter BREREE v v/
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert PREEAE ST v v
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BiRABLE v v
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson HERIF S A v v
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor B E + v v v
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond RS v v
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon BB 58 S A& v v
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul BB SE A v/ v/
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey NS = S e v v

For the year under review, our joint company secretaries, Mr.
Cheng Ping Hei, Hamilton and Mr. Lai Sau-Cheong, Simon, had
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training as
required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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e \We believe that our commitment to ethical practices and critical o HMIEE @ BB BERUBER T MBS E A5
oversight on our organisational processes and structures has BEFNEBNGERENEEIRT - ILRFERMA
contributed to a strong control environment. It enables our REHE  WRERINES -

organisation to preserve its integrity and be resilient to internal
and external pressures.

e Systematic management infrastructure and scientific analysis o EGMLEBEEMEBNMBLIMERMERKTDHN

have been the key to the internal controls on our business NEEEMRASBABTANAR  IBEERES
activities and governance in our organisational behaviour, BIEER o

supporting a sustainable growth in the scale of operations.

e We consider “ethics” and “science” as the two pillars in o RMRA/IERIAMIBE] BEMEARERFFHEAN

preserving integrity and disciplining behaviour throughout the HEBTANMAIE  IEBENEEER  &E
organisation, which prove to be a pragmatic model to enhance BESEUSMNERRKE  BELEEE-

our trustworthiness with traceable accountability.

Corporate Culture XL

Blessings and collaboration HEHF

e Jewellery represents our commitment to consumers and not o BMTRABKRBEAER  EREAHBEBEELMN
merely a product. We wish to create unforgettable experience BRERE  HERELHUNERNRY - FBRE®
for the most precious moment of our customers with excellent AEERSESHTENALRE  AERAEHS
products and services. In pursuit of our corporate core value of BB - SR3F [EH o kB M EZOERE -
“Sincerity ® Eternity”, we have been committed to giving our BMEEE BE AEBH REMLERR
best and blessings to our customers, employees, partners, HEBW— NEHESXKENNE BHMEEA
shareholders and the society. We ensure proper and efficient FEMER UTALKSHELERM #ELEEHH
use of social resources in support of our business and give back RF@E  HRAKE -

to the society by creating shared value for sustainable
development and establishing a constructive rapport with the

community.

Ethical business practices HEEE

e \We have encountered various challenges along our development o BMUEEREBER KBTS - sl BHEEM
path. Nonetheless, we stay firm in our adherence to good HRIFOEEANER - RARMW [T ERSE]
corporate governance. Having inherited an “artisan” DNA in the REBREMBEmM TG HASEBEHALHE £
pursuit of excellence, we are relentlessly dedicated to details in FELHEETERN— BEERERFBUAMNGEEE B
order to consistently align our beliefs with real-life practices. TEHEEMGEZAGRNES  RERMEIE
Committed to integrity, business ethics and legal compliance, BAERBHENMEMBOERENRENES B
we are widely recognised and supported by customers, partners DERRE  BHAC  KHESHIFEEE -

and other stakeholders. With their support, we are able to
overcome challenges and surpass ourselves in our pursuit of
sustainable development.
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People-oriented objectives

All along, we operate with a people-oriented spirit and regard
communication as fundamental in building mutual trust. We have a
culture of openness in listening to stakeholders’ needs and
expectations through interactions in our daily operation. We
consider that a scientific management system can only thrive by
implementing people-oriented practices in parallel. This can inspire
continuous remediation and enhancement towards our dual goal to
explore growth opportunities for the Group and our stakeholders.

“Listen to Your Heart” programme

In view of the challenge of rapid market changes, the
management focuses on formulating responsive strategies and
stepping up the application of technology and innovation.
Meanwhile, the Board cares about how major stakeholders
(including colleagues and business partners) are coping under
such circumstances. We therefore encourage frequent sharing
and communication hoping that more interactions would inspire
and drive us to make continuous improvement in various
aspects of our operations. We hope to be a faithful partner of
our fellow colleagues who stand by them and grow together in
good and bad times. Trust from our major stakeholders is highly
valued by Chow Tai Fook.

Recently retired senior management members are appointed as
advisors of “Listen to Your Heart” programme. The advisors
pay visits to frontline staff of our POS as well as officers of
shopping malls and franchisees in different cities each month to
understand how they feel about the work environment, team
work, remuneration, administration, technological application,
business performance and prospects in a relaxed setting
through face-to-face conversations and satisfaction surveys. The
advisors then escalate those feedbacks, together with their own
observations, to our directors in an organised way. Actions or
improvement will be taken under the coordination of the
respective executive offices and the Risk Management
Committee. The advisors also made recommendations to the
heads of regional operations based on their observations on the
business sentiments and strengths of these regions.
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This programme has yielded positive results by facilitating our
directors to stay tuned to frontline situations, helping them to
take into account the perspective of major stakeholders in their
decision-making. This programme also reiterates our corporate
culture that emphasises the priority of people and persistent
attention to details. Meanwhile, it has also provided an
alternative means of appraising the management’s performance
and identifying operational risks, thereby strengthening
corporate governance.

Promotion of “Do Good” spirit

Ever since the inception of Chow Tai Fook, bringing happiness
and well-being to people and mutual benefits to partnerships
have been at the heart of our business. While the concept of
sustainability has already been embedded in our business
operations, we have come to realise that better communication
of our efforts pertaining to sustainability both internally and
externally would promote inclusiveness and interactive
engagements with stakeholders. We want to understand more
on how they perceive our current efforts and what they further
expect from us.

Through “Do Good, Feel Good" promotional campaign, we
showcase our various initiatives and deliverables in pursuit of
good business practices, customer relations, well-being of staff
members, better living of community and harmony in a green
environment. We have more real-time sharing with our staff.
We also have “"Do Good” logo, signature, video, information
collection catalogue and message circulation on various social
platforms for staff. Directors, management and staff are invited
to join events promoting “Do Good" spirit.

We aim to create a “Do Good” culture that strengthens our
staff's sense of corporate identity and encourages them to take
part in “Do Good"” in daily lives. We believe “Do Good" is a
shared value across different generations who want to work
with purpose and make a positive impact on the wider society,
and who want our workplace to be aligned with their values.
From now on, “Do Good" is from everyone and for everyone at
Chow Tai Fook.
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Sustainability report

We published a standalone sustainability report, an electronic
version of which is available for download on the corporate website
of the Group (corporate.chowtaifook.com/en/cg/sdreports.php).

The report focuses on aspects with important impacts on or
opportunities for the Group and its stakeholders, including our
ethical business practices, our customers, our people, our
environment and our community.

The sustainability report shall be read in conjunction with this
annual report to form a holistic view on the Group's sustainable
development efforts, which are found with our strategic
planning, corporate governance and business performance, as
well as the recognition of social responsibilities in our strategic
planning and business operation.

Organisational Structure

Our management structure is mainly organised by regions and
functions. All regional and functional heads report to the
Managing Director. Information can flow swiftly in this flat
hierarchy. This empowers the top level to decide precisely on
corporate vision and prioritise strategic initiatives in due course.
Directions at the top level can reach regional offices promptly
for implementation.

Meanwhile, in view of the rapidly changing and diversifying local
markets, our management is adapting to a more agile approach
of business decentralisation. The regional units are promoted as
active owners in charge of the relevant purchase to sale
strategies, taking advantage of their local wisdoms to capture
local opportunities quickly. An appropriate measure of
accountability and autonomy is maintained through appropriate
staffing structure and clear lines of reporting and authority, with
a view to working towards the Group's strategic goals.

Corporate functions such as finance, IT, human capital and legal
have a unified reporting line to the Managing Director. This
promotes collaboration among cross-functional teams and with
external partners towards business priorities and the Group’s
transformation. By thorough analyses on the needs of the
business units, options and risks, these business partners work
with business units collectively to attain strategic goals.
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In addition to the above vertical management structure, we also
have committees jointly led by our executive directors and
senior management, namely the Risk Management Committee,
Sustainability Committee, Reform and Development
Committee, Human Resources Planning Committee and IT
Governance Committee. These committees assist in the
Group's strategic planning for relevant areas and supervise the
attainment of the Group’s objectives.

Further, we have been setting up more project teams to
undertake business explorations and pilot projects. We like the
flexible and open-minded characteristics of small teams which
enable us to be highly responsive to market opportunities, as
well as to train up our young potentials.

To step up these transformational efforts, the Company has
established the Sustainability and Innovations Centre, sided by
the core business units as the Group's strategic investment.
The Sustainability and Innovations Centre is responsible to
oversee all investments related to business innovations that
were once scattered within various core business units. These
strategic investments relating to culture & art, craftsmanship
and creativity aim at diversifying the Group’'s income stream and
building new differentiating capabilities for our business. With
enhanced visibility on its strategic incentives and accountability,
we expect our innovation initiatives to scale up and add to our
business edges in the near future. Under this operating model,
it is also easier to preserve and prioritise resources and attract
talents and partnerships.

Performance and Analysis

The Group conducts business planning on an annual basis, and
all regional offices and departments are required to prepare
financial budgets, which are consolidated at Group level and
subjected to sensitivity tests, while key performance indicators
are also set.

We have established information management systems at the
upstream, midstream and downstream business units to allow
close tracking and monitoring of business input and output,
including the procurement of raw materials, production per
order, inventory control, product sales, human resources and
customer relations.
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Reports and variance analyses of multiple dimensions can be
easily retrieved from the business intelligence system. The
transparency of information transmission allows prompt
indication of deviations in key performance indicators and
business performance trends, thereby providing comprehensive
information for the management to make appropriate decisions
and therefore improve the success rate.

Given the inseparability of financial and business analysis, the
Group has made huge efforts to facilitate the convergence of
financial data and business data to improve the analysis of
effectiveness of strategies and monitor the use of resources,
while enhancing integrated analysis in annual reporting and
overall performance review.

In the digital era, data is a key to drive business innovation and
seize new business opportunities. In order to leverage on big
data analytics and business intelligence, the Group has set up
the Strategic Business Office and Data Intelligence Space to
provide timely, visualized and market-compatible analyses for
the purpose of advising on strategic business solutions.
Examples of these solutions include predictive new launch
analytics, inventory assortment and distribution, salesperson’s
performance management etc.

IT Governance

The management is keen on applying IT resources in close
tandem with the business development of Chow Tai Fook, in
order to support multi-regional management, innovative retail
business model, maintain a close connection among the
upstream, midstream and downstream business units, and
facilitate big data analytics, internal control and business and
financial reporting.

As a key strategic enabler to the Group's digital vision, IT work
plans for the next three years have been laid down to improve
our business agility and operating efficiency. Our work plans
mainly focus on real-time and customised production
management, data-driven decision-making, seamless
workflows and system platforms to foster businesses across
boundaries and time zones, as well as automating tedious
manual processes.
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e The IT Governance Committee comprising executive directors

and senior management in charge of business innovation,
financial and production management, data analysis and IT was
established to provide a platform for constructive debate among
major stakeholders with a view to keeping aligning IT strategies
with business strategies. The potential benefits and risks
associated with the IT needs identified by business units are
weighted in a rational manner from a strategic point of view,
with the aim of finding solutions that maximise the benefits and
efficiency in resource allocation in tandem with the priorities
under the Group's overall strategy.

In the implementation of IT service business alignment,
business analysts teams are set up to actively listen to business
units. Throughout system development or system-change
projects, the business analysts facilitate transparency and
continuous feedbacks amongst the sponsor departments, other
users and IT colleagues. To better align IT manpower with the
future business development of the Group, the business
analysts teams assist to understand better from the business
units on their priorities and plan ahead the job resources for the
next year.

Enhancement of data governance is also a major initiative to
align with the data-driven business innovation strategy.
Specialists and consultants were recruited to review the data
structure, data quality and ownership across various data
systems in the Group. We aim at procuring a reliable and
consistent database under effective management in order to
enable the application of data analytics, which unlocks the
income generation potential from the use of data.

e The IT Governance Committee also undertakes responsibility in

IT risk management, conducting analysis and evaluation of risks
identified on an annual basis and reporting to the Risk
Management Committee.
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Risk Management and Internal Controls

While the Board has overall responsibility for the Group’'s
systems of risk management and internal control, we adopt an
enterprise-wide risk management structure involving all levels
from the Board level and down to the business unit level. We
take both “top-down” and “bottom-up” approach.

In the day-to-day operations, the executive directors have
ongoing dialogue with management of the business units to
identify and evaluate emerging risks and opportunities, and
formulate appropriate action plans. By ongoing review on the
variance reports and analysis, budget plan and actual
performance, findings of control weaknesses reported by audit
teams, they become alert to what and where problems may
have arisen which require tackling from “top-down" in order to
achieve the strategic objectives.

On the other hand, a formalised risk management annual cycle
from “bottom-up” is in place which is equipped with routine
implementation procedures and delegated risk owners.
Business units are required to identify and assess risks in their
operations and then record them in a risk register. Proposed
mitigation measures are also registered to facilitate subsequent
review of the outcome. We catalog risk data in a system similar
to an accounting system. This allows us to trace down to each
risk entry and owner, or summarise risks by region or function,
and consolidate a risk profile for the Board’'s oversight on all
significant risks facing the Group.

Active engagement of the risk owners is paramount to the
success of risk management. We organise training workshops
to enhance risk owners’ management skills and hold regular
meetings to discuss on the effectiveness of risk mitigation
measures. We aim at integrating risk management into day-to-
day operations, resulting in a practical and continuous process.

Besides, it is our annual exercise to conduct self-assessment
on the internal control system. Executive directors and senior
management of all major business and functional units are
required to submit self-assessment questionnaires, covering
the effectiveness of risk management and internal controls as
well as confirmations on legal compliance for which they are
held accountable.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A

PR e AR R i

ERQUASERREBMANEZERRAEES
B -HMRWREEFeREABUEEBEN
EREMNCETERAREIRERE - RAIBRRN A
S N == I R = o

REFBEBBRED RITEFEXEBELNERE
SEETHE B RFERHRNRREKS
WHERBEME - MFKEEHNEZEREND
T REABNERRA  UNBEXEBRRRENE
2REHREER  FREMNTEMFIREAIE &
EMTIFBRANBERBRE  EBRB T
B -

S—HE - BFRET TR TmLE] ERRRERE
FEAY  EheafiTERETFMEERREE
A o FETE B ALZE R AT A% B T P A R
e WRBERABRBELE - ZREYUEEHDSERD
B UBEREERATER - RS BRARBES BH
FEZRS  BestR2aKRAMEL - thBEBHFIE
PEBERRLENBEA  RREIBEIIHE
RigniR SRR A 2TIERAOERBELE -
BEESEBAEEMENAEERER -

RERaEARG2EEKDNERERGAER -
BHMERBITETURFARREEANEER
Bt - W E BRERTT & A DA AT e B B T R RO RO -
BABHEABRE2ENARER  BZRER

FEMRIE -

s BHMEFEaRFERNDEERLS - TE
EMZTEEBNREEUNSAERBRAERA
HAAERS ATRERREBRAMBEENK
B HABERBEBRBENERERER



e Three lines of defence have been laid down in our governance

framework so that our internal controls, risk management,
financial compliance and internal audit can function in tandem.

Notwithstanding all the above, our risk management system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure in
achieving business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

Compliance and Audit

Ethics and regulatory compliance

e The Group is committed to ensuring its ethics and compliance

across business operations. Our Board exercises oversight and
establishes business line accountability for ethics and
compliance, while the lines of business management take the
ownership of culture and agenda for ethics and compliance. The
Group Policies and Controls unit is set up to oversee the
enterprise-wide ethics and compliance activities. These include
ethical culture, major policies and controls, communications and
training, as well as case management, investigations, root-cause
analysis and reporting.

e The Group Policies and Controls unit has continued to extend

their roles as a trusted advisor to the business front lines which
align with their efforts in the protection of our brand and
reputation, and adaptation to the converging business models
and markets. A thematic approach is adopted to strengthen our
ability to detect and prevent ethical misconduct on key areas,
such as anti-fraud, questionable sales practices, and third party
vendor management.

We have a process in place to capture regulatory changes and
evaluate the potential impact and institute necessary changes to
associated operational controls, which lies on collaborative
efforts by the Board, the business lines, as well as legal, finance
and risk management functions.
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e \We conducted staff training in respect of laws and regulations

relevant to the business operations, case studies on risk
management and controls, key concepts on corporate
governance etc. We take a proactively preventive approach that
we continue to expand communication and training to upskill
the business frontlines and management to mitigate compliance
risk, and also reinforce ethical conduct and ownership to all
employees and embed DNA of ethics and compliant culture in
the business operations.

Regular monitoring on the compliance with laws and regulations
is conducted by the business lines and reported via our
management hierarchy. It also covers incident reports from
whistleblowing, crisis management mechanism, social
responsibility compliance checks and case reports by our legal
department, whereby all important areas of compliance
are monitored.

e The Group complied with all major aspects of laws and

regulations that are significant to our business operations. There
were no threatened or concluded cases of material nature in
connection with legal compliance during the year.

Internal audit

e The Internal Audit Department plays a crucial role in monitoring

the internal governance of the Group.

e The Internal Audit Department has unfettered access to all

necessary information, people, records and outsourced
operations across the Group aiming to provide an independent
assurance service to the Board, Audit Committee and
management, focusing on reviewing the effectiveness of the
governance, risk management and control processes that
management has put into place. The Internal Audit Department
functionally reports directly to the Audit Committee and
administratively to the Managing Director.
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A risk-based approach has been adopted by the Internal Audit
Department. Annual audit plan is formalised based on the result
of the risk assessment covering business risk evaluation. The
risk assessment methodology assists us in prioritising business
risks and determining audit frequencies, which enables the
internal audit review to become more efficient and focused on
the business needs, ensuring that key concerns and significant
risks are considered within the scope of the audit. Such annual
audit plan is reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee at
the beginning of each financial year.

All findings and recommendations on internal control
deficiencies are communicated with respective management
for process improvement, in order to ensure that satisfactory
control is maintained. Significant audit findings and control
deficiencies are reported to the Audit Committee and all
rectification plans will be properly followed up by management
to ensure that they are remediated as intended within a
reasonable period.

To further strengthen the flexibility and independence of internal
audit function, the Group has engaged an independent
consulting firm to assist the Internal Audit Department to
provide professional internal audit service to the Group.

External assurance

External assurance on the Group's financial statements is
obtained from the independent auditor. Their roles and opinion
are included in the section “Independent Auditor’'s Report” in
this annual report.

For operational aspects, we engage independent experts from
respective profession to assure standards such as
environmental compliance, quality management of
manufacturing activities, product quality and safety.

We emphasise on close monitoring of our business activities,
which assures that our products, our services and our practices
meet the desired technical or quality standards in order to
safeguard our reputation and stay ahead in the industry.
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Whistleblowing

e This system provides a confidential channel to encourage

employees to stay alert to and escalate any potential fraud
issues. We have put up posters of whistleblowing on staff
notice boards to.

This system is managed by a team of whistleblowing officers
on the Group level. The whistleblowing officers are directly
accountable to the Audit Committee. Their responsibilities
include case management, investigation on fraud reporting their
investigation findings to the management and review the
effectiveness of remedial actions.

The aim of the whistleblowing system is to detect and rectify
control weaknesses at the earliest stage. More importantly, this
system involves participation of all staff, reinforcing our integrity
culture within the organisation.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEARBHRELEB AR QT

LR

AEHIRHARTRE B AETRITNERE
ERKER - #MESRETETRKUEER  HE

RRHEEERABREZEGAE - ARSI HAEE
EHEZENRBBEEEBEE BAEBRRME
B BAESENRE REZEEMNEEEERS
ERERARBFERERRRETHOEE

o

RHEHEENNERPERME LRS- &
EEE MBS EMEETIN2E - N IN5RH M
ERESBAZ AR ©



Directors’ Report
EERHE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report of the Company
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for FY2019.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the business of manufacturing and selling of
high-end luxury, mass luxury and youth line jewellery products,
including gem-set jewellery, gold products and platinum/karat gold
products, and distribution of various watch brands. The activities of
the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group’s revenue is derived from business activities conducted
in Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and other markets. The
segment information of the Group's operation is set out in note 5
to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for FY2019 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on page 190.

The directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.20 per share (FY2018: HK$0.15 per share) and a special
dividend of HK$0.30 per share (FY2018: HK$0.30 per share) for
FY2019, amounting to approximately HK$5,000 million (FY2018:
HK$4,500 million). Such payment of dividends will be subject to
the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 2 August 2019 and
is payable to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company at the close of business on Friday, 9
August 2019. Together with the interim dividend of HK$0.15 per
share paid in December 2018, the total distribution of dividend by
the Company for FY2019 will be HK$0.65 per share (FY2018:
HK$0.57 per share). The payment date of the final and special
dividends is expected to be on or about 21 August 2019.
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Business Review

FY2019 marked another year of growth for the Group’s business.
The Group enjoyed a vibrant growth in THFY2019, while the
momentum moderated in 2HFY2019 amid macro uncertainties. All
product categories exhibited positive growth, among which gold
products demonstrated a relatively stronger performance. The
Group deepened the penetration into the lower tier cities in
Mainland China and opened a number of POS in other markets
including its first store in Cambodia and Vietnam, respectively. The
Group’s multi-brand strategy has been making good progress over
the past few years. Experience shops with thematic layouts were
also opened in selective locations.

In light of the macro headwinds and a tough comparison base as
we head into THFY2020, we are cautiously optimistic for FY2020.
The US-China trade talks may take some time to settle in our view.
Nonetheless, we believe the stimulus measures from the Chinese
government would help to mitigate the impact on the economy
and consumer sentiment. As to grab a greater market share and
optimise the Group's brand competence in Mainland China, we will
continue to deepen our market penetration strategically in lower
tier and county level cities in Mainland China in the next three to
five years.

The Group's “Smart+ 2020" three-year strategic framework,
launched since FY2018, serves as the backbone for our business
development and transformation. We would continue our efforts
with focus on these four key areas: (1) implementing multi-brand
strategy and enriching retail experience to breakthrough customers’
inherent expectations on jewellery store; (2) reinforcing customer
experience with personalised engagement in the manufacturing
process through the customer-led C2M business model; (3)
building up of effective operation models by deriving useful insights
from big data analytics; and (4) incubating talents internally within
the Group and externally for the jewellery industry by promoting
the innovative and entrepreneurial culture and providing broader
horizons to unleash their creativity and talents.
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A review of the Group’s business and operations for the year as
well as a discussion on the likely future developments are provided
throughout this annual report, particularly in the following sections:

e “Chairman’s Statement”
e "“Managing Director's Strategic Report”
e “Management Discussion and Analysis”

Further discussion on the Group's principal risks and uncertainties,
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations, environmental
policies and performance and key relationships with its
stakeholders are provided throughout this annual report, particularly
in the following sections:

e "“Risk Management Report”

e "“Board Governance”

e “Stakeholder Relations”

e "“Corporate Management”

e "Sustainability Report”, which is available on our corporate website

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 274.

Share Capital

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements. There is no movement in the
share capital during the year.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2019 amounted
to approximately HK$5,556 million (31 March 2018: HK$5,536 million).

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 193.

Pre-emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of the Cayman Islands.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities EE « H &5 EE FHEH
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold RARRREAMMBARTNREANSEREES - HENE

or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year. EARQBREMR ETES

Directors BEE

The directors during the year and up to the date of this annual FRARBEEAFRABNESRS -

report are:

Executive Directors BITES

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry ERAIE LT

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent BRESE

Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian EEMIE

Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy EEELE

Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton B RER e

Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong R it & S A

Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter HEsR At

Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert PR e A= S A

Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BiRAKTE

Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson (re-designated with effect from 1 April 2019) B8 48 5 A (B2019F 4 A1 B&5FT)
Non-executive Director FBRTESE

Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia (appointed with effect from 1 April 2019) BEELL (820194 A1 HREZE)
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAFEPITES

Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor BB g 1+

Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond BB+

Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon BB 58 5 A

Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul BRBA BN SE A&

Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey VNS Z e

Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily  (appointed with effect from 1 April 2019) HEEat (B2019F 4 A1 BRREZT)

In accordance with article 84 and article 83 of the Articles, Mr. REBEMANESIIERERIG HRAERE  BERE
Wong Siu-Kee, Kent, Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter, Mr. Chan Hiu- A RBEASLE BIRALE  BEZL L HEEE
Sang, Albert, Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby, Ms. Cheng Chi Man, Sonia, EERERBEZIEREERRBFAE LRE B
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey and Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily will retire at HEBRERET -

the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts EERBEY

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or any BMEEEERANAREEAMB ARG AR —FA
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without HA HEAEEE CREMERIN MR LHREEL
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements and Contracts

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which any of the Company’s subsidiaries,
fellow subsidiaries or parent companies was a party and in which a
director of the Company or the director’'s connected party had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Continuing Connected Transactions

The Group has certain ongoing transactions carried on with
connected persons with expected annual transaction amounts
exceeding the “de minimis” exemption threshold and therefore
the Company reports these non-exempt continuing connected
transactions during FY2019 under the Listing Rules. These
transactions are mainly related to lease of premises and sale and
purchase of goods and services. Information about the connected
persons is shown on page 158. Details of these transactions are
set out in the tables below.

Lease of premises %S
Name of counterparties

REHHEE CTFE AX#EL%E

NWD #iitt 57 5% /%

Directors’ Report
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BRAFHAPEEIN ARFHMBRF - BFRMEB
RARFRARRERRFRNEMERE - LEET A EM
HAKBEBMEBEAEARREEREETNHE
ATREFHEFEAER (THEZL[E) RS
RHREH -

FHERIER 5
AEBERMEATEITE THERS BHFER
SEEBBRENRKT - #URAAIRE LR AE
B2OIOMBEERHR SRR EWER S - %5
%5 BHRY LR R HE R ETRHES -
EMBEALHERBNEI58H - XERHHHE
HIATE -

NWDS #Hitt R E&

Main purposes of the leases Standalone retail shops,

industrial and office uses

Offices and standalone
retail shops in Hong Kong

Concessionaire counters
operated in department

in Hong Kong stores in Mainland China
HEXERS REBNBITEE - REBORAERBUTEE RPBENMBEERARMREE
IE¥ERBRAERR
Master/framework agreement date 28/11/2011 11/4/2014 22/3/2012
me/ERBZEAS
Next renewal date 31/3/2020 30/6/2020 30/6/2020
TREEBE
Annual cap approved and actual amount incurred for FY2019 (HK$million)
2019 EREHEFE FREEREASHE(BEET)
Annual cap 122 132 124
FELR
Amount incurred 67 92 78
BEREEEHE
Annual cap approved for subsequent financial year (HK$million)
HEMBFEFENEMEFE ER(BEHIT)
FY2020 122 134 154
2020 AR
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Sale and purchase of goods and services S ERBEE S TR

Name of counterparties X B 5 &8

NCE

KTL FIES ke

Major types of goods and services

Polishing, processing and
handling of gemstones
for the Group, and
provision of related
technology, related assets

and other ancillary services,

products and devices

Licensing of intellectual
property rights in,
among other things,
cartoon characters to
the Group for production,
sale and marketing of
certain licensed products

BmkRENEEREA BRAEEBEAMY - MIR MASERE (KR aE)
BRI - RHABR BT - TRACKHMRERE
HEAEENEMEER HAEE - HERMIGHEE
Eml&IHE ETEEED
Master/framework agreement date 29/1/2016 29/4/2016
me/ERBFE B
Next renewal date 31/3/2021 28/4/2019"
TRELEAH
Annual cap approved and actual amount incurred for FY2019 (HK$million)
2019F MFRMEHEFE LRRERE LR (AEBT)
Annual cap 208 73
FEER
Amount incurred 99 17
BEREEEST
Annual cap approved for subsequent financial years (HK$million)
HEeEMBEENEEEE FR(BEHT)
FY2020 236 N/A i@ A
202081 LR 2
FY2021 245 N/A i@ A

2021 R EFE

Note:

P& -

(1) As all the applicable percentage ratios (as defined under Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules) of the
transactions contemplated upon renewal of this agreement are, on an annual basis, less than
0.1%, the renewed agreement commencing from 28 April 2019 will be fully exempt from the
reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements.

These transactions are governed by respective master or
framework agreements which have an initial term of not more than
3 years and, subject to compliance with the Listing Rules, will be
renewed automatically for another 3 years upon expiry. The initial
agreement date and the next renewal date of these master or
framework agreements are set out in the tables above.
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The Group's pricing policy and internal control on
continuing connected transactions

The Company has entered into master agreements or

framework agreements to set out the principles governing the

above continuing connected transactions. The Group maintains

a pricing policy which serves as a guidance for the negotiation

with counterparties regarding the respective definitive

agreements under the continuing connected transaction

arrangements of the Group.

(a)

For rental of premises, prevailing market rates around the time
of entering into the respective tenancy agreements will be
followed. The Group will obtain comparison from relevant
market information from the market or independent valuers
and with rental rates of premises in similar locations leased by
the Group.

For sale of goods and services, retail or wholesale prices (as
the case maybe) and discretionary discounts which the Group
offers or is willing to offer to independent customers around
the time of transaction will apply.

For purchase of goods, services and other assets, prevailing
market prices around the time of transaction will apply. The
Group will obtain quotations or tenders from independent third
parties for goods, services or assets with similarities to
compare with the prices and terms offered in the market. If
there is no sufficient comparable in the market, the Group will
make reference to the reasonable costs for developing or
providing such goods, services or assets plus a reasonable
profit margin that commensurates with industry practices.

The Group will monitor industry practices and market trends on a
regular basis to ensure the terms offered to the Group are either
equivalent to or better than the prevailing market prices.
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Relationships between Counterparties

Other than NCE and KTL, the other counterparties to the
continuing connected transactions mentioned above are
connected persons of the Company mainly due to direct or
indirect shareholding held by the Company's substantial
shareholder, CTF Holding, in these counterparties. Shareholding
relationships among the Company, CTFE, NWD and NWDS are
illustrated in the simplified chart below:

X HHFHEA R

BNCERFIBMEZIN D FERERZNEMR
ZETBRARFNBEEAL TEEHRAAFE
ERRAANBEREXRRFERERSH T I RE -
ARE - BRELE HEREREHEATENR
PR EBLE N T E SR

CTF Holding"
FEXEERR

89.3%

The Company
AN F]

Notes:

(1) Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited

) Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited

(3)  New World Development Company Limited (stock code: 17)

) New World Department Store China Limited (stock code: 825)

) The approximate percentages of shareholding are shown for reference only to illustrate the
relationships between the connected parties. The information is sourced from the Disclosure of
Interests published on the Stock Exchange website as at the date of this annual report, which
however may not be updated or correct.

New Cutting Edge Limited (“NCE") and its subsidiaries are
majority-controlled companies indirectly held by Mr. Cheng Kam-
Chiu, Stewart, who is a family member and therefore an associate
of certain directors of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. As such, NCE and its subsidiaries are connected
persons of the Company.

KT Licensing Limited (“KTL"), through its holding companies, is in
turn owned as to 50% by the trustee of a trust established for the
benefit of the family members of Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor.
Therefore, KTL is an associate of a director of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As such, KTL and its subsidiaries
are connected persons of the Company.
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Annual review of the continuing connected transactions
At the end of each financial year, the management will prepare a
summary of the pricing and other relevant terms of those non-
exempt continuing connected transactions for the review of the
Executive Committee to ensure that those transactions are entered
into in the ordinary and usual course of business, on normal
commercial terms or better and in accordance with the relevant
agreements on terms which are fair and reasonable. Our internal
audit team will further select samples from those transactions and
compare them with similar types of transactions entered into by
the Group with independent third parties during that financial year.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
engaged the Company’s auditor to perform certain review
procedures in order to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor's Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in this annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The results of the review procedures performed by each of the
Executive Committee, the internal audit team and the auditor of
the Company were reported to the independent non-executive
directors in the Audit Committee meeting. After review by the
Audit Committee, the independent non-executive directors
confirmed that the continuing connected transactions were entered
into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii)
either on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) according to
the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

Announcements were published regarding the Group's non-
exempt continuing connected transactions. The directors confirm
that the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in so far as
they are applicable.
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Related Party Transactions

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year set out in note 39 to the financial statements
include transactions that constitute connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions for which the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been
complied with.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, less than 30.0% of the Group's revenue was
attributed to the Group's five largest customers. Besides, 52.1%
of the Group's total purchases were attributed to the Group's five
largest suppliers and 35.4% of the Group’s total purchases were
attributed to the Group's largest supplier. To the best of the
directors’ knowledge, none of the directors, their respective close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) and any shareholder
who to the knowledge of the directors owned more than 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2019
held any interest in any of the five largest suppliers or customers
of the Group.
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Directors’ Interests in the Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executives of the Company in the shares,

underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:
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M20194F3A31H ' KAAREZERE®ITHABRAE
DR S EAE A% I (2 2 R 2B 3 % BRI R 1 56 XV
W) HRY - EBRGRERET - BERBEF RS
HHEGIEXVEHETRESHHE AR AR A RBRHA
ByMERS ROKE - SRR PMR IR E # R M9 ) 5 352
EREETEENEEMAMMESERAR - RRE L
4R AU 6% 10 AT LAY IR T BUB AR R A 7 RE R A
PR AR

Long position in shares RRBHEE
Number of shares Approximate
Eﬁﬂg % of
Personal Spouse Corporate shareholding
interests interests interests Total AR
BARERE BB EEER At Bak
The Company (ordinary shares &2 8 (SREE
of HK$1 each) 1BTHEER)
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent ERESE 12,000 12,000 0.0%
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian B MIE L 20,000 20,000 0.0%
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton BRIMER o A 4,800 4,800 0.0%
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong fRi Bt 12,000 12,000 0.0%
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter FER it 3,600 3,600 0.0%
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert PR e £ ST A 12,000 12,000 0.0%
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby Bik BT E 12,000 12,000 0.0%
Note: Bt 5% -

(1) These shares are beneficially owned by a company, which in turn is wholly-owned by Dr. Cheng

Chi-Kong, Adrian

(1) ZEEOHEBSHEL2ERAN-—RARNERES
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities
As at 31 March 2019, the following persons (not being directors or
chief executives of the Company) had the following interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO:

Long position in shares

FERFRNREHFHHER

MN20194 3 A31 8  RIEFEH KL EHIE 336 1678
FEMNECMACHENAT AL (EIFRRTESEN &
BITHAB) BB AR R RM ARG e sk
BT

R EIFE

Number of shares Approximate

Eﬁﬁ B % of

Beneficial Corporate shareholding

Name interests interests Total BAOER
a8 EXER EEER = Aok
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited 8,933,937,400  8,933,937,400 89.3%
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited 8,933,937,400  8,933,937,400 89.3%
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited 8,933,937,400  8,933,937,400 89.3%
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited AXRE(ER) BRAR 8,933,937,400 8,933,937,400 89.3%

Note: B &E -

As at 31 March 2019, Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited and Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings I1)
Limited held approximately 49.0% and 46.7% interest in Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited respectively,
which in turn held an approximately 81.0% interest in Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and accordingly
each of Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited, Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited and
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited is deemed to have an interest in the shares of the Company held by
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited. Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited held 8,933,937,400 shares of the
Company directly as at 31 March 2019.

Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a
shareholders’ written resolution of the Company passed on 17
November 2011. No options have been granted, exercised or
cancelled under the Scheme since its adoption up to the date of
this annual report.

The purpose of the Scheme is to attract skilled and experienced
personnel, incentivise them to remain with the Group and motivate
them to strive for the future development and expansion of the
Group by providing them with the opportunity to acquire equity
interests in the Company. The Board may, at its discretion, grant
options pursuant to the Scheme to the directors of the Company
(including executive directors, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors), the directors of the
Company'’s subsidiaries and employees of the Group and any other
persons (including consultants or advisers) whom the Board
considers, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group.
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The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted pursuant to the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue on the Company'’s listing date of 15
December 2011, being 1,000,000,000 shares (“Scheme Mandate
Limit"), which represented 10.0% of the shares of the Company
as at the date of this annual report. The Company may renew the
Scheme Mandate Limit with shareholders’ approval provided that
each such renewal may not exceed 10% of the shares in the
Company in issue as at the date of the shareholders’ approval.

The maximum number of shares underlying all outstanding options
which have been granted and have yet to be exercised pursuant to
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 30.0% of the shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in the manner as
set out in the Scheme, the maximum number of shares underlying
the options granted to each eligible participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1.0% of the shares of the Company in issue for the
time being.

The period during which an option may be exercised by a grantee
(the "Option Period”) shall be determined and notified by the
Board to the grantee at the time of such grant, which shall not
expire later than 10 years from the grant date.

Subject to any restrictions applicable under the Listing Rules, an
option may be exercised in whole or in part by the grantee at any
time during the Option Period in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme and the terms on which the option was granted.

No amount is payable by the grantee upon acceptance of an option.

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board but in any
event shall not be less than the highest of: (a) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the
Stock Exchange on the grant date, which must be a business day;
(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the grant date; and (c) the
nominal value of the shares.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years after the
date of conditional adoption, i.e. 17 November 2011.
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Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company's Articles provides that every director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
losses, damages and liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any matter in
respect of fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any director.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover
for the directors.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

Donations
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$9.9 million (FY2018: HK$8.3 million).

Events after the Reporting Period

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Company
or by the Group after 31 March 2019 and up to the date of this
annual report.

Auditor

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) retired as the auditor of the
Company upon the expiration of its term of office with effect from
the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 26 July 2018. PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as the
auditor of the Company following the retirement of Deloitte.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will retire and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming

annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 June 2019
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The Board acknowledges the importance of adequate and effective
risk management and internal control systems which assist them in
understanding the Group’s risk profile, allocating resources to manage
key risks and making risk-reward optimised business decisions for
business planning.

EFERNACARNEAREERABERZAG2ERN 25 RRE M
MR AEERRARR - 2B ERAEE T Z &k AR 42 E kB E R
REMNEEREK - BUETERRE -

Our Risk Management and Internal Control EGEE R RNIEIEESIES
Governance Framework

Board of Directors
EEE

{ Executive Committee J { Audit Committee J

BITEEE BZEESE
Group Risk Management Committee ("GRMC"”) i
SHEREEEEE § 2
@ - e
%) =
First Line of Defence Second Line of Defence Third Line of Defence g;n:% "'"
E—ER BB =B o
Risk Ownership: Risk Management Monitoring: Independent Assurance: ;@
[BL B A B EIREER - BIARE - <
Business and Functional Executive Office; Finance Internal Audit
Units and Individuals and Governance Centre; A EBE %
EBRINEEEN RERAL Group Policies and Controls

TTHED - IS E AT LA
SEEEE

We adopt the “Three Lines of Defence” model to assist the Board BRI ZERR] BN ESS  EELEE
of Directors, Board Committees and management to carry out RERBETHEEENERRMORR REERA
on-going oversight and monitoring on the effectiveness of our R e TXHINEEEERRNACBRET :

risk and control systems. Set out below are their distinct roles

and responsibilities:
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Board oversight

Board of Directors

Evaluates and determines the nature and extent of the risks the
Group is willing to take in achieving its strategic objectives.

Ensures that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems.

Reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of our risk
management and internal control systems.

Executive Committee

Regularly reviews the risk and control issues escalated
via GRMC.

Suggests the priority of risk management efforts at Group level.

Drives risk-conscious culture and promotes control environment
of the Group.

Audit Committee

Oversees the design, implementation and supervision of
the risk management and internal control systems on behalf of
the Board.

Management oversight
GRMC

A management committee comprising the Managing Director,
four executive directors and management personnel from major
business and functional units.

Maintains the risk management and internal control framework
and drives improvement for the processes.

Identifies and manages risks at corporate level, reviews the
principal risks, and oversees the effectiveness of process
controls to manage risks on a quarterly basis.

First Line of Defense — Ownership

Business and functional units and individuals

Identify, assess and control risks in daily operations.

Design, implement and ensure the effectiveness of risk and
control measures within their area of accountability.

Risk Management Report
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Second Line of Defense — Monitoring

Executive Office, Finance and Governance Centre (“FGC")
and Group Policies and Controls

Support GRMC on the risk and control functions through on-
going risk communication and monitoring.

Establish policies, procedures and standards to reinforce risk
management and internal control systems.

Provide guidance and training related to risk management and
control processes and integrity practices.

Refine and monitor the enforcement of critical group policies,
for example, Code of Conduct, Anti-fraud Policy and Crisis
Management Policy for the Group.

Third Line of Defense — Assurance

Internal audit

Provides independent and objective assurance on the adequacy
and effectiveness of our risk management and internal control
systems by carrying out the risk-based internal audit.

Communicates audit findings and control deficiencies to
management of their implementation of remedial actions.

Independent assessment

External audit

Provides observations and assessments of the processes and
controls over financial reporting and related risks.

Communicates with board committees and management on
risk and control issues identified in the course of audit.

Whistleblowing system

Provides a confidential channel to encourage employees to raise
concerns on frauds and other misconduct.

Whistleblowing officers are responsible for the investigation of
the possible improprieties and engagement with appropriate level
of management for their implementation of remedial actions.

Cases of gross misconduct and fraudulent behaviour, and the
measures undertaken by the management would be reported to
the Audit Committee for assessment.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEARBHRELEB AR QT

E_EMR - BE
TEE - HBELEPONRERNERS

. BRRTRERRBARES
EEEEIARREEBE -
o HEBRCAREERNDEEREORE  RER
g -

. REERREE  ERRERBETAEENES
Rig il -

. RERERPREEREONTER  PIOAEE
PR AL B R i R -

R EERRER

E-ZEMR — RE

P ERE

o DETRRESERNANINESL  HRMANER
EEPARERRG TR AR RTELANE
BIRE -

e MERARREETRZREERERR  UEH
TTHMIEE

WIrF

hERE X

o HHBEE RIMERETEFNEEOBER
iz ¢

c REZBETERNAMREIFERESEAS
RERERE -

i3

LR

o RMURERE HBETIHELFEANHEMAET
RIBHET -

e ERHFEBARRFBEANTENT A BEEEEHN
EEABBE  UEMMRITHRIERE

s MEKZECEMBRETE RERITAMMESR - M
BT JESRERE)HE b LA AT A -



Risk Management Process

GRMC is responsible for leading the risk management process in
an integrated approach in accordance with the Enterprise Risk
Management Policy Manual. Our risk management process
involves the following steps:

|dentification — adopts both top-down and bottom-up approach.

Analysis — assesses the potential consequences and likelihood of
the risks.

Evaluation — evaluates the risk level, risk treatment and priorities.

Mitigation — recognises the control gaps, assigns risk ownership
and confirms risk control measures.

Monitoring — conducts evaluations on the design and progress of
implementation of the risk control measures.

Reporting — facilitates risk communications, reviews the
residual risk level after control measures and assesses areas for
continuous improvement.
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GRMC adopts both top-down and bottom-up approach to facilitate

risk identification as it is of paramount importance to understand

the risk universe that the Group is facing before we can effectively
manage them.

Top-down approach

Members of GRMC and representatives from Executive Office
and FGC discuss the risk issues they consider important.

GRMC has various channels for risk identification, for example,
the principal and emerging risks from macro environment and
strategic objectives escalated by corporate function units,
potential control weaknesses indicated through investigation,
whistleblowing system, internal and external audit and concerns
of our stakeholders on social, environmental and governance
issues come through by our Sustainability Committee.

Upon approval, the risk management strategy is cascaded to
relevant business and functional units to design, implement and
monitor the risk control measures.

Bottom-up approach

Heads of business and functional units are required to submit
their risk registers for material risks identified along with their
existing control measures at least annually through risk
management training cum brainstorming workshops.

FGC consolidates and validates the risk registers and Executive
Office assists the respective senior management to endorse
the risk level and priority.

GRMC reviews the Group's consolidated risk register and
determines the level of attention from GRMC and the
Executive Committee.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEARBHRELEB AR QT

SERREEZESRBRME LM TUARETH L
WA RAENRER  AAAEEEERERLEYH
BRI T ARG SER

BHLEMTEIHBR
s KERREEZEENBRTRAMIBE G L
RERFAWBEERREENAREE -

s RERREEZEemEERTHINRR - WIE
éﬂﬁifﬁﬁﬁzmmiﬁjﬁﬁﬁutﬁZﬁﬁﬁﬁE%‘éﬁﬁ%i
X ERFEER  ERFE - BRES - REX
SNERE IR 2 BB RS AR HEER

ZESHEERMEHEE REREAHENEE
£IF -
o MEHIEL EHEEERETHABNERRINE
BAETHBARKREITEENR - EERER -
HTmEMNFR

o EBKNEENFTEBFHLLN—RAKRE R
NEEBITED  MARIFHBFECHRNZEKRE
WA EIR TR IR e R B o

Al‘(
N\Au

o B1% E./D':P/L,\
%!EJ/%& EE u/u

/:\.I%A
7}@?&%9@\

* ITHER 19 BY

 AERRERZAARRRELSARERH
THEEERREEERERNITEERBIEN
IKE o



Internal Control

The structure of our internal control system is based on the
Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway
Commission (“COSQ") integrated framework for effective internal
controls, which comprises 17 principles under five components,
namely, Control Environment, Risk Assessment, Control Activities,
Information and Communication and Monitoring Activities.

Our internal control system is integrated into our business
processes with the support of information system and technology.
Control objectives, authorities and responsibilities, backed by
established policies and procedures, and the performance of
control activities are maintained in the system.

Our review of internal controls is closely linked with our risk
management framework and process. Principal risks and risk
management strategy of the Group are communicated to heads of
business and functional units and internal audit team. This aims at
helping them to allocate their resources and control monitoring
efforts. Controls of high risk areas are continually evaluated by
management while internal audit team would consider the need of
adjustments on its audit plan on the testing of key controls for
significant risks of the Group.

On an annual basis, members of GRMC, senior management of all
major business and functional units are required to assess the
effective implementation of internal controls through self-
assessment questionnaire, covering the effectiveness of risk
management and internal controls as well as confirmation on legal
compliance for which they are held accountable. Through this
exercise, they also undertake to fully support various Group
programmes which promote effective internal control practices,
including internal control review, internal audit, case investigation
and whistleblowing system.
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Effectiveness of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee reviews the adequacy
and continued effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems through the reports prepared by GRMC,
internal audit team and external auditors and communicates with
them at least three times a year.

The review covers risk management functions and all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls.
Key elements of review include:

e Principal risks identified by GRMC, internal audit and
external audit.

e (Changes in the nature and extent of principal risks since last
annual review and the ability of the Group to respond to the
changes in its business and the external environment.

e The scope and quality of the management’s on-going monitoring
of risks and of the internal control systems.

e The extent and frequency of communication of monitoring
results to the Audit Committee which enables it to assess
control of the Group and the effectiveness of risk management.

e Significant control failings or weaknesses that have been
identified during the year.

e The progress of remedial measures implemented
by management.

e The effectiveness of the Group’s internal audit function.

e Assurance provided by internal audit on the effectiveness of the
Group's processes for financial reporting and compliance with
prevailing regulations.

e Significant issues arising from whistleblowing system, internal
and external audit.

e The results of management’s control self-assessment.

As a result of the above review, the Audit Committee, on behalf of
the Board, confirmed that there was no significant issue that would
have an adverse impact on the effectiveness and adequacy of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group
for FY2019.

Our risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss as sustainable
growth and profits are, in part, the reward for informed and
successful risk taking in business.
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Our Continuous Improvement Plan and
Highlights of the Year

We have implemented a phased improvement plan (“Improvement
Plan”) since FY2017, in order to build a robust risk management
system to align risk with strategy and performance throughout the
Group. We are satisfied with the outcome of the Improvement
Plan which helped build a risk consciousness culture, foster
communication for risk-reward optimised business decision and
enhance accountability via institutionalised risk management
structure and practices. Set out below are some of the highlights
of improvement we have made during the year.

Highlights of improvement made in FY2019
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Focus of improvement plan

Risk and control governance culture — strengthen management's
accountability, promote risk-conscious and risk awareness culture
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In order to raise the awareness on emerging risks across the Group,
we partnered with external professionals to conduct interviews and
workshops with staff and management, enabling them to
comprehend, assess and discuss the potential implications in our
business development and operations. Examples of these emerging
risks include:

Anti-Money Laundering (“AML")

Precious metals and stones, particularly gold and diamond, are
perceived to be exposed to higher risk of money laundering due to
their high intrinsic value, low weight and ease of carrying. Whilst the
jewellery industry is currently not subject to compulsory compliance
with certain specific AML statutory requirements such as client due
diligence and record keeping, we engaged external consultant in
assisting us to review and enhance the control environment, current
governance model of AML and competence of our staff in identifying
suspicious transactions and implementing effective controls.

Cybersecurity and data privacy

Workshops were conducted for directors, management and staff to
draw their attention to the trends and causes of cybersecurity and
data privacy issues, particularly as we embrace technological
innovation and data analytics in the face of the tightening regulation
in regions that our operation may be exposed to, such as the China’s
Cybersecurity Law, Hong Kong's Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(PDPO), and General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) in the EU.
These workshops enabled our senior management and staff to
communicate constructively towards the establishment of a
collaborative task force for risk mitigation roadmap. For further
details, please see the “Principal Risks and Control Measures —
Cybersecurity and data privacy” section on page 178.
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Environmental risks

We recognise that environmental challenges, such as intensifying
climate change and environmental degradation, may pose physical
and transition risks to our business operations. For instance, business
disruption and financial loss may arise from more frequent or severe
weather events like flooding and storms; more stringent regulations
and enforcement may be implemented by governments to tackle
environmental degradation. To actively manage these environmental
risks, we have refined our sustainability governance structure and
ten-year sustainability strategy to reduce our carbon emissions and
enhance resource efficiency. Seminars were conducted to facilitate
cross-departmental initiatives to reduce our environmental footprint.
For further details, please refer to our Sustainability Report which is
available online at the sustainability section of our Group website and
the website of the HKEx.
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Focus of improvement plan

Risk communication and reporting — facilitate the management to
better understand the challenges and risk outlook and formulate
strategy to manage principal risks
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Enhanced channel for risk communication

A more transparent and frequent communication channel between the
executive directors and management team of each of our business
segments was established upon the refinement of our sub-meetings
of Executive Committee which were convened on a monthly basis. On
one hand, the linkage with the Group's principal risks, implications and
mitigation actions were reviewed and discussed correspond to the
operation and development of that particular business segment. On
the other hand, risk factors, alongside management approach and
resources plan, associated with proposed business plan and initiatives
are communicated thoroughly to ensure we take informed and
sensible risks for business growth opportunities. This enhanced
communication channel helps promote further integration of risk
management into business planning and daily operations, and improve
the agility and efficiency of business planning process in response to
the fast changing business environment.
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Principal Risks and Control Measures
Business and market development risks

Risk Management Report
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Disruptive innovation and fast changing consumer behaviour

The rise of middle class, millennials and digitally savvy customers

continuously driving the demand for personalised and innovative

products and services beyond the conventional shopping experience. If

we fail to engage with these modern customers, our competitiveness

and sustainable development may at risk in the digital era.

We control and mitigate the risks by:

Enhancing the customer relationship management to encourage our
customers to engage with us on their mobile devices via our CHOW
TAI FOOK Membership Centre mini programme on WeChat.

Using our patented Smart Trays to identify and track customers’
preference and behaviour in order to offer our customers a data-
driven and unique shopping experience.

Introducing technology infused shop and self-service experience
corner to deliver an innovative shopping experience.

Leveraging the power of social media and online shopping platforms
to meet the needs of tech-savvy customers.

Transforming our POS into experience shops to encourage more
customer engagement and interaction as social interaction with
brands is important to young millennials.

Rolling out and upgrading selective POS to JEWELRIA and ARTRIUM
targeting sophisticated customers who pursue jewelleries with
international selections and unprecedented luxury jewellery experience.

Introducing a jewellery customisation online platform D-ONE to offer
our customers a unigue experience of creating their
personalised jewellery.
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For more analysis, see Managing Director’s Strategic Report

A Risklevel increased during FY2019
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{} Risk level remained similar as FY2018
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Risk level decreased during FY2019
2019 B U E R A B K S T B

Annual Report 2019 4 ¥

175



176

Risk Management Report
EREERE

Management of disruptive change

Resistance to change amid the sweeping forces arising from disruptive
technology and innovation could restrict us from making necessary
adjustments in exploiting market opportunities and addressing
challenges in the digital age. Our competitiveness and sustainable
development may at risk if we are not resilient enough to embrace the
breakthrough changes.

We control and mitigate the risks by:

e QOrganising executive leadership programme to unleash executive's
all-round ability in problem-solving and innovative thinking.

e Co-organising the Cross Company Leadership Forum with a focus on
technology and innovation, enabling out staff to acquire insightful
information on hot-button issues of today’s business environment.

¢ Organising Chow Tai Fook executive summits to motivate our people
to embrace changes in nowadays disruptive business environment
and pursue innovative ideas at all levels.

e Creating an unbounded and user friendly working environment,
“Slash” working space, to enable the flow and exchange of ideas
and instill creativity on our people.
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Intensity of market competition

A challenging macroeconomic environment coupled with the dampened
consumer sentiment intensifies the competitive rivalry in the jewellery
market. If we fail to navigate the situations well and fortify our
competitive advantage, it may adversely affect our market share and
hence hamper our sales and growth.

We control and mitigate the risks by:

e Adopting a multi-brand strategy to enrich our product offerings and
differentiation that broaden the spectrum of customer segment,
ranging from sophisticated customers to young millennials.

e Expanding our business footprint to Southeast Asia and overseas
markets to reap benefits from the fast-growing Chinese outbound
tourism market.

e Deepening our market penetration in Mainland China and overseas
markets through franchise model in county level cities and
partnership with local jewellery retailers.
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Operational risks

=EE MR

Cybersecurity and data privacy
We pursue emerging technologies to develop our products and services

and improve our operational efficiency, but the adoption of technologies

also exposes us to new digital vulnerabilities. Key threats include

interruption or security breach to our information system; leakage of

customers’ personal data resulting from destructive malware and

ransomware attack; and technological service vendors fail to provide

ongoing security updates. If we fail to address the threats presented by

the influx of technology, it may have a material adverse effect on our

reputation, operations and financial condition.

We control and mitigate the risks by:

Developing and rolling out the cyber incident response plan, which
guides us to address and manage the aftermath of a security breach
or cyberattack in a planned and coordinated approach.

Conducting regular cyberattack drills, rehearsal and system
penetration tests to help our staff to be prepared and practised in
responding to cyber incidents.

Performing a maturity assessment on our cybersecurity programme
based on the assessment procedures and requirements of the
National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST), which helps
us to identify areas of weakness and strength in identifying,
protecting against, detecting, responding to and recovering from
cyber incidents.

Offering tailored cybersecurity and data privacy trainings for (i) senior
management to strengthen their ability to manage cyber incidents;
and (i) general staff to reduce the occurrence of security or data
breaches resulting from employee negligence.

Assessing the impact of latest data privacy regulations on our
operation, including the GDPR in the EU and the China’s
Cybersecurity Law.
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Information technology and data governance

We are committed to harnessing technological innovations in our

business development and digital transformation. Our business growth

and results of operations may be adversely and materially affected if our

IT set up and resources could not match with our business development

and generate reliable operational or financial data.

We control and mitigate the risks by:

Reviewing IT strategy alongside business strategy by the IT
Governance Committee each quarter to ensure IT resources
allocation and risk appetite aligned with business sustainable growth.

Establishing a dedicated IT business analyst team to facilitate
effective communication between IT and business units to solve
business issues systematically.

Fostering common understanding of data ownership, data quality and
performance metrics across the Group through collaboration and pilot
projects with various business units.

Designing and implementing data repository to enhance the structure
and process of data capturing, storage, organisation and security for
effective analysis, sharing and reporting.
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Sources of diamonds
The irruption of synthetic or unethically sourced diamonds could impact
our brand image and operations.

We control and mitigate the risks by:

e Maintaining rigorous controls on supplier management, covering the
policy and procedure for engaging and evaluating our suppliers, to
ensure our diamonds are sourced from trustworthy suppliers.

e Deploying advanced devices and engaging third party professionals
to authenticate our diamond products.

e (Offering trainings for staff to strengthen their knowledge on the market
trend, detection technigues and technology of synthetic diamonds.

e Introducing T MARK diamond brand to reinforce our efforts in ensuring
that our diamonds are natural and authentic and customers can trace
the origin of their diamonds with the use of T MARK mobile app.
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To the Board of Directors of
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 190 to 273, which comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2019;

e the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended,;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
e Existence and valuation of inventories

e Valuation of jewellery collectibles

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BREEE

FARESERH®
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ESNAHERENSRETRE

Existence and valuation of inventories
FEZHFEMREE

Refer to notes 3, 4 and 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The carrying value of inventories of the Group was HK$39,486.1
million as at 31 March 2019 which mainly comprised of gem-set
jewellery, gold products, platinum/karat gold products and
watches. Valuation of inventories was at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Significant portion of inventory cost includes
cost of gold, platinum and gemstones, which are subject to the
risk of changes in market value. The assessment of net
realisable value of inventories was based on significant
estimates and judgements made by management in respect of,
amongst others, the economic conditions, marketability of
products and the forecast market price of gold, platinum and
gemstones used to make the jewellery products.

Management also engaged an independent professional
gemologist to carry out gemological appraisal to verify their
authenticity and assess their conditions and values based on
its expertise.

B2 HEEMIEMRMES - 4% 23 o

201943 A31H  AREMFERAEER39,486.1 A& ET
TEOREKERREN  2eER e KEERRER T
i?ﬂ’]1$fﬁ%)iz$§ﬁi—f“iﬁ/¥fﬁﬁﬁ%¢Zfﬁ% o FEMAFKED
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We understood and evaluated management'’s key controls
over inventory existence and valuation.

We validated management’s controls over existence by
attending daily cycle physical counts at selected points-of-
sale ("POS") throughout the year to observe the daily count
procedures at POS. We also inspected a selection of daily
physical count reports and the reconciliation to daily ending
inventories record in the inventory system.

Furthermore, we attended the annual physical inventory
count at year end date and performed sample count
procedures at selected POS, manufacturing facilities and
logistics and distribution centres.

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent professional gemologist, understood
their scope of work and their terms of engagement. We
selected gem-set jewellery products, observed the appraisal
process carried out by the independent professional
gemologist and traced these to the gemological appraisal
reports to test these were recorded at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

We evaluated the net realisable values of inventories
assessed by management with reference to, amongst
others, the market price movement of the materials, the
aging profile and the subsequent selling prices of similar
products, on a sample basis.

We evaluated the historical accuracy of allowances on
inventories assessed by the management by comparing the
actual loss to historical allowances recognised.

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the

existence and valuation of inventories to be supportable by
the available evidence.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key Audit Matter
BEETBER

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR

FARETEIEw
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANENAHERENSHRETREE

Valuation of jewellery collectibles
YR E

Refer to notes 3, 4 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The carrying value of jewellery collectibles of the Group was
HK$1,520.1 million as at 31 March 2019. Valuation of jewellery
collectibles was at the lower of cost and recoverable amount. The
assessment of the recoverable amount of jewellery collectibles
was based on the review of the conditions of the items by
management and with reference to international diamond prices
and market research reports on jewellery industry. The
management also engaged an independent professional
gemologist to perform valuation with reference to international
diamond prices and the current market situation, to verify the
authenticity and assess the conditions and values of jewellery
collectibles based on gemstone testing and its expertise.

BLHEAMBHRMFES 4219

M201943A31 0 AEENKEZHEEER1,620188
BT - REDRAMEAKAETKESEMET 2REE - &
BEERBREDEAMNT  T2RERBAERARKETEN
MiHAMRE - AFESREREN RO SE - ERETEEE
VYEEREETFM2REREQBRMBRETRETHE KB
EmMRBEE LR EEX MBI ZAEHNBERMNR

We traced the acquisition costs or carrying value upon the
designation to jewellery collectibles to relevant source
documents.

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the independent professional gemologist, understood their
scope of work and their terms of engagement. We selected
all jewellery collectibles, observed the appraisal process
carried out by the independent professional gemologist and
traced these to the gemological appraisal reports to test
these were recorded at the lower of cost and recoverable
amount.

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the
valuation of jewellery collectibles to be supportable by the
available evidence.

ERERAKEDHEEL  BME
BRARIREE

REMRBAORAE - AR

BPFZBYEXREETMER B RTFEE X7
fRE TEMEBMEBEGS - RPN EMEREDHILERE
VEEXEREEFTMETNEERT  TRRKEGERSYH
R OBIEPrRCER M B ER TR A R A B £ R E R
K& AR

RBRPIETHRER -
e EE -

BMRBERANSERIHURED

Annual Report 2019 4

185



186‘

Independent Auditor’s Report
B R H RS

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEABHRELEB AR AT

Hitfs 8
ERAEEFHEMELAE - EMES2ENHR
FRANMEES  BTEEGEEMBHRR LT
REEN RS -

HMEEaMBHREANBERY NMREEMESR - &M
A ZEEMESEREMYANEEEwm o

HEBRMESEEMBHREINES  RAINTERMHE
HMER  HUBERED  EREMESETHGAY
BHEIRMERBRETATBONBERFEERE
B EUFFEEAERBRNER

ERBMANERTOIE  NRBEMBREMERT
EERFEROL - RMBEREXFE - EEHE
BV A ERHE -

EEROEBERGEMBMRARE
BRE

ERAEBEEARARB(ERM B REER) REE(A
ARG REZBEEEMT ENESPBEHRE -
WHERBREES P BRROBETFEHRKGE
HERMERHNBAERRAPITOALZEFHEE -

ERBEAVBHRE EFAFNM E£ESE
KEMRE N TEERBATREARELLEEHN
FHE O UREARKELLERSHER BRIEEFFE
# BEEEFENFLEE HFEEGERNER

k3

BERBENMBRERRE



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement

that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEABHRELEB AR AT
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheng Woon Yin Michael.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

6 June 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REBBERAMEEKER

Consolidated Statement of Profit or

Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HREEEREMZE K

I &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 = 201943 A31 BILFE

2019 2018
Notes HKS million HKS$ million
BiaE ER- 377 BEET
Revenue R B 66,660.9 59,156.4
Cost of goods sold $HE A (48,059.1) (42,943.0)
Gross profit EX 18,601.8 16,213.4
Other income HAp A 6 395.8 407.9
Selling and distribution costs SHE RO KA (9,037.8) (8,238.7)
General and administrative expenses — R RITHR X (2,986.7) (2,681.6)
Other gains and losses H s kBB 7 (276.2) 342.4
Other expenses HAfAZ (57.3) (48.1)
Interest income FBUA 8 82.7 80.3
Finance costs b & B AR 8 (370.3) (243.7)
Profit before taxation R Bt Al 28 Al 9 6,352.0 5,831.9
Taxation | 11 (1,668.0) (1,628.6)
Profit for the year FERF 4,684.0 4,203.3
Other comprehensive (expense)/income Hit2@E(BAX) WE
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: T & & 7B E 84K EE -
— remeasurement of defined benefit scheme — E#is & FsEEH 2l (7.5) (5.4)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to FEZ At & EF H LR
profit or loss: EmayEe -
— exchange differences arising on translation ~ — & BINEFEFTEL 2
of foreign operations E R Z=%8 (1,288.1) 1,814.9
Other comprehensive (expense)/income FEHMEZE(FAX) WE
for the year (1,295.6) 1,809.5
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZHEWKNFHEER 3,388.4 6,012.8
Profit for the year attributable to: UT&AEEEERR :
Shareholders of the Company AR PR 4,576.8 4,094.9
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR 2 107.2 108.4
4,684.0 4,203.3
Total comprehensive income for the year UTEFTELMEEZEKE
attributable to: {EEE
Shareholders of the Company AR PRE 3,327.3 5,834.8
Non-controlling interests FE 7 AR 4 25 61.1 178.0
3,388.4 6,012.8
Earnings per share — Basic and Diluted BREFN - EXREE 12 HK45.8 cents 1l HK40.9 cents 7Bl

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEABHRELEB AR AT



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e M ARR R
Consolidated Statement of
Financial Posit
= A LS
me BEARRE
At 31 March 2019 % 201943 A 31 H
2019 2018
Notes HK$ million HK$ million
BiaE ER- 377 BEBT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE M&E 14 5,488.0 5,340.7
Land use rights + b {5 A #E 15 177.2 189.8
Investment properties BEE 16 219.2 233.5
Goodwill FEEE 17 257.8 257.8
Other intangible assets HtnmpaE 18 253.7 306.4
Jewellery collectibles KREE R 19 1,520.1 1,520.1
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BEVE - BENMRE
plant and equipment BEffES 38.7 27.6
Financial assets at fair value through AT EFABEDN
profit or loss CRIEE 11.2 -
Investments in associates REERNRZIRE 20 - -
Amounts due from associates FE Y BE 22 N Bl TR0 20 54.7 62.2
Loan receivables EUE X 21 18.7 26.9
Deferred tax assets R IEE B 22 420.1 293.1
8,459.4 8,258.1
Current assets RBEE
Inventories T8 23 39,486.1 34,929.4
Trade and other receivables B 5 RE M EIFRIE 24 6,638.7 6,410.0
Loan receivables EUE R 21 12.3 28.4
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBESEEYD 25 7,640.6 7,944.0
53,777.7 49,311.8
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables 5 MEMmENIE 26 10,684.3 8,358.6
Amounts due to non-controlling FETH B A RIFEFEARAR R
shareholders of subsidiaries A 27 136.7 100.5
Taxation payable FEAT R IR 1,178.4 1,101.5
Bank borrowings RITERK 28 7,460.0 5,823.0
Gold loans HEEE 29 8,011.5 5,335.4
27,470.9 20,719.0
Net current assets REEEFEHE 26,306.8 28,592.8
Total assets less current liabilities REERRBASR 34,766.2 36,850.9
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Bank borrowings RITEXR 28 2,596.7 2,100.0
Retirement benefit obligations RRE ) ASE 37 238.8 232.2
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE 22 456.4 4211
Other liabilities HthB & 3 -
3,363.2 2,753.3
Net assets EERE 31,403.0 34,097.6
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192 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

REMEARR R

2019 2018
Note HK$ million HK$ million
(= HEBT BEET
Share capital [ 30 10,000.0 10,000.0
Reserves e 20,750.7 23,423.4

Equity attributable to shareholders of AT RRELES
the Company 30,750.7 33,423.4
Non-controlling interests FERER 652.3 674.2
31,403.0 34,097.6

The consolidated financial statements on pages 190 to 273 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 6
June 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry

BRATE ERERE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

EF2N2019F6 A6 AAL/EL R ETIZEHNZE 190
E2I3AZHEEUBEMEK  UHN TRERE

Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton
BRIRER B4
DIRECTOR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

CYY ST RS
Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equit
SN2
For the year ended 31 March 2019 # = 201943 A31 HILFE
Attributable to
Statutory shareholders Non-
Share Share Special surplus Translation Retained of the controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Company interests Total
B REEE RhlRE EEBH BERE REEH ANIRREE  FERER @zt
HKS$ million HK$ million HKS$ million HK$ million HKS$ million HK$ million HKS million HKS$ million HKS million
AEERT BEER BBER ) BEER Y- BBER - BEERL
(note a) (note b)
(GED) (K&Eb)
At 1 April 2017 "2017%4A818 10,000.0 5498.7 24995 945.9 (548.4) 13,403.1 31,7988 702.7 32,5015
Profit for the year FERH - - - - - 4,094.9 4,094.9 1084 4,203.3
Other comprehensive FEEMER
income/(expense) 3s /(B
for the year - - - - 1,745.3 (5.4) 1,739.9 69.6 1,809.5
Total comprehensive FEZEKSEE
income for the year - - - - 1,745.3 4,089.5 5,834.8 178.0 6,012.8
Acquisitions of additional ~ EB—FKHBA A
interests from a FEPEIRAR B
non-controlling BoMER
shareholder of a
subsidiary - - - 10.0 (17.1) 2.8) 9.9 (50.0) (59.9)
Capital contribution from  —Z B2 A
anon-controlling FERBELE
shareholder of a
subsidiary - - - - - - - 115 115
Deregistration of SHERBAF
subsidiaries = = = (22.0) (3.0 24.7 03 (107.7) (108.0)
Transfers i - - - 275.1 - (275.1) - - -
Dividends RE - - = = - (4,200.0) (4,200.0) (60.3) (4,260.3)
At 31 March 2018 1201843 A31H 10,000.0 5,498.7 2,499.5 1,209.0 1,176.8 13,039.4 33,4234 674.2 34,097.6
Profit for the year FERET - - - - - 4576.8 4576.8 107.2 4,684.0
Other comprehensive FEEMEARY
expense for the year - - - - (1,242.0) (7.5) (1,249.5) (46.1) (1,295.6)
Total comprehensive FE2E(FX)/
(expense)fincome for ligatit
the year - - - - (1,242.0) 4,569.3 33273 61.1 3,388.4
Capital contribution from ~ —FHIBA A
anon-controlling FRRRELE
shareholder of a
subsidiary - - - - - - - 35 35
Deregistration of FERBAF
subsidiaries - - - (55.3) (0.8) 56.1 - (5.9) (5.9)
Transfers EE 3 - - - 1175 - (117.5) - - -
Dividends ) - - - - - (6,000.0) (6,000.0) (80.6) (6,080.6)
At 31 March 2019 ®201953A 318 10,000.0 5,498.7 2,499.5 1.2711.2 (66.0) 11,541.3 30,750.7 652.3 31,403.0
Notes: B
(@) Special reserve represents (i) the accumulated contribution from the Macau jewellery business (a) #5RIREEIEVRPIRE XK 2 Rt BB R (i) D E R IR RE G T &M B
and (ii) the difference between the nominal value of the shares of various subsidiaries under A T IR T B AR % 2011 £F 5= B 25 4 A U B L B 120 o) BT /B A R 2
common control, and cash consideration payable arising from acquisition of these subsidiaries HZzRERB =% -
under common control pursuant to the Group reorganisation in 2011,
(b)  As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment enterprises in Mainland (b) EEBPEANMIINECENRBEZLEAR  AARNPEANMHEAR

China, the Company'’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are required to maintain a statutory surplus
reserve fund. Appropriation to such reserve is made out of net profit after taxation as reflected in
the statutory financial statements of the subsidiaries in Mainland China in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to enterprises in Mainland China. The statutory surplus
reserve fund can be used to make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion
into capital by means of capitalisation issue.

AEBAERABFERES - ARREZBRTIRE T ENWHE R [
EF WK RIEHEAEEERNBEARRERRR) RAKRBE%
BMFE L TRBREBESTANBEEBTFEOER(AE) LA
BEREBITZAAERRAR -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SBERERERX

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 = 201943 A31 HILFE

2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEET
Operating activities RETED
Profit before taxation [ B BT Y4 A 6,352.0 5,831.9
Adjustments for: MTOISIEELAE
Interest income F B WA (131.4) (80.3)
Interest expenses FERX 370.3 243.7
Allowance for doubtful debts HARAER 275 18.3
(Reversal of)/allowance on inventories FE(BE), (113.5) 207.7
Write off of inventories FEAX 9.0 -
Fair value change of gold loans HeEBENAFERZD 117.2 35.3
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME  BMENMREITE 885.1 806.6
Depreciation of investment properties WEMEIRE 14.3 14.3
Amortisation of land use rights - b PR A 8 14.3 14.3
Amortisation of other intangible assets H A A 52.7 49.9
Impairment loss of amount due from an associate U —RE & N R FRIB 2 REEER 5.0 =
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HeEYE - F}%& S H EE 17.8 7.1
Provision for defined benefit obligations TE BAIR PR3 F A E B A 7.2 8.4
Net exchange difference ME R ZEFEHER 146.9 (278.6)
Operating cash flows before movements in LBEESFEAZ
working capital KERSRE 7,774.4 6,878.6
Decrease/(increase) in inventories Tjgb,)aad (3 n) 29.0 (4,260.0)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 N H b el ZRIE g (655.8) (907.6)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 K EH b e FRIE AN 2,882.9 2,149.9
Defined benefits paid B E 2R IR EF (8.1) (8.2)
Cash generated from operations KERRBRE 10,022.4 3,852.7
Interest received B2 W& 47.2 13.1
Income tax paid: ETFTEH ¢
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — HAEMNERK (463.7) (70.9)
— Enterprise Income Tax and withholding tax — A ERER R
in Mainland China FEH (1,127.6) (901.1)
— Macau complementary tax — BFIFTS @ H (40.1) (41.8)
— Taxation in other jurisdictions — HERIEM R 2 B (7.1) (0.9)
Net cash from operating activities RETHFBRESFHE 8,431.1 2,851.1
Investing activities REZTH
Interest received B U F 8 103.4 67.2
Repayment of loan to the Group CEETFTAERZER 225 241
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE  MWENMKE (1,341.8) (1,057.8)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BEYWE  BEE&E
plant and equipment BEffEe (50.0) (26.6)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEIRAFLESAEBSHSEE
through profit or loss (6.7) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWHE - BE k& E
plant and equipment T8 8 48.3 13.0
Purchase of jewellery collectibles BEURELH - (553.0)
Loan advanced by the Group REBERMNER - (1.5)
Repayment from/(advances to) associates BN RIER (R Q R B ER) 25 (42.5)
Net cash used in investing activities RETBHFFABSTE (1,221.8) (1,677.1)

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEABHRELEB AR AT
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FEBHERER

2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEET
Financing activities RESEE
Interest paid ERALE (366.1) (244.6)
Bank borrowings raised EEERITER 8,044.0 5,667.9
Repayment of bank borrowings EEIBITENR (5,910.6) (4,566.1)
Gold loans raised BEEEESEE - 19,153.4
Repayment of gold loans BEEsEE (2,939.8) (17,348.1)
Capital contribution from a non-controlling — KM B R R IR R &
shareholder of a subsidiary 3.5 11.5
Repayment of capital to a non-controlling BN EPNGEEZY i k=gt 4
shareholder of subsidiaries (5.9) (108.0)
Dividends paid B E (6,080.6) (4,260.3)
Acquisition of additional interest from ) S48 AR 1 2 UK B ) RE O M 21
non-controlling interest - (59.9)
Advance from non-controlling shareholders of KB KB A B IR AR AR A
subsidiaries 2] 43.0 0.9
Net cash used in financing activities METEMARSFE (7,212.5) (1,753.3)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents REeERRESEEBYRD BE (3.2) (479.3)
Cash and cash equivalents FINEESRESEEY
at the beginning of the year 7,944.0 7,943.4
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EXRBEHHFE (300.2) 479.9
Cash and cash equivalents ERNRERELEEY
at the end of the year 7,640.6 7,944.0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MBBRME

Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements
CORBHRENE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 = 201943 A31 BILFE

1.

General

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (the “Company”,
and its subsidiaries collectively referred to as the “Group”)
was incorporated as an exempted company in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands on 20 July 2011. Its shares were listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange"”) since 15 December 2011. Its
immediate holding company is Chow Tai Fook (Holding)
Limited (“CTF Holding”), and its ultimate holding company is
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited, both are incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company's principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 40. The address of registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman lIslands. The address of principal place of
business is 33/F, New World Tower, 16-18 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is same as the functional
currency of the Company.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEABHRELEB AR AT
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Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”)

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group

The Group has adopted the following standards and
amendments that are first effective for their annual reporting
period commencing 1 April 2018:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

IFRIC 22 Foreign currency transactions

and advance consideration

Amendments to Classification and Measurement of

IFRS 2 Share-based Payment Transactions
Amendments to Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS 4 with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to Clarifications to IFRS 15
IFRS 15

Amendments to
IAS 40

Amendments to Annual Improvements to IFRS

IFRSs Standards 2014-2016 Cycle

Transfer to Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of other new and
amended IFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial performance and positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 9 Financial instruments

IFRS 9 replaces the provisions of IAS 39 that relate to the
recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments,
impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MBBRME

Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

The adoption of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments from 1 April 2018
resulted in changes in accounting policies and adjustments to
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. In accordance with the transitional provisions in
IFRS 9, comparative figures have not been restated.

The Group has reviewed its financial assets and liabilities and
there is no significant impact on the classification,
measurement and derecognition. Since the Group does not
have any hedge relationships currently, the application of
IFRS 9 does not have any impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

Gold loans to be repaid by cash are designated as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses
on financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, except for the gains or losses arising from the Group’s
own credit risk which are presented in other comprehensive
income with no subsequent reclassification to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.

The new impairment model requires the recognition of
impairment provisions based on expected credit losses
rather than only incurred credit losses as is the case under
IAS 39. At 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019, the Group
assessed the impact of loss allowance under the application
of IFRS 9 is immaterial.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEABHRELEB AR AT
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Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers. It
replaces IAS 11 “Construction Contracts” which covers
construction contracts and IAS 18 “Revenue” which covers
contracts for goods and services and the related literature.
The adoption of IFRS 15 resulted in changes in accounting
policies and adjustments to the amounts of revenue
recognised in the consolidated financial statements. The
Group adopted a modified retrospective approach for
transition in the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2019, which allows the Group to
recognise the cumulative effects of initially applying IFRS 15
as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1 April
2018, while prior period comparative figures were not
restated. The Group chose to apply IFRS 15 for its contracts
at 1 April 2018.

Customer loyalty programme

Under the Group's customer loyalty programme, the customers
are granted cash coupons or points upon certain purchases,
which provides a material right to the customers and gives rise
to a separate performance obligation. Prior to adoption of IFRS
15, portion of the transaction price are allocated to such
customers right using the fair value of cash coupons or points
and recognised as deferred revenue for the cash coupons or
points granted but not yet redeemed or expired. Under IFRS 15,
portion of the transaction price are allocated to such customers
right based on the relative standalone selling price. Revenue is
recognised when the additional goods or services are
transferred to the customers. Unexercised rights are referred to
as breakage. The expected breakage amount should be
recognised as revenue in proportion to the pattern of rights
exercised by the customers.

The adoption had no material impact on the retained earnings
of the Group at 1 April 2018.

Presentation of liabilities related to contracts

with customers

Contract liabilities in relation to the customer loyalty
programme and receipts in advance were previously included
in trade and other payables (HK$181.0 million and
HK$1,037.4 million respectively as at 31 March 2019;
HK$68.3 million and HK$798.7 million respectively as at 1
April 2018).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MBBRME

2. Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have
been published that are not mandatory for 31 March 2019

reporting periods and have not been early adopted by

the Group.

IFRS 16
IFRS 17
IFRIC 23

Amendments to
IFRS 9
Amendments to
IAS 19
Amendments to
|IAS 28
Amendments to
IAS 1 and IAS 8

Amendments to
IFRS 3

Amendments to
IFRS 10 and
|IAS 28

Amendments to
IFRSs

Conceptual
Framework for
Financial
Reporting 2018

AW N -

Leases'

Insurance Contracts

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments 2

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation '

Plant Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement !

Long-term Investment in Associates
and Joint Ventures 2

Definition of Material 2

Definition of Business ?

Sales or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint
venture #

Annual Improvements to IFRS
Standards 2015-2017 Cycle '

Revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting '

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

Other than IFRS 16, the directors of the Company do not
anticipate that the application of other new and amendments

to IFRSs will have material impact on the results and financial

position of the Group. The Group's assessment of the impact
of IFRS16 is set out below.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEABHRELEB AR AT
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Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
IFRS 16 Leases

Currently the Group entered into various operating leases as
disclosed in note 31, while some leases as the lessor and
others as the lessee. IFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group's
accounting as a lessee and will result in the recognition of
almost all leases on the consolidated statement of financial
position. The standard removes the current distinction
between operating and financing leases and requires
recognition of an asset (the right to use the lease item) and a
financial liability to pay rentals for virtually all lease contracts.

The application of the new accounting model is expected to
lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact
on the timing of the expense recognition in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the period of the lease. As a
result, the consolidated statement of profit or loss will be
affected because the total expenses is typically higher in the
earlier years of a lease and lower in later years. Additionally,
rental expenses will be replaced with interest and
depreciation charges. In addition, leasing expenses will no
longer be presented as operating cash outflows in the
statement of cash flows, but will be included as part of the
financing cash outflow. Interest expenses from the newly
recognised lease liability may be presented in the cash flow
from operating or from financing activities.

The Group plans to elect the modified retrospective approach
for the adoption of IFRS 16 and will recognise the cumulative
effect of initial application as an adjustment to the opening
balance of equity at 1 April 2019 and will not restate the
comparative information. As allowed by IFRS 16, the Group
plans to use the practical expedient to grandfather the previous
assessment of which existing arrangements are, or contain,
leases. The Group will therefore apply the new definition of a
lease in IFRS 16 only to contracts that are entered into on or
after the date of initial application. The Group expects the
transition adjustment would affect the total assets and liability
by approximately 3%-5% and 7%—-9% respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MBBRME

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB"). In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and

by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting

period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved

when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

* has the ability to use its power to affect those returns

through its power to direct the activities of the entity.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the
voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative to the
size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

e potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

e rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

® any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the shareholders of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the shareholders of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group's accounting policies.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PBBRME

BEXETHR @
S REEETREA @

MEBAT @)

AR ERIEEH R ZIEEREREIEAZE - A
EEREREBTREAB TAEEERE IAES
HEREEHRNER SRR ESRESR
N AEBERFEREEREEHROTEZRE
ERRUNBTFTEEIRZREMEHEESERE
Ao B

e MEMEBEBKAAMEREENHBELD
HBERMENARERERERNUE

o REE - HMEEEFEAREMALIES
BRI

o HMANRIFELNEN : Rk

o BTRMBEMEHIREZHANEER ALK
TRt RHEESNEMEIEERER (S
ERBERREHE LHRERRA) -

RE B HT B A B bR R 6 #S M B A A
BRANE  WREEHREBKIESAANE - &
BimE - FAMMKRIER L EHER R BRA KRR
SRR BESEGER B AGE R REM
EHWRER BEAEESBEHZHE QA
ALk

BakAMEERRSREHBENARRKRR
NIEZEREE - MBARNEZHRERERBER
ARRBPR RIS - AR RS GBS
REBEIEERME -

VEESARMEBARMBERRIAEEGTERE
HEAEEGFHRE B -

Annual Report 2019 4

203



204

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MBBRME

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

In the statement of financial position of the Company,
investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control. This is
generally the case where the Group holds between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after
initially being recognised at cost.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or
losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share
of movements in other comprehensive income of the
investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends received
or receivable from associates are recognised as a reduction
in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group's share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

Equity method (Continued)

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is
tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described “Impairment of non-financial assets”.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with
equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest
results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of
the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised in a
separate reserve within equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for
an investment because of a loss of control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to
its fair value with the change in carrying amount recognised
in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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A MBBRME

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

e fair values of the assets transferred

e liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

e equity interests issued by the Group

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement, and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity's net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the
e consideration transferred,

e amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

e acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate,
being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained
from an independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified either as
equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker.

The board of the Company has appointed Executive
Committee which assesses the financial performance and
position of the Group, and makes strategic decisions.
Executive Committee, which has been identified as being
the chief operating decision maker, consists of executive
directors of the Company.

Foreign currencies

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar (HKS), which
is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange
rates are generally recognised in profit or loss.
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A MBBRME

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using exchange rates at the
date of the transaction. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. For example, translation differences on
non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation
differences on non-monetary assets such as equities
classified as fair value through other comprehensive income
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rate
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under translation reserve
(attributable to non-controlling interests as appropriate). Such
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Goodwill is not
amortised but it is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the business combination in which the goodwill
arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating segments.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A

BEXEER@®

s @)

ALK AT EMIINEIEEREMHIEEIRZRBR 5 H
HWERTE - LAFEFENEENEENTT
EEBIRAATFERSFIBERS—E D o flan
BAFEFAEENIFEEHEEEMAEIEE
(fEz)  EMEZEF ABRIHRALTFEYK
wmABERA— 2 RATEFAEMEEKE
RBEERMHEERE  HTEEZHETEHEM2EK

RN -

REVGAFBHRR  AEBBRIINEBNEER
BEREREHRNEXBERAEEANZE
B (ANETT) - KX ARFATHERBRE - HE
ERHRAERE ARSI - EUBERT - AR
ZBEBRITER - FELERLZR(NE) REME
E R R RARERR N2 REREE  WE
ERRET AR o 2 FE X RN
EBRHEREBN O BERS -

]
WIBRBES 28 HIRWERS A MAEL 2
RARRREBR(IE)IE - HESTH#
i ESFETREN  REAFEMHHERE
U B RRUT T B IR (E Y #E 1T SRR (E R
o WK AR E RERERKIIR - HEEE
sk EReERNEERAMNMEREE -

i

HRRERAEANS  BENOEEBRHARELRDE
MEHHBRBETEN I AREEREGELE
(B ELEMAR)  BEeELFMHBS
EEFEMARNTHAEBEER B NmREREER
RIEE R (BIEE D &) R



Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than properties under
construction in progress) are stated at historical cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Land and buildings are separable assets and are accounted
for separately. For land and buildings where the cost of land
cannot be reliably allocated between the land and buildings
elements, the cost of land and buildings are depreciated and
amortised on a straight-line basis over the lease terms or 20
years, whichever is the shorter.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of land
and buildings, other property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress, less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, at the
following rates per annum:

Plant and machinery 10%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20% - 33':%
Leasehold improvements Over the

lease term or 20%,
whichever is shorter
Motor vehicles 25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Properties which comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or for
administration purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately (or leased out separately under a finance lease),
the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions could not be sold separately, the property is
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes.

Construction in progress is carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

If there is a transfer from investment property to owner-occupied
property evidenced by the commencement of owner's
occupation, the property shall be measured at its carrying amount
at the date of change in use for subseguent accounting.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investment properties (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account their estimated residual value, using
the straight-line basis over 20 years.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property
is derecognised.

Land use rights

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of each element have been transferred to the Group, unless
it is clear that both elements are operating leases in which
case the entire property is accounted as an operating lease.
Specifically, the entire consideration (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the leasehold land
and the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land elements and
building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “land use rights” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life and assets that are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end
of each reporting period.

Jewellery collectibles

Jewellery collectibles are those unique treasures with
extremely high-value and are designated not for sale.

Jewellery collectibles are classified as non-current assets at
cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any. Jewellery
collectibles are derecognised upon disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the profit or loss
in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal
operating capacity. Cost is calculated using specific
identification basis for gem-set jewellery and watches; and
weighted average for other inventories. Costs of purchased
inventory are determined after deducting rebates and
discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets

(a)

Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018
Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income
("OCI") or through profit or loss); and

* those to be measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the

contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI.

Debt investments are reclassified when and only
when the Group’s business model for managing those

assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Changes in the fair value of
financial assets at FVPL are recognised in other gains/
(losses) in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
as applicable.
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A MBBRME

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(a)

Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018
(Continued)

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are two measurement categories into
which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in
other gains/(losses) together with foreign exchange
gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

e FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI"”) are measured at
FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net within other gains/
(losses) in the period in which it arises.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires lifetime
expected credit losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, see note 24 for further details.

For all other financial assets measured at amortised
cost, the Group recognises a loss allowance equal to
12-month expected credit loss unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018
(Continued)

Impairment (Continued)

When there is a significant increase in credit risk or the
proceeds receivables are not settled in accordance
with the terms stipulated in the agreements,
management considers these receivables as
underperforming or non-performing and impairment is
measured as lifetime expected credit loss.

Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018

The Group has applied IFRS 9 retrospectively, but has
elected not to restate comparative information. As a
result, the comparative information provided continues
to be accounted for in accordance with the Group’s
previous accounting policy.

Until 31 March 2018 the Group classifies its financial
assets as loans and receivables. The classification
determined on the purpose for which the investments
were acquired. Management determined the
classification of its investments at initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement at initial recognition did not change
on adoption of IFRS 9, see description above.

Subsequent to the initial recognition, loans and
receivables was subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Impairment

The Group assessed at the end of each reporting
period whether there was objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets was
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets
was impaired and impairment losses were incurred
only if there was objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that
loss event (or events) had an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that could be reliably estimated.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
(b) Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018
(Continued)

Impairment (Continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss was
measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
had not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset was reduced and the amount of
the loss was recognised in profit or loss. If a loan had a
variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss was the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group could measure impairment on
the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreased and the decrease could be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss was recognised
in profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet where the Group currently has
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts,
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The Group has
also entered into arrangements that do not meet the criteria
for offsetting but still allow for the related amounts to be set
off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the
termination of a contract.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. They are generally due for settlement between 30
and 180 days and therefore are all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. See note 24 for further information
about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables and note
34 for a description of the Group's impairment policies.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid
between 7 and 180 days of recognition. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is
not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant
and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as other
liabilities and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets. Note 6
provides further information on how the Group accounts for
government grants.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on
the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all
of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised
in profit or loss as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Gold loans

Gold loans to be repaid by cash are designated as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss as the gold loans
form part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives. Gold loans to be repaid by physical gold are
classified as liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Gain or losses on gold loans are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, except for the gains
or losses arising from the Group’s own credit risk relating
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which are
presented in other comprehensive income with no
subsequent reclassification to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these liabilities.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years, and it further excludes income or expense items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred
tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at
the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Retirement benefits

Payments to retirement benefit plans and government-
managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an

expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of
providing benefits is determined using the projected unit
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at
the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the
changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on
plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately in
the consolidated statement of financial position with a charge
or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the
period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in
other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in
retained earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or loss.
Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period
of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying
the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net
defined benefit liability or asset.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

e service cost (including current service cost, past service
cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments
and settlements);

® netinterest expense or income; and
® remeasurement.

The Group presents the first two components of defined
benefit costs in profit or loss in “selling and distribution
costs” and “general and administrative expenses”.
Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past
service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position represents the
present value of the defined benefit obligation.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Retirement benefits (continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary
benefits and accumulating sick leave that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period
in which the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end
of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the balance sheet.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of goods and the provision
of services in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Sales of goods — Retail
The Group operates a chain of retail stores selling jewellery
products and watches. Revenue from the sale of goods is
recognised when the product is transferred to the customer
who takes delivery in store.

Payment of the transaction price is due from retail customers
immediately. The payment is usually settled in cash, by credit
cards, by means of electronic payments or settled indirectly
through retail malls.

Sales of goods — Customers loyalty programme
Sales of goods that result in award credits for customers,
under the Group's customer loyalty programme, are
accounted for as multiple element revenue transactions and
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable is
allocated between the goods supplied and the award credits
granted. Revenue is not recognised at the time of the initial
sale transaction — but is deferred and recognised as revenue
when the cash coupons or points are redeemed and the
Group's obligations have been fulfilled.

Accumulated experience is used to estimate the forfeiture of
award credits as breakage which is recognised as contract
liabilities. The expected breakage amount is recognised as
revenue in proportion to the pattern of rights exercised by
the customers or when the likelihood of the customer
exercising its rights becomes remote.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Sales of goods — Wholesale to franchisees/retailers
and Jewellery trading

The Group manufactures and sells a range of jewellery
products in the wholesale market. Sales are recognised when
control of the products has transferred to franchisees/retailers
and jewellery trading customers. The franchisees/retailers and
jewellery trading customers have full discretion over the
channel and price to sell the products, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the franchisees'/retailers’
and jewellery trading customers’ acceptance of the products.
Control is transferred when the risks of obsolescence and loss
have been transferred to the franchisees/retailers and
jewellery trading customers, and either the franchisees/
retailers and jewellery trading customers have accepted the
products in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance
provisions have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

A contract liability is also recognised when the franchisees/
retailers pay deposits before the Group transfers control of
the goods to the franchisees/retailers.

Service income from franchisees

The Group provides services to franchisees under fixed-price
contracts. Revenue from providing services is recognised in
the accounting period in which the services are rendered.

For fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognised based on the
actual service provided to the end of the reporting period as
a proportion of the total services to be provided because the
customer receives and uses the benefits simultaneously.

In case of fixed-price contracts, the customer pays the fixed
amount based on a payment schedule. If the services
rendered by the Group exceed the payment, a contract asset
is recognised. If the payments exceed the services rendered,
a contract liability is recognised.
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A MBBRME

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals
and concessionaire fees arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion
of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but
not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in
the net fair value gains/(losses) on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost (2018
— loans and receivables) calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is
earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for
financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A
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Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Valuation of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value of inventories is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal. It is the Group’s policy
to review the net realisable value of inventories periodically
with reference to current market situation and conditions of
the items. The assessment of net realisable value of
inventories was based on economic conditions, marketability
of products and the forecast market price of gold, platinum
and gemstones used to make the jewellery products. The
Group’'s management also engaged an independent
professional gemmologist to perform valuation and assess
conditions of certain items based on gemstone testing for
gem-set jewellery with reference to international diamond
prices, its expertise and the current market situation. The
Group reassessed the estimation at the end of each reporting
period. As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of
inventories was HK$39,486.1 million (net of allowances of
HK$159.5 million) (2018: carrying amount of HK$34,929.4
million (net of allowances of HK$277.1 million)). Reversal of
allowances on inventories of HK$113.5 million (2018
provision of allowance of HK$207.7 million) were recognised
in consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year
ended 31 March 2019.

4.
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Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

Valuation of jewellery collectibles

The jewellery collectibles are those unique treasures with
extremely high-value considered by the Group and are
designated not for sale. They are classified as non-current
assets at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any. In
estimating the valuation of jewellery collectibles, it is the
Group’s policy to review the conditions of items by internal
gemologist and assess the recoverable amount periodically
with reference to international diamond prices and market
research reports on jewellery industry. The Group's
management on a regular basis reviews if there is
impairment indicator and estimated the recoverable amount
if necessary. The Group's management also engaged an
independent professional gemologist to perform valuation
and assess the conditions of items based on gemstone
testing for gem-set jewellery with reference to international
diamond prices, its expertise and the current market
situation. As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of
jewellery collectibles was HK$1,520.1 million (2018:
HK$1,520.1 million). The management of the Group
determined that the carrying amount of jewellery collectibles
approximated its costs less accumulated impairment.

Useful lives, residual value and impairment of
property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and other intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives, residual value and related depreciation and amortisation
charges for its property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and other intangible assets. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives and
residual value of property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and other intangible assets of similar nature and
functions. Management will increase the depreciation and
amortisation charges where useful lives or residual value are
expected to be shorter or lower than estimated, or it will write-
off or write-down obsolete assets that have been abandoned.
Changes in these estimations may have a material impact on
the results of the Group, which would be recognised in profit
or loss in the year when such change occur. As at 31 March
2019, the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and other intangible assets were
HK$5,488.0 million (2018: HK$5,340.7 million), HK$219.2
million (2018: HK$233.5 million) and HK$253.7 million (2018:
HK$306.4 million), respectively.
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Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

(Continued)

Deferred taxation in respect of temporary
differences attributable to the undistributed
profits of subsidiaries in Mainland China

The Group’s management determines the dividend
distribution plan of the subsidiaries in Mainland China. Based
on the dividend distribution plan, retained profits as at 31
March 2019 amounting to HK$7,685.9 million (2018:
HK$7,948.4 million) will be distributed by the subsidiaries as
dividend in the foreseeable future, while the remaining
retained profits amounting to HK$5,672.4 million (2018:
HK$6,784.0 million) has been set aside for reinvestment by
the subsidiaries and will not be distributed in the foreseeable
future. The Group’s management further reassesses the
dividend withholding tax rate based on current dividend
distribution plan and determines that certain of these
subsidiaries should be entitled to a withholding tax at the
rate of 5% for dividend payments. The dividend distribution
plan is determined and made with reference to the Group’s
approved expansion plans in Mainland China. Future change
in the dividend distribution plan may have a material impact
on the amount of deferred taxation being recognised.

Revenue and Segment Information

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable
for goods sold and services provided less returns and net of
trade discounts.

For the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, information reported to the chief operating
decision maker (the “CODM"), which comprises executive
directors of the Company, mainly focuses on the location of
management. Revenue derived from each location of
management is further analysed into those from retail and
wholesale markets when reviewed by the CODM. The
Group's reportable and operating segments for the years
ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 included two segments,
namely (i) business in the Mainland China and (ii) business in
Hong Kong, Macau and other markets.
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A BRERM T
5. Revenue and Segment Information 5. ZEXHERPBER =
(Continued)
(a) Analysis of the Group’s revenue and results (a) BRUBHOTBE D AREEZ LS
by reportable segment REESHT
For the year ended 31 March BZ3A31MALEE
Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China other markets Total
HEIRL i RPREMTS @5t
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
HKS$ million HKS$ million HK$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million
HEET BEERT BEERL BEBT HEET HEET
Revenue EESR
External sales (note i) SNREEE (Fi3ED)
— Retall —ZE 30,423.7 28,096.2 23,058.3 20,632.7 53,482.0 48,728.9
— Wholesale (note ii) — L3 (B 12,008.3 8,708.3 1,170.6 1,719.2 13,178.9 10,427.5
Segment/group revenue N/ EELERE 42,432.0 36,804.5 24,228.9 22,3519 66,660.9 59,156.4
Inter-segment sales A EEHE
(note iii) (Fsaxiii) - 259 3,405.3 31222 3,405.3 3,148.1
42,432.0 36,8304 27,634.2 25,474.1 70,066.2 62,304.5
Adjusted gross profit LHEEF
(before elimination) (Hssan) 12,237.2 10,574.4 6,524.0 5,697.2 18,761.2 16,271.6
Inter-segment eliminations %2 &5 1.3 (1.3) (161.7) (151.5) (160.4) (152.8)
Adjusted gross profit TAEER
(note i) (F7ET) 12,2385 10,573.1 6,362.3 5,645.7 18,600.8 16,118.8
Other income HiA 252.7 292.7 1431 115.2 395.8 407.9
Selling and distribution ~ $4%& & 5 $4pk A&
costs and general B RITH
and administrative =53
expenses (7,486.7) (6,598.8) (4,537.8) (4,321.5) (12,024.5) (10,920.3)
Core operating profit TEEERN
(segment result) (PH%EER) 5,004.5 4,267.0 1,967.6 1,339.4 6,972.1 5,606.4
Unrealised gainongold &4 REH % 1.0 9.6
Others (note iv) Hh (PrEiv) (333.5) 294.3
Interest income PV ON 82.7 80.3
Finance costs AR A (370.3) (243.7)
Profit before taxation B A 7 6,352.0 5,831.9
Other segment HAFELE
information included in & (HBELE)
measurement of core HENEMD
operating profit DEER
(segment result):
Concessionaire fees EREAK 1,891.7 1,872.0 16.3 16.4 1,908.0 1,888.4
Operating lease payments &A% & 4
in respect of MEFE
rented premises 353.8 276.3 1,204.1 1,306.1 1,557.9 1,682.4
Staff costs BIMAK 2,852.4 2,471.0 1,769.3 1,465.2 4,621.7 3,936.2
Depreciation and WEREH
amortisation 616.5 530.8 349.9 354.3 966.4 885.1
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5. Revenue and Segment Information

(Continued)

(a)

Analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable segment (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Included in the external sales and adjusted gross profit, HK$725.2 million (2018:

HK$661.9 million) and HK$275.4 million (2018: HK$270.2 million) are generated
from Hearts On Fire Company, LLC.

(il Wholesale revenue represents revenue from jewellery trading, sales to
franchisees and retailers and provision of services to franchisees.

(i) Inter-segment sales are charged at a price mutually agreed by both parties.

(iv)  Others represent other gains and losses and other expenses.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3. Adjusted gross profit represents the gross
profit generated from each segment without allocation
of unrealised gain on gold. Core operating profit
represents the profit generated from each segment
without allocation of unrealised gain on gold, other
gains and losses, other expenses, interest income and
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.
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230

5. BEXHERDEHEHE @

5. Revenue and Segment Information
(Continued)

(b) Analysis of the Group’s assets by (b) BRUESH/SBESHWEEESE

reportable segment

4

As at 31 March M3A31H
Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China other markets Total
HEIR L i RPREMTS @t
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
HKS$ million HKS$ million HK$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million
HEBT BB Bl HEBT BEET HEET
Property, plant and MmE - BE k&
equipment 3,769.8 3,958.4 1,718.2 1,382.3 5,488.0 5,340.7
Investment properties ~ REYE - - 219.2 2335 219.2 2335
Jewellery collectibles KELE - - 1,520.1 1,620.1 1,520.1 1,620.1
Inventories FE 20,838.1 18,387.8 18,648.0 16,541.6 39,486.1 34,9294
Total segment assets A HEE 24,607.9 22,346.2 22,105.5 19,677.56 46,713.4 42,023.7
Unallocated: AAE :
Land use rights TR 1712 189.8
Goodwill and other EE L EM
intangible assets B AE 5115 564.2
Deposits paid for BENE  BE
acquisition of REREEH
property, plant and &
equipment 38.7 27.6
Financial assets at fair ~ ZAFEA
value through BE/
profit or loss SHEE 1.2 =
Investments in REEENEZ
associates and BREREK
amounts due from NG|
associates FE 547 62.2
Loan receivables W E T 31.0 55.3
Deferred tax assets ELHBEE 420.1 293.1
Trade and other BHREMEK
receivables E 6,638.7 6,410.0
Cash and cash BehBEe
equivalents ZEY 7,640.6 7,944.0
Total assets BEE 62,237.1 57,569.9
Segment liabilities SEEE

No liabilities are included in the measures of the
Group's segment reporting that are reviewed by
the CODM. Accordingly, no segment liabilities

are presented.
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e IS IRRMIEE
5. Revenue and Segment Information 5. BEBERPHBER @
(Continued)
(c) Analysis of the Group’s assets by (c) HWMFBEBEDHEEERSES T
geographical area
The Group's non-current assets, excluding loan B ER S AEBIERHEE (T
receivables, amounts due from associates, financial BIEEWE S UL N TIEIE  BA
assets at fair value through profit or loss and deferred TEFAEXNEREENELRIBEE)
tax assets, by geographical areas are as follows: ST :
As at 31 March M3A31H
2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
ER- 377 BEET
Mainland China B A 3, 4,402.4 4,161.6
Hong Kong, Macau and other markets &% ~ JBPI M EfhTi5 3,552.3 3,714.3
7,954.7 7,875.9
(d) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts (d) BEREHEEHEAS
with customers
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods AEBEREDERBERE R ER
and services at a point in time and over time in the —BREANAITENEREE T EERET
following major product lines: W
For the year ended 31 March HE3AZMALEE
2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEERT
At a point in time RE—RFE
Retail sales of ZEHE
— Gem-set jewellery — RBERE 12,187.7 11,659.1
— Gold products — EBEEMm 31,892.3 28,159.3
— Platinum/karat gold products — A KEER 5,756.6 5,463.2
— Watches — ik 3,645.4 3,447.3
53,482.0 48,728.9
Wholesale to franchisees/retailers [ IR R,/ S HE B 12,484.2 9,163.0
Jewellery trading KEEH 494.7 1,144.1
Over time R—EBREEA
Service income from franchisees EERNEEEESE TN 200.0 120.4
66,660.9 59,156.4
No individual customer contributed over 10% of the MEFERN  BEGAIBEREAEEGTF
total revenue of the Group in both years. BEERE10% AL -
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REMBRRWE
6. Other Income 6. HMUA
2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
Government grants (note) B R A (P EE) 107.1 138.8
Commission income EEAl N 96.9 89.6
Other income from franchisees EIERIEEREES =LA PN 56.2 81.1
Rental income Ha WA 14.4 12.5
Interest income from trade receivables B 5 e IE B I B U A 47.2 6.7
Interest income from loan receivables FEE FREF B HA 1.5 1.2
Others EHAfh 725 78.0
395.8 407.9
Note:  This mainly represents the government incentives granted by the government in MisE : EEARPEARMRTIRESBATER  AESHAEERER
Mainland China for the development of the Group's operation in Mainland China. MR EBERE -
7. Other Gains and Losses 7. Hbleiz REsE
2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEET
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain B (E518) Wt B8 (241.2) 343.0
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEYE  BEMRFEEE
and equipment (17.8) (7.1)
Others Hih (17.2) 6.5
(276.2) 342.4
8. Interest Income and Finance Costs 8. FIRWIARBEIERAE
2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
HEBT HEBT
Interest income from FLEWA
— banks — BT 82.7 66.9
— others — Hfty - 13.4
82.7 80.3
Finance costs on borrowings EEREKA
— gold loans — EHESHEE 161.4 133.0
— bank borrowings — RITEK 208.9 110.7
370.3 243.7
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e BRI
9. Profit Before Taxation 9. R#imiiiFl
2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
Profit before taxation has been arrived at K& ATHFIE MK/ (GHA) ¢

after charging/(crediting):

Directors’ remuneration (note 10) FEE (HE10) 92.6 62.4
Staff’s retirement benefits 8 TIRREAIFH 2R

scheme contributions 613.3 546.2

Staff costs BTRA 3,915.8 3,327.6

4,621.7 3,936.2
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 77 & AR AR 46,723.5 41,579.9
Concessionaire fees HIED K 1,908.0 1,888.4
Operating lease rentals in respect of AAYELEHERS

rented premises 1,557.9 1,682.4
Depreciation of property, plant M - BERRETE

and equipment 885.1 806.6
Depreciation of investment properties REYENE 14.3 14.3
Amortisation of land use rights o H {58 PR AR B 8 14.3 14.3
Amortisation of other intangible assets HAh R A iy 52.7 49.9
(Reversal of)/allowances on inventories TE (M),

(included in cost of goods sold) (FrASHERARA) (113.5) 207.7
Allowances for doubtful debts AR 275 18.3
Impairment loss of amount due from MR —REGE R R IR 2 R EEE

an associate (included in other expense) GrAEMmRAS) 5.0 -
Fair value loss of gold loans HeEBEENATEEE

(included in cost of goods sold) Gt AEERAR) 117.2 35.3
Donations (included in other expenses) BRGIAEMRAZA) 9.9 8.3
Auditors’ remuneration ZEENN &

— audit services — ZEURE 6.6 8.7
— non-audit services — FFRER 5.2 3.1

10. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and

Employees’ Emoluments

10. EX RETHRABRESHE

2019 2018

HK$ million HK$ million

BEEBT BAEET

Directors’ fees EE=tokn 41 4.1
Other emoluments to directors FEMNHMES

— salaries and other benefits — e REMEF 35.3 27.0

— performance-based bonus — BEAEAL 48.7 28.9

— retirement benefits scheme contributions — RK1EF5H 2K 4.5 2.4

92.6 62.4
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234 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE
- - A —— = 24— = =
10. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and 10. EE - RR{THASRESN:
Employees’ Emoluments (continued) ()
Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors and AEBMARAREERERITBRABEINNHE
the chief executives of the Company are as follows: HIBWT
2019 2018
Retirement Retirement
benefits benefits
Salaries and  Performance scheme Salaries and  Performance scheme
Director's fee other henefits based bonus ~ contributions Total  Director's fee other benefits based bonus contributions Total
4R EHER ¥eR BIER
Eshe Rt Eyra HETRE @it j E30kA AR LI SRR &t
HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HKS million  HKS million HK$ million ~ HKS million ~ HK$ million ~ HKS million  HKS$ million
BEER BEER BEER BEER BEER BEER BEER BEER BEER BEER
(note i) (note i)
(H3Ei) (&)
Executive directors: YrEs:
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, PFARL(ER)
Henry (Chairman) 02 59 14 0.6 141 02 45 47 02 96
Mr. Wong SitKes, ERERE
Kent (Managing Director) (Ez4in) 02 59 84 06 151 02 45 50 05 102
Dr. Cheng Chi-kong, Adian ~ BI5RIfEL 02 24 35 06 67 02 16 20 02 40
Mr. Cheng ChirHeng, Conroy &l fB%4 02 3 38 06 77 02 23 12 03 10
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton ~ B %4 02 33 47 08 9.0 02 25 27 03 57
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong Rt 8 %4 02 38 58 03 101 02 30 37 03 72
Mr. Suen Chi-keung, Peter st 02 30 41 03 76 02 23 24 02 5
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert BELEL 02 29 38 03 12 02 24 25 0.1 5.2
Mr. Liu Chun Wai, Bobby BERaks 02 29 42 03 76 02 2 27 02 53
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson B854 (Hif3Eii)
(note ii 02 21 20 01 44 02 17 15 01 35
Independent non-executive ~ BUKHTEES:
directors:
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul BE%E 04 - 02 - 06 04 - 0.1 - 05
Dr. Fung KwokKing, Victor BEEET 04 - 02 - 06 04 - 01 - 05
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon ~ B4 & 05 - 02 - 0.7 05 - 01 - 06
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey sy 04 - 02 - 06 04 - 0.1 - 05
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond WEREL 04 - 02 - 06 04 - 01 - 05
Total it 41 353 487 45 926 41 210 289 24 624
Notes: PR E

) BEREADHASEEEERARENYBEEREERANE

(i) The performance-based bonus is discretionary based on the Group's financial results and (

directors’ performance decided by the management of the Group. EETE °
(i)~ Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson was re-designated as an executive director with effect from (i) BBERIZLAEBH2019F4 A1 BRFAEARITES -

1 April 2019.
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were XA TRZHTESHE T ERBESERHERR
mainly for their services in connection with the management RARAEEZBRERT o EXFIRZIERIT
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The EERBUBTESHE T ZERREFEER
emoluments of the non-executive directors and independent NAIEEH

non-executive directors shown above were mainly for their
services as directors of the Company.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A



10. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and

Employees’ Emoluments (continued)

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals included five directors (2018:
five) of the Company, details of whose emoluments are
included above.

During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors and the
chief executives of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals (including directors, the chief executives and
employees) as compensation for loss of office and as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group. None of the
directors have waived any emoluments during the years
ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

Emoluments of senior management

Other than the emoluments of directors and five highest paid
individuals disclosed above, the emoluments of the senior
management whose profiles are included in “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management” section fell within the
following bands:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PBBRME

EaMe AL BEARARRRRESE(2018
F AR REFHFABHR L -

HZE201943HA31 B K%201853A31HIFFE
AEBVERNARREEFERERTRABSRAS
EEMe AT (BEES  EaTBAEBRES)
TS - AEABE TR A HH(E R RS SN
ASEMAREERHIZE - HE201943 A
318 %2018 3 A31 HILFEW EEMEFRK
ZEEH B o

AREEAESMSE
BREMEERAERSMEALTOMSI) SR
EREAB(BERN EEREREZARMN]
—H#)ME TN F THIEE

Number of individuals

EEHE
2019 2018
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z% 1,000,000 % 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 T % 2,000,000 # 7T 2 8
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T % 2,500,000 % 7T 6 1
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 /& 7T % 3,000,000 7T 1 -
10 9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REBEMRME

11. Taxation

1. H1E

2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
The taxation charge comprises: FHIBR X B ¢
Current tax: BNEAFRIR -
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") in HR B A b (b R PAS Y
Mainland China 1,035.8 941.1
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBTER 289.7 401.2
Macau complementary tax SEPS TS 7oA 60.5 445
Taxation in other jurisdictions H b mSAM R 2 BiTA 35 1.1
1,389.5 1,387.9
Under/(over)provision in prior years: BEEERETR/ GRERE)
EIT in Mainland China B At 1 TSR 25.7 (17.5)
Hong Kong Profits Tax EEFER 1115 0.2
Taxation in other jurisdictions EMhrlEMH R 2 IR 2.4 -
139.6 (17.3)
Deferred tax charge (note 22) EEFRERALZ (FiE22) 114.8 230.9
Withholding tax* FEHR * 241 27.1
1,668.0 1,628.6

* Withholding tax mainly represents withholding tax on intra-group licence income and
interest income from Mainland China subsidiaries.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law (the “EIT Law") of the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries in
Mainland China is 25% for both years.

For certain subsidiaries of the Company in Mainland China,
they are entitled to the tax incentives in connection with the
development of the western part of Mainland China. The
applicable tax rate is 15% for both years.

Macau complementary tax is calculated at the maximum
progressive rate of 12% on the estimated assessable profit
for both years.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEABHRELEB AR AT
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e IS IRRMIEE
11. Taxation (continued) 1. BlE @
Taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit FRFIES H A AR R AR AR T # R
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or N
loss as follows:
2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEBT
Profit before taxation R F By | 6,352.0 5,831.9
Tax at the applicable income tax rate: ERATEHRRAENRIE ¢
(Mainland China: 25%; Hong Kong: (Eplﬁqtm 1 25% : BE  16.5%
16.5%; Macau: 12%) JEPT 0 12%) 1,309.0 1,465.6
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for  RAHIHF X WIS L
tax purposes 18.1 36.8
Tax effect of income not taxable for BARRBANT G L
tax purposes (48.2) (85.7)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AIERTIBEIBNTR ST E 56.9 80.5
Utilisation of tax losses previously ) A ST AT AR TR R E S 18
not recognised (28.0) (40.7)
Tax effect of tax exemptions and incentives &+ B XM B A R IER S &
granted to certain subsidiaries in BENTBTE
Mainland China (23.7) (38.2)
Withholding tax on undistributed profits of = Bl Ayt Fff & A 7] ok 2k i K1 FE 405
subsidiaries in Mainland China 202.2 204.7
Under/(over)provision in prior years BEFEERERNR, (GREEE) 139.6 (17.3)
Withholding tax TEFR 24.1 27.1
Others EAh 18.0 (4.2)
Taxation charge for the year FRFESL L 1,668.0 1,628.6
At 31 March 2019, the Group has tax losses of HK$1,025.4 M201963A31H - "EERERBIELERIE
million (2018: HK$870.0 million) not recognised as deferred BENTIEEIREA1,025.48 88 T(20184 :
tax assets. 870.0 B &HBT) °
The ageing of unrecognised tax losses by expiry date is REFBE D AERAR BB EORRET
as follows:
2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEABRT
0-5 years 0-54 209.6 261.9
16-20 years 16204 607.7 399.5
Unlimited RAEFR 208.1 208.6
1,025.4 870.0
At 31 March 2019, the Group has deductible temporary M 201963 A31 B+ RSB (5 R 3t Ut ERIE LT
differences of HK$12.9 million (2018: HK$13.8 million) of REMAIREREERA12988%7 (2018
which deferred taxation has not been recognised. Tax effect F:13.888%) o Lt 201943 A31 87
of such deductible temporary differences as at 31 March MBEREEENRBETE A2 18872018
2019 was HK$2.1 million (2018: HK$2.3 million). F:23FBHBIL) °
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e EREMEE
11. Taxation (continued) 1. BlE @
Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax of 5% to BIEFBESEMERZE  PRAHKTEAFZE
10% (2018: 5% to 10%) is imposed on dividends declared in FLE 20084 1 A1 BT BRIUG F £ 5 kA% S B
respect of profits earned by subsidiaries in Mainland China BN F5%ZE10% (20184 : 5% £ 10%) Z
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Based on the dividend B - REBEEEBHRE IS - 72019
distribution plan of the management, retained profits as at 31 FIANBAMREBEFNE H£7689B8E8 T
March 2019 amounting to HK$7,685.9 million (2018: (20184 : 7,948.4 B &% T) 1] R RIER
HK$7,948.4 million) will be distributed as dividend in the BEDIK  MBHRTREB®FE 567248 &5
foreseeable future, while the remaining retained profits JC(20184 : 6,784 B &E/B L) BEREBIEHILER
amounting to HK$5,672.4 million (2018: HK$6,784 million) B AEEAIRERDIK
has been set aside for reinvestment and will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.
12. Earnings Per Share 12. SIREF
The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the year is FESREARFRENAR ARG F AL
based on the consolidated profit attributable to shareholders A A A RFAE TR 10,000,000,000
of the Company for the year and on the number of A% (20184 : 10,000,000,000 f%) 5+ & -
10,000,000,000 (2018: 10,000,000,000) shares in issue
during the year.
Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per FR A 1 4F 2 30 S B 1 T AR B R - e
share as there was no potential ordinary share dilution during BERNEGREABFIER -
both years.
13. Dividends 13. &2
2019 2018
HK cents per HK cents per
share HK$ million share HK$ million
FRABN BEET SRBN BHEBT
Dividends paid and RERZTRER B DI
recognised as distribution 2R B
during the year
For current year: REE -
— Interim dividends — HRHIR B 15.0 1,500.0 12.0 1,200.0
For prior year: +FE:
— Final dividends — RERRE 15.0 1,500.0 10.0 1,000.0
— Special dividends — BRI B 30.0 3,000.0 20.0 2,000.0
6,000.0 4,200.0

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final
dividend of HK20.0 cents (2018: HK15.0 cents) per share and
a special dividend of HK30.0 cents (2018: HK30.0 cents) per
share, totalling HK$5,000.0 million (2018: HK$4,500.0 million)
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2019 have been
proposed by the directors of the Company and are subject to
approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEABHRELEB AR AT

RMEIKRE - ARAEZEZHEE 201943
B31 8 IEFEIRMAAREREF20.0811(2018
F: FR15.0%810) X5 RIR S S 8R30.08 10
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e IS IRRMIEE
14. Property, Plant and Equipment 14. Y% - BMERRE
Furniture, Leasehold
Land and Plantand fixtures and improve- Motor  Construction
building hil JuiF t ments vehicles in progress Total
& HER
THREF BERESE R HEWEEE RE EEIR @it
HKS$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HKS$ million
BEER BEER BEER BEER BEER BEER BEER
Cost BA
At 1 April 2017 M2017F4R1H 34247 371.6 2,173.2 2,229.1 493 507.2 8,755.1
Currency realignment HHEE 3239 443 107.0 230.6 3.9 32.1 7418
Additions E 1.2 95.2 3926 3184 5.7 300.4 1,135
Transfer B 367.7 7.7 2.0 316 - (409.0) -
Disposals HE (4.6) (15.7) (127.0) (18.2) (5.5) = (171.0)
Transferred from BERENE
investment properties 22 - - - - - 2.2
At 31 March 2018 ®2018%F3A31H 4,115.1 503.1 2,547.8 2,7915 53.4 430.7 10,441.6
Currency realignment BHEE (236.6) (89.6) (202.4) (173.4) (2.2) (15.8) (720.0)
Additions NE 182.4 54.8 485.0 435.2 9.3 2121 1,378.8
Transfer B 398.0 18.7 19.0 21.2 - (456.9) -
Disposals HE - (26.1) (236.1) (145.6) (5.0) - (412.8)
At 31 March 2019 R2019%3A31AH 4,458.9 460.9 2,613.3 2,928.9 55.5 170.1 10,687.6
Depreciation E
At 1 April 2017 R2017%4R18 585.9 114.3 1,591.5 1,757.0 40.1 - 4,088.8
Currency realignment B 59.6 19.0 75.7 184.8 3.0 - 342.1
Provided for the year FREE 1826 27.2 3314 260.2 5.2 = 806.6
Eliminated on disposals HEMSE (1.4) (8.7) (108.0) (13.5) (5.0) - (136.6)
At 31 March 2018 R2018%3 A31H 826.7 151.8 1,890.6 2,188.5 433 - 5,100.9
Currency realignment ERAE (62.7) (28.0) (209.2) (138.2) (1.6) - (439.7)
Provided for the year FREE 210.6 43.7 331.2 294.6 5.0 - 885.1
Eliminated on disposals &R - (22.5) (191.4) (128.0) (4.8) - (346.7)
At 31 March 2019 M2019%F3A31H 974.6 145.0 1,821.2 2,216.9 41.9 - 5,199.6
Carrying values IREE
At 31 March 2019 R2019%3A31H 3,484.3 315.9 7921 712.0 13.6 170.1 5,488.0
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3A31H 3,288.4 351.3 657.2 603.0 10.1 430.7 5,340.7

Annual Report 2019 4 ¥



240

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REBEMRME

15. Land Use Rights

15. T i {E FA#E

2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
ER-¥: 7 BEERT
At 1 April R4/1H 189.8 198.6
Currency realignment B 1.7 .5
Amortisation charged to profit or loss RERNB B KRS
during the year (14.3) (14.3)
At 31 March R3A31H 177.2 189.8
16. Investment Properties 16. EYE
2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
BBER BEET
Cost AR
At 1 April n4A1H 285.0 287.4
Transferred to property, plant and equipment EE =Y -« [KE &R E - (2.4)
At 31 March M3 A31H 285.0 285.0
Accumulated depreciation ZHifE
At 1 April R4A1H 51.5 37.4
Provided for the year FREE 14.3 14.3
Transferred to property, plant and equipment EEZEY % « HE &KRE - (0.2)
At 31 March MR3HA31H 65.8 51.5
Carrying values REE
At 31 March M3 A31H 219.2 233.5

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31
March 2019 was HK$375.8 million (2018: HK$365.6 million).
The fair value has been arrived at based on a valuation carried
out by Knight Frank Petty Limited (“Knight Frank”), an
independent property valuer not connected with the Group
(whose address is 4/F, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong), in accordance with the HKIS Valuation
Standards 2017 issued by Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
and the RICS Valuation — Global Standards 2017 issued by
the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Knight Frank is
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and has
appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEABHRELEB AR AT

REENREYMENR2019F3 A31 BN AFE
#375.8 A& B IT(20184F : 365.6 BEET)
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16. Investment Properties (continued) 16.

The fair value was determined based on the income
approach, where the market rentals of all lettable units of the
properties are assessed and discounted at the market yield
expected by investors for this type of properties. The market
rentals are assessed by reference to the rentals achieved in
the lettable units of the properties as well as other lettings of
similar properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation
rate is determined by reference to the yields derived from
analysing the sales transactions of similar properties in Hong
Kong and adjusted to take into account the market
expectation from property investors to reflect factors specific
to the Group's investment properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information
about the fair value hierarchy at the end of each reporting
period are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PBBRME

BREYE®w

ZAFEDIRBWAEHE - ZEWEZHAR
HHEMzMIGHSEEEERILEYEERZ
MW R RT(ERIR - MEHE2E%EWE
AT AN 2 S A RETEUMENE M HA
ERERHE - BEIRER R ES M B EELUYEE
ERXGBzZREEMETE WHWEREEZ
MGEREHABRUARRAEBIEEMERFFZ
A== -

RFEZEMENRDFER  ZENEZESR
REAZRAEEEAAE -

AEERZHRERROREMEFBERBERART
EEROERAT

Fair value hierarchy Fair value
ATEER ATE
2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BHEBT
At 31 March MR3A31H
Industrial property units MNREBRN T EESN Level 3

located in Hong Kong F= 375.8 365.6

The above investment properties are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over 20 years.

B E YA ERER 20 FAHRITE -
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A MBBRME

17. Goodwill 17. &
HK$ million
BEET
Cost and carrying values AR BREE
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019 M2017F4H81H 20183 A31 BH
201943 A31H 257.8

The goodwill arose in the acquisition of Hearts On Fire
Company, LLC (“Hearts On Fire”) included amounts in
relation to the benefit of expected synergies, revenue
growth, future market development and the assembled
workforce of Hearts On Fire. The recoverable amount of the
Hearts On Fire is determined based on a value in use
calculation which uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the directors covering a 5-year
(2018: b-year) period, and a discount rate of 11.0%-13.0%
(2018: 10.0%-13.0%) per annum.

Cash flow projections during the budget period are based on
the same expected gross margins throughout the budget
period. The cash flows beyond that 5-year period have been
extrapolated using the projected long-term average growth
rate for the jewellery industry. In the opinion of the directors,
no impairment loss was required for the year ended 31
March 2019 and 31 March 2018. The directors believe that
any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on
which the recoverable amount is based would not cause the
carrying amount of the group of units to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount.

I #& Hearts On Fire Company, LLC ([Hearts
On Fire) EAM A ERERBHBRME - K
HIER - BEMH %R & Hearts On Fire B
BAFHFEABEASEE - Hearts On Fire K9]
WEle B RBFERERETITE(ERESAH
HAERESF (20184 : 5F) 2ERFEE - £/
HF11.0%-13.0% (20184 : 10.0%-13.0%)
2R ERUBR S RIBAEEITIHE) MET

ZHEEHENRRAANENEEREHANER
M TEHRER E o MR iA 6 F rY3R 2k A A IEH
KRETERATHREERREL -BEERE - BHE
201943 A31H k20183 A31HILFEE
ERERE - EEMAE - TIRE S EATKIEA
REBROEMAERIEET T EKEMER
REEBBEANC S HEEE -

18. Other Intangible Assets 18. Hith R E&E
2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
BBER BEBT
Cost [5%:N
At 1 April and 31 March R4A1BXR3A31H 472.9 472.9
Accumulated amortisation S
At 1 April n4A1H 166.5 116.6
Provided for the year F B 52.7 49.9
At 31 March M3A31A 219.2 166.5
Carrying values BREE
At 31 March MR3A31H 253.7 306.4

The trademarks and patents are amortised with useful life of
6 to 15 years.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEABHRELEB AR AT
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19. Jewellery Collectibles

20.

The amounts represent the aggregate cost of gem-set
jewellery collectibles held by the Group which is designated
not for sale. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the recoverable amounts of the jewellery collectibles are at
least equivalent their carrying amounts at the end of the

reporting period.

Investments in Associates/Amounts Due

from Associates

19.

20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KELE

A PBBRME

ZARIR TR AR BR R E R IEE mAO IR E SR
BHMPHZBKE - ARREERR  KEDHE
MR O SRR E D SRR E PR REE -

REBEATZ®E FEWEE

ATIRIE

2019 2018
HK$ million HKS$ million
BEAT BEET
Investments in associates: REBE QAT ZRE
Cost of unlisted investment FEETIRERK A 44.0 44.0
Share of losses FEfL B8 (13.2) (13.2)
Share of translation reserve LR E G 1.2 1.2
Impairment A (32.0) (32.0)
Details of the associates of the Group are as follows: AEEMBE R RFEHIIMT
Place of incorporation/ Proportion of Proportion of
establishment and ownership interest voting rights held
Name of companies principal place of operation held by the Group by the Group Principal activities
AR/ RILBHR AEBFEEEE KBS
AFAER TEEENY [ $:3:4:1] BRERLAI IEEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
Shenzhen Qianhai Chow Tai Fook Mainland China 30.0% 30.0% 28.6% 28.6%  Operating a shopping
Hong Kong Goods Centre Co., Ltd Bl AL complex in Mainland
("Qianhai CTF") China
FFTERAREEERLERAT PR B PsAs B A
(TABAAR])
CTF Business Management Limited ~ Hong Kong 30.0% 30.0% 28.6% 28.6%  Operating an online
BARBEKERERAR b shopping platform
mEgtENTA
Group Program Limited British Virgin Islands 40.0% 40.0% 40.0% 40.0%  Operating a customer

(“BVI")
ARARARES

loyalty scheme in

Hong Kong and

Mainland China
REB R BN

BFBHEE
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A MBBRME

20. Investments in Associates/Amounts Due

from Associates (continued)

The recoverable amount of investment in Qianhai CTF had
been determined based on value in use calculation. That
calculation used a 5-year period cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by the directors, and discount
rate of 15%. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculation included budgeted rental income and expenses,
based on the unit's past performance and management’s
expectation for the market. Therefore, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the investment in Qianhai CTF and
amount due from Qianhai CTF were fully impaired and
impairment losses of investment in an associate and amount
due from an associate of HK$32.0 million and HK$79.6
million were recognised, respectively, in profit or loss.

The Group had discontinued recognition of its share of losses
of associates because its cumulative share of losses in the
associates had exceeded the investment cost less
subsequent accumulated impairment losses. The Group will
not resume recognition of its share of any future profits in
the associates until its share of such profits equals the
cumulative share of losses not recognised in past years.

The amounts of unrecognised share of loss of the associates
for the year and cumulatively, are as follows:

20.

NEEAT ZRE EKEE
ATIRIE @

RANERARKENRET KB SEENMEAEEE
E ot ER A FRKESZENDFUHBEE
g MBS R R LA R 15% B K o S EE
AEENENEZERXEERER S KA KRR
% EREMHBEREREEBNTIEELH
BBt ARREFERE RAVEAKREN
KEREWRAEEARERIBEZERE  TRBE
D RIFERN — KB E R BRI E R EW —REEE R
AIRIEREEEI2.0E8ETK79.6BEB T °

AEEDRIEERAEBEBRERRER  HAH
ZEEEBEARBEEBBREKRARERR
FHRERE - EAKEEGRE R RERRRE
NERBEFERERN R EEBERN - A%
BT g ImERRZE R

FARRFAHOARBRELEBE QR EESEN
T

2019 2018

HK$ million HK$ million

BEBT BAEERT

Unrecognised share of losses of associates AIER LS A R EE 18.6 33.5
Accumulated unrecognised share of losses Bt RER BRI S AR EE

of associates 52.1 8815

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying value of amounts due
from associates of HK$54.7 million (2018: HK$62.2 million) is
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed repayment terms.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEABHRELEB AR AT

R20194F3 A31H @ EUE: 2 QR FEERE
547 EBEBL(2018F : 62.2BEAE L) BER
B 2B RERTERS -



21.

22,

Loan Receivables

Loan receivables represent loans to staff and an amount due
from a private entity (the “Issuer”) which is principally
engaged in agriculture and wholesale of pearls in Australia.
Loan receivables are classified as current or non-current
assets based on contractual terms and taking into account
the timing of recovery as expected by the management.
There was no amount due but unpaid, nor any loss allowance
made against the principal amount of or interest on these
loans at 31 March 2019 and 2018.

All loan receivables from staff were secured over certain
properties, the fair value of which exceeds the carrying
amount of the related loan on an individual basis.

As at 31 March 2019, loan receivable from the Issuer has a
principal amount of Australian Dollar (“AUS") 2.0 million
(2018: AUS2.7 million), bears interest at 7.0% per annum
and will be repaid to the Group by instalments until 31
December 2020.

Deferred Taxation

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the
current and prior years:

21.

22.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PBBRME

FEM &R

EREFIEETEREBR—REZERMUEE
DIRBER BN E TR ([T AR -
FEUE IR IR & MG BB IR B TR SRR H
A EERMEIBERRDKFERBEE - N
201943 A31H k201843 A31H  #i&EE
FHMER N ROFRIAE - TEREEEERANRER
REHHE -

EHEWRETERDEAE TYRERR - MELQ
FEOBESEABERMREE

M201943A31 0 - BRETAERNADSHE
R2.0B&RT(20184 : 2.7 A& RTT) - FA
ER7.0%  WHHHENTFAEEE20205F
12A31H -

B EBLIH
RTARAER RBEFEARAEBREER
EBURRE (AE) A RA B

Withholding
tax on Unrealised
undistributed fair value
profits of change of
subsidiaries Unrealised Amortisation gold loans
in Mainland profit on and  in Mainland
China inventories  depreciation China Tax losses Others Total
o 3t FEANEES
AR "E2 BEZRER
wRZENB  ARRER  BERFE  AVESD BEESR 2ty @5t
HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HKS$ million ~ HK$ million  HK$ million ~ HKS$ million ~ HK$ million
BEBET BEET HEET BEBET BEET HEET BEBET
At 1 April 2017 R2017F4A1H 270.2 (250.4) (333 (13.0) (16.0) (585 (27.0)
Charge/(credit) to profitor k& /(3t \) 183
loss (note 11) (HizE11) 204.7* 27.2 12.5 20.5 0.7 (34.7) 230.9
Utilised during the year FRER (96.7) - - - - - (96.7)
Currency realignment ERRE 35.6 (13.5) - 0.2) - (1.1 20.8
At 31 March 2018 R201853A31H 413.8 (236.7) (20.8) 73 (15.3) (20.3) 128.0
Charge/(credit) to profitor ~ #1% (Gt \) B3
loss (note 11) (&) 202.2* (51.8) (6.7) (7.1) (1.0) (20.8) 114.8
Utilised during the year FRFA (188.4) - - = - - (188.4)
Currency realignment EERE (27.3) 8.2 - (0.4) - 14 (18.1)
At 31 March 2019 R201943A31H 400.3 (280.3) (27.5) (0.2) (16.3) (39.7) 36.3

Under the EIT Law of PRC, a 10% withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared to

foreign investors in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008

onwards.

Pursuant to approvals from the relevant PRC government obtained by certain
subsidiaries of the Group and reassessment of dividend distribution plan, certain of
these subsidiaries should be entitled to a withholding tax at the rate of 5% for dividend

payments.

* RBPECEMEEE - B2008F1 A1 B - AP EMHE
RERBEEHMRIMEEE SRS - 9RBUK10% 2 8B -

BRAEEETHBARRETEAEBBRNNILEREERED
REtE BETZEMBRAEERAMBEBE5% HMIKMNRS
2B
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246 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REBEMRME

22. Deferred taxation (continued) 22, REBIE @
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for LA B B0 3R 5 A i P e R E B T8 4 5
financial reporting purposes: DHT
2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
BEAERT BEBRT
Deferred tax assets BT IS & (420.1) (293.1)
Deferred tax liabilities BEFHEAE 456.4 4211
36.3 128.0
23. Inventories 23. 58
2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEBT
Raw materials for: HAENTERNEREMR
Gem-set jewellery KB ERE A 5,810.6 5,064.2
Gold products HEEM 1,719.0 1,187.1
Platinum/karat gold products e KEER 391.6 308.4
7,921.2 6,559.7
Finished goods: SR ¢
Gem-set jewellery KB ERE A 15,583.5 13,114.4
Gold products HEEM 11,706.6 10,632.2
Platinum/karat gold products e KEER 2,443.7 2,414.6
Watches F 7. 1,672.2 2,096.7
31,406.0 28,257.9
Packing materials B2k 158.9 111.8
39,486.1 34,929.4

Inventories recognised as cost of sales during the year ended
31 March 2019 amounted to HK$46,723.5 million (2018:

HK$41,579.9 million).

The Group reversed HK$113.5 million of a previous inventory
write-down (2018: write-downs of inventories of HK$207.7
million). These were recognised in cost of goods sold during

the year ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A

BE20195 3 A31 AL FEERBHEKAH
5 7%546,723.6 8 &% (20184 : 41,679.9
BEHBT) -

AEEBOBEEHBNFEINSEERET
(20185 - WRTFE207.7E&EBT) - ZEXK
BEREZ201943A31H &2018463 A31H
I FERBREEKR -
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REMBRERM
24. Trade and Other Receivables 24. B REMEWRIE

2019 2018

HK$ million HK$ million

BEET BHEBT

Trade receivables g5 FuE 3,951.8 3,393.8
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts W EBRYES (68.4) (42.4)
3,883.4 3,351.4

Prepayments to suppliers A FE RS B~ B 357.1 422 4
Deposits e 441.7 652.8
Other tax recoverables Hth mT Uk [0 5 18 1,847.4 1,836.1
Others Hih 109.1 147.3
6,638.7 6,410.0

As at 31 March 2019, trade receivables of HK$53.9 million
(2018: HK$43.6 million) are due from entities in which certain
directors of the Company, who are also shareholders of the
Company, have beneficial interests in those entities.

The Group's sales to retail customers are mainly on cash
basis. Sales to certain customers are on credit with credit
period up to 6 months. For sales through concessionaire
counters, the Group usually allows 30 days credit period to
these receivables.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice dates at the end of the
reporting period:

R20194F3A31H ' B ERKKIESIIBEH
(20185 : 3.6 BEBE L) RARRRETE
E(MRARABRR) ARG S 2 ERE -

AEBHTERTNHEARSRT  MAET
BENHEEMNRETYR - EEHEZ K6
H- iEENHEEM S  AEBE—RUEZFRK
HIALTI0AMEE -

NTRBEEFAMZY REEHRNESE
WERIB RO BR B D AT

2019 2018

HK$ million HK$ million

BEET BEET

0 to 30 days 0&30H 3,128.3 2,759.3
31 to 90 days 31£290H 603.6 405.4
91 to 180 days 91E180H 88.1 170.1
Over 180 days 180 HIA L 63.4 16.6
3,883.4 3,351.4

As at 31 March 2019, included in the trade receivable
balances are receivables of HK$509.1 million (2018:
HK$296.5 million) carrying a fixed interest rate ranging from
6.4% to 8.5% (2018: 6.4% to 8.6%) per annum.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables.

R201943A31H ESEKNHRELERE S
509.1 8 & (20184 : 296.6 5 & /& L) &Y
FEWTRIE - M F6.4% £8.5% (20184 :
6.4% % 8.6%) B [EEF X o

KK E A BR P B HEERE R M A

ERPEEEE  BMAESRKREERAZY
TEHAE IR
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REMBRRWE
24. Trade and Other Receivables (continued) 24. B R HEMBEWRIE @
In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the REEE 5 BUGRIEN ] B 12 E R - R HE
Group monitors change in the credit quality of the trade RERHEEREZEREAEHEE S EKFIERE
receivables since the credit was granted and up to the BEEEMES -
reporting date.
During the year ended 31 March 2019, an allowance for HZE201963A3MBIEFE 27588 E T
doubtful debt of HK$27.5 million (2018: HK$18.3 million) is (20184 : 18.3EEXE L) MR EREEF IR
recognised based on expected credit loss determined by B2EHHRE—FROKBREAEESTmE
reference to past default experience of 1 year of the EMEHREEBEMER - MEANEERRER
counterparty and a forward looking analysis. Details of the A BB IE R EE 34 RIBABEE -
key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in the tables
in note 34.
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts AR AR 2 B8
2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEERT
At 1 April R481H 42.4 21.9
Loss allowance recognised EREREHEEE 275 18.3
Currency realignment B AR (1.5) 2.2
At 31 March MR3A31H 68.4 42 .4
25. Cash and Cash Equivalents 25. RERFEEEEYD
During the year ended 31 March 2019, the bank deposits HZE201943A31AILEFE  RITFHIKLER
carry interest at the prevailing market rate of about 0.01% to MHFEFENF40.01% £5.50% (2018 4F :
5.50% (2018: 0.01% to 5.75%) per annum. NF0.01% E5.75%) 5t 8 °
As at 31 March 2019, the Group's cash and cash equivalents M2019F3 A31H » AEEIZARKES|ERIR
denominated in RMB were HK$1,961.8 million (2018: S RREEEYWAHA1,961.88 BB L(20184F -
HK$5,317.6 million). The RMB is not freely convertible into 5317.6B&%8T) ARBIEUTAIEHLKRA
other currencies, however, under the PRC's Foreign Ha B A - RIERA B A H &) F B IMNEE
Exchange Control Regulations in Mainland China and the BG4 TE - BIERNIEETIERTE - AEEE
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign EBEBRFIIRITETINEEL - BARBRBA
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange HNEE o
RMB for other currencies through authorised banks to
conduct business in foreign currency.
26. Trade and Other Payables 26. ES R HMEFFRIE
2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEET
Trade payables B S ENFIE 574.1 470.6
Contract liabilities aHEaE 1,218.4 867.0
Deposits received from franchisees and ERNEEEP LGk
customers 7.214.0 5,268.2
Other tax payables Efth eI T8 406.3 464.5
Accruals FEErER 436.6 429.6
Accrued staff costs FERT B TR 610.5 562.2
Interest payables FERTFILE 8.0 4.1
Others Hth 216.4 292.4
10,684.3 8,358.6

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEABHRELEB AR AT



26.

27.

Trade and Other Payables (continued)

Deposits received from franchisees and customers mainly
represent deposits made by franchisees in Mainland China
for the consigned products. The amounts are unsecured and
interest-free.

The Group normally receives credit terms of 7 to 180 days
from its suppliers. The following is an aged analysis of trade
payables presented based on the invoice date at the end of
each reporting period:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PBBRME

26. BS R HMEMNRIE @

BiNER kBTN RS T REHE RIS
BEATEERRMINZES - ZFAREIE
ARRE -

AEE-REEHEFRSNEERAN TR
£180ATE - AT AREEZEAHN2INNSR
SHMROE ZRNFIANREDIT :

2019 2018
HKS$ million HKS$ million
BEER BEBT
0 to 30 days 0Z30H 542.0 440.3
31 to 90 days 31&290H 19.2 12.7
91 to 180 days 912180 H 3.8 7.0
Over 180 days 180 B A L 9.1 10.6
574.1 470.6
The Group has recognised the following revenue-related REBECHR T ERAEFXBNARE -
liabilities:
2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEART
Contract liabilities: BHRBE -
Customer loyalty programme REAHEH2 181.0 68.3
Receipts in advance TEWKRIE 1,037.4 798.7
1,218.4 867.0

Contract liabilities in relation to customer loyalty programme
and receipts in advance were previously presented as part of
(i) accruals and (ii) deposits received from franchisees
and customers.

All contracts with customers are with original duration of one
year or less. As permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Amounts Due to Non-controlling
Shareholders of Subsidiaries

The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

B R R R 8 R FRIFRMB N A B E A
E2IAG)EBERN—#8o & (i) B nEE &
BEPBBAREN —FED °

FARFANMRAARA—FHER © RIEH
R RELE 5RO LN HERERSA
SR A NEERX ST ERE -

27. FEfHH B A B IR R RRIE

BRREER RS RIRERA TEE -
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e M RRMIEE
28. Bank Borrowings 28. fRITER
2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
Unsecured bank loans EIKFRITER
The carrying amounts are repayable* BREEZ T 5 HRREE *
Within one year —FR 7,460.0 5,823.0
More than one year, but not exceeding —F P BNBARE
two years 1,998.8 -
More than two years, but not exceeding REL L BTNBARE
five years 597.9 2,100.0
10,056.7 7,923.0
= The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan * BIEAFRIA T A B SR i A Frat st B8 3k B B AR -
agreements.
The bank borrowings carry variable interest rates ranged RITETIRZHEF RSB EHERAEFBIEIT
from 0.6% to 0.9% over Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate REFKENMNF06%ZE0.9% (20184 : FF|
(“"HIBOR") per annum (2018: 0.6% to 0.7% over HIBOR RAEBABRITRAEREM0.6%E0.7%) °
per annum).
As at 31 March 2019, the range of interest rates on the bank MR201963A31H - BARTERNENEN
borrowings were 2.1% to 2.5% (2018: 1.3% to 1.8%) F21%%E2.5%(20184F : 1.3% £1.8%) °
per annum.
The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings are RITEREMEAATEEEE -
denominated in the following currencies:
2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEER
HK$ T 10,056.7 7,923.0
29. Gold Loans 29 EEEE
Gold loans are borrowed to reduce the impact of fluctuations ERESEEENERBERESFEYHESER
in gold prices on gold inventories. The amounts represent WEIH L o R IATIIEHRITE R  MENIE
borrowing from banks and the amounts payable are pegged HESEREE
to gold prices.
2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEET
Financial liabilities at fair value BAFEGTABENERE S
through profit or loss
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BURESEENESEER 3,081.4 1,688.8
Liabilities at fair value through BRAFEFABENEE
profit or loss
Gold loans to be repaid by physical gold BUERSSEENESEER 4,930.1 3,646.6
8,011.5 5,335.4

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEABHRELEB AR AT
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A PBBRME

29. Gold Loans (continued) 29. =2BEB @
As at 31 March 2019, the gold loans carried fixed interest M2019%F3A31H L EERFHNE0.8%
rates of 0.8% to 3.0% (2018: 0.9% to 2.4%) per annum, 2£3.0% (20184F : FFE0.9% ZE2.4%) K E
with original maturity of 1 week to 7 months (2018: 2 to 7 EFEFS - REBRAAREBRIAZ7EA
months) from date of inception. (2018F : 2= 7{@A) »
The fair value of the gold loans are denominated in the HEEEAFERUTEBIE :
following currencies:
2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT AEERT
uss$ = 3,081.4 1,688.8
RMB AR 4,930.1 3,646.6
8,011.5 5,335.4
30. Share Capital 30. g &
2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
ER- Y7 BEER
Authorised: SETE
50,000,000,000 ordinary shares 50,000,000,000 f% &% E &
of HK$1 each 18Tz EEk 50,000.0 50,000.0
Issued and fully paid: BEITRART
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares 10,000,000,000 J& &% E1E
of HK$1 each 1B T2 LBk 10,000.0 10,000.0

31.

There was no change in the Company's authorised, issued
and fully paid capital in both years.

MEFEER - RAFZEE - BETRBEHRA
PR o

Operating Lease Commitments 31. HEHERE
g
The Group as lessee AREEAEEA
At the end of each reporting period, the Group was REREHAR  AEBEAES BB AT HEN
committed to make the following future minimum lease 4 T E R T 51 B ERRE /R R R AR & T K
payments which represent lease payments of its rented (REAAYENES) A :
premises, under non-cancellable operating leases which fall
due as follows:
2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEBT
Within one year —FER 1,246.5 1,177.6
In the second to fifth year inclusive FIEERF (BREEREMTF) 1,174.2 1,248.0
Over five years RAFLAE 320.4 376.6
2,7411 2,802.2
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e SRR MR

31.

Operating Lease Commitments (continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Included in above are commitments to entities in which

31.

HLEHERE®
XEEEBERBEAN @
AN ARARRETESE* REENE

certain directors* of the Company and their close family A ERERN TR Y RIE
member have beneficial interests:
2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEERT
Within one year —FER 125.8 156.3
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_EZERF(BEEERF) 132.1 207.1
Over five years RAFLAE 287.5 320.3
545.4 683.7
*  The directors also have beneficial interests in the Company. *  BENREERDRNERSER -

There are certain lease arrangements for rented premises,
according to which the Group is committed to pay minimum
guaranteed amounts and additional monthly payments
determined based on monthly sales levels.

There are concessionaire arrangements for concessionaire
stores according to which the Group is committed to pay
either minimum guaranteed amounts or concessionaire fees
that are based on prescribed rates of corresponding sales
depending on product categories, whichever is higher. The
minimum guaranteed amounts are not material and the
concessionaire fees paid during the year were all determined
based on sales level.

Majority of leases with fixed rentals and concessionaire
arrangement are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 3 years.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$14.4
million (2018: HK$12.5 million). All of the Group's investment
properties are held for rental purposes. All of the properties
held have committed tenants for the next 1 to 3 years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

RIBETABDENEERY NEBAGEX
REEREBLRESAHEKFEENEAR
SMER

FEBERFEREFELE - B - AEEAG
BYERBRZEACHEHEE L BAD X N&
BERESHEBOK (ARSE/E) - HEER
SRYTEKR  AFEXNNZHMEEIKTIR
RIHEKRFEE -

ABHBOREEL I DEEERET - AH—
FE=FNHSTE -

FREEBHBAA
RERNBRBzNERSRARIGABEET
(20184 : 125 EBAET) - REBAHAREY
EOREHRE - A Z2PMERRKIES
FHBEAREEZES -

REE R - ANEE PRI AR R HKIE
HE 7O :

2019 2018

HK$ million HK$ million

ER- Y7 BEET

Within one year —FR 125 9.6
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EZFRF(BEEENT) 24.9 -
374 9.6

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEABHRELEB AR AT



32.

33.

34.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IS IRRMIEE
Capital Commitments 32. EXKIE
2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
HEBT HEBT
Capital expenditure contracted but not U - BE RBECFTOER
provided for in respect of the acquisition BHERNE AR
of property, plant and equipment 218.3 262.0

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group
entities will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank
borrowings, gold loans and equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company, comprising share capital,
reserves and retained profits as disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
regularly. The Group considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital, and will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the raising of bank borrowings
and gold loans.

Financial Instruments

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods
adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of
measurement and the basis on which income and expenses
are recognised, in respect of each class of financial assets
and financial liabilities are disclosed in note 3.

33.

34.

EXEBEE
AEBERERSERREERBASECH
37 3 5 L 2 5 P T 7 MR SRR B
EPNCEE

FEENERAEBBERTENR  E2EENK
NEBRREEBRE(BREFEEMBRRABEZ
A~ B RRERR) o

AEEEREETHRRTEARE - AKEEEE
BARAREREABENRR - TE BRI
B BIOHE  SERTEFAESERFER
SEEBEARSE -

SRTIH
EEFIRMEENSRABERRNARAERS
SABEREITENFE(BEERARE  FEEE
VA RERR U B Bl Se 528 ) AT SE B4R ER -
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REBEMRME

34. Financial Instruments (continued)

Categories of financial instruments

34. £ TH@

ST RE

Financial assets/

Financial assets/

(liabilities) at (liabilities) at
amortised cost fair value Total
EREAAHEN  RATENEN
SRMEE/ (AE) LREE/ (BE) @5t
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET BEET
As 31 March 2019 A2019%F3A31H
Assets as per balance sheet REERBRNEE
Financial assets at fair value BRATEFABENESREE
through profit and loss - 11.2 11.2
Amounts due from associates FE UK HSE 5 X B IR 54.7 - 54.7
Loans receivables EWER 31.0 - 31.0
Trade and other receivables B 5 I H b fE Y 518 3,992.5 - 3,992.5
Cash and cash equivalents Re KRS EEY 7,640.6 - 7,640.6
Total financial assets CREEAE 11,718.8 11.2 11,730.0
Liabilities as per balance sheet REERBERNARE
Trade and other payables B 5 R H b e 518 798.5 - 798.5
Amounts due to non-controlling ANEENGIE 22 L &S
shareholders of subsidiaries 136.7 - 136.7
Bank borrowings RITER 10,056.7 - 10,056.7
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BURSEENESHEE - 3,081.4 3,081.4
Total financial liabilities cReERE 10,991.9 3,081.4 14,073.3
Financial assets/ Financial assets/
(liabilities) at (liabilities) at
amortised cost fair value Total
REBHRATEN BRATFETEN
SRMEE/ (AE) SEMEE/ (AF) @5t
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEART HEAT BEART
As 31 March 2018 A2018%F3 A31H
Assets as per balance sheet REERBRNEE
Amounts due from associates NG F O 62.2 = 62.2
Loans receivables EKER 55.3 = 55.3
Trade and other receivables Z 5 Kk E b U EIE 3,483.6 = 3,483.6
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBE2EED 7,944.0 = 7,944.0
Total financial assets CREERE 11,545.1 - 11,545.1
Liabilities as per balance sheet REEABRNEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R H b e 5/IE 767.1 = 767.1
Amounts due to non-controlling JE AT BT B8 1% B2 AR AR 3R R E =
shareholders of subsidiaries 100.5 100.5
Bank borrowings RITER 7,923.0 = 7,923.0
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BABRSEENESEE - 1,688.8 1,688.8
Total financial liabilities SRBERE 8,790.6 1,688.8 10,479.4

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A



34. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group's major financial instruments include financial
assets at FVPL, amounts due from associates, trade and
other receivables, loan receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other payables, amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, bank borrowings and
gold loans to be repaid by cash. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market
risk (interest rate risk, currency risk and commodity price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate loan receivables, certain trade receivables and
gold loans. The Group currently does not have any
instruments to hedge against the fair value interest rate risk.

Also, the Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
through the impact of rate changes on interest bearing
financial assets and liabilities, mainly certain bank balances
and bank borrowings at variable interest rates. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management will consider hedging significant
interest rate risk should the need arise.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the cash flow
interest rate risk is considered insignificant and therefore no
sensitivity analysis is presented.

34.
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34. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk

Certain group entities have sales and purchases which are
denominated in currency other than their respective
functional currencies, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the foreign currency risk is insignificant considering the
related sales and purchases to the total sales and purchases
of the Group. The majority of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary items are cash and cash equivalents
denominated in RMB, which are held by Group entities
whose functional currencies are not RMB, with carrying
amounts of HK$838.2 million (2018: HK$642.3 million). In
addition, certain group entities whose functional currency is
HK$, have intra-group advances to their subsidiaries,
denominated in RMB.

The Group mainly exposes to currency of United States
dollars (“US$"”) and RMB, which are arising from relevant
group entities’ foreign currency denominated monetary
assets and liabilities for the Group’s operating activities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy to eliminate the currency exposures.
However, the management monitors the related foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposures should the need arise.
As at 31 March 2019, if the exchange rate of RMB had been
2% appreciated or depreciated against HK$, the Group's
profit after taxation for the year would increase or decrease
by HK$82.3 million (2018: HK$93.4 million) and the Group's
exchange reserve would increase or decrease by HK$351.8
million (2018: HK$367.9 million) for the year.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the currency
risk of US$ is considered insignificant.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A
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34. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Commodity price risk

The Group is engaged in the sales of jewellery including gold
products. The gold market is influenced by global as well as
regional supply and demand conditions. A significant decline
in prices of gold could adversely affect the Group's financial
performance. In order to reduce the commaodity price risk,
the Group uses gold loans to reduce its exposure to
fluctuations in the gold price on gold inventory. Gold loans
are settled at maturity which is usually in 1 week to 7 months
(2018: 2 to 7 months) from date of inception and any fair
value change is immediately recognised in profit or loss.

As at 31 March 2019, if the market price of gold had been
higher or lower by 10%, the potential effect on gold loans
and the resulting impact on profit after taxation for the year
would decrease or increase approximately by HK$750.3
million (2018: HK$505.7 million). Part of the effect will be
offset with future sales in gold products.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations at the
end of the reporting period in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts.

The Group has four types of financial assets that are subject
to the expected credit loss model:

e trade receivable for sales of inventory and from the
provision of service;

e other receivables;

e amounts due form associates; and

® |oan receivables
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34. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of
sales over a period of 12 month before 31 March 2019 or 1
April 2018 respectively and the corresponding historical
credit losses experienced within this period. The historical
loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables. The Group has
identified the GDP and the unemployment rate of the
countries in which it sells its goods and services to be the
most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical
loss rates based on expected changes in these factors.

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 March 2019 and 1
April 2018 (on adoption of IFRS 9) was determined as follows
for trade receivables:

34.

SRMTHR@W
SRiEIGEEBERBEK @)

EERME @

85 BWE

65 B R R B B B 5 S S R RSB 9 5 2 B T 0R
AERMEREBR  RRAGERERSTFENE
HERBERNAEE SR KGR -

R ERHAERER  BZRUKACRERE
EERREHALEMBBETOE -

BHIEEXTIRIED B N2019F3A31 R %
201844 A1 B 2 5112 18 7 5 #9 85 & &9 4 3%
DT EHAKENEEELERERE - B
BREEFABRARREERT P ENBEFRR
N EBRERZ BRI LATEEEN - REED
HEEHEERMREAERRNBEARLERE
RAREXRHEABNER  ARBREZERERN
RS ARBERBEE -

At - R2019F3 A31 8 %201844 A1 8 (%
MBI S R RSB 9 5% ) M & 5 fE W K IE S
BEENT

Aging analysis
RO
0 to 30 days 31 to 90 days 91 to 180 days Over 180 days Total
0Z30R 31%90A 91Z180A #iB180 A @t
HKS$ million HKS$ million HK$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million
BEET BEET BEET HEET HEET
As of 31 March 2019 R2019%3A310
Expected loss rate REEEX 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 51.9%
Gross carrying amount FEaE 3,1283 603.6 88.1 131.8 3,951.8
Impairment provision AR - - - 68.4 68.4
At 1 April 2018 R2018%4 8 1A
Expected loss rate BHEEX 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 71.9%
Gross carrying amount RHEAE 2,759.3 405.4 170.1 59.0 3,393.8
Impairment provision AR = = = 424 424

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others,
the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with
the Group.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as net
impairment losses within operating profit. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.
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34. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Debt investments

All of the entity’s debt investments at amortised cost are
considered to have low credit risk, and the loss allowance
recognised during the period was therefore limited to 12
months expected losses unless significant increase in credit
risk. Debt instruments are considered to be low credit risk
when they have a low risk of default and the counterparty
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in
trade and loan receivables, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties.

The credit risk on bank balances is minimal as such amounts
are placed in banks with good reputation.

Previous accounting policy for impairment of
trade receivables

In the prior year, the impairment of trade receivables was
assessed based on the incurred loss model. Individual
receivables which were known to be uncollectible were
written off by reducing the carrying amount directly. The
other receivables were assessed collectively to determine
whether there was objective evidence that an impairment
had been incurred but not yet been identified. For these
receivables the estimated impairment losses were
recognised in a separate provision for impairment. The Group
considered that there was evidence of impairment if any of
the following indicators were present:

e significant financial difficulties of the debtor

e probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and

e default or late payments.
Receivables for which an impairment provision was

recognised were written off against the provision when there
was no expectation of recovering additional cash.
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34. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The management of the Group has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of
the Group's short and medium-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk
by maintaining banking facilities and by continuously
monitoring forecasted and actual cash flows and the maturity
profiles of its financial liabilities.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up to reflect the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

34.

SRMTHR@W
SRIEIGEEEERBEK @)

e E 2 R %
AEEEEEEALNSENEHRTHES AR
RBECEEREEYBAENRBESRAKER
HEZR - $'§@Zﬁiﬁfﬁﬁfﬁf‘mﬂé%&%ﬁ;%%&ﬁ
BARERREeRERAEEREBELIEHER
BERBESRR -

TRAEAEEZEREBEHRTEOIHA 2
& ZRBBBEAEEATRERNERAE
RFAHRE  URRESBEEZRBRESR
B - ZRBEENEEEASHERE -

Weighted On demand or Total
average less than 3 months to undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1 year 1to 5 years cash flows amount
RERKH AERBS
T GR = AR 3EAE1E 1855 REAE REE
% HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million
BEER BEER BEER BEER BEER
Financial liabilities SRAE
At 31 March 2019 7201943 A31H
Trade and other payables BHREMENZIB - 798.5 - - 7985 7985
Amounts due to non-controlling J?E B A IR
shareholders of subsidiaries R I - 136.7 - - 136.7 136.7
Bank borrowings PITER 2.3% 7,468.9 - 2,700.6 10,169.5 10,056.7
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BB EENELEE 0.9% 3,084.2 - - 3,084.2 3,081.4
11,488.3 - 2,700.6 14,188.9 14,073.3
Financial liabilities SRAE
At 31 March 2018 R2018%F3A31H
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMFIE = 767.1 - - 767.1 767.1
Amounts due to non-controlling F& P B A FIFEZER
shareholders of subsidiaries B ZUA - 1005 - - 100.5 100.5
Bank borrowings RITER 1.6% 5,827.1 - 2,195.7 8,022.8 7,923.0
Gold loans to be repaid by cash BUBEEEENELEE 0.9% 1,690.4 - - 1,690.4 1,688.8
8,385.1 - 2,195.7 10,580.8 10,479.4
Notes: BsE -
(i) The amounts included in above for variable rate bank borrowings are subject to () MEREHRNZENRBHERNREETHNRMGET - L5FE

change if changes in variable interest rates differ from those estimates of interest
rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

(ii) The amounts of gold loans are determined with reference to quoted market bid price
of gold traded in active liquid markets.
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35. Fair Value Measurements

(i)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fair value hierarchy (i)
The following table presents the fair value of the

Group's financial instruments measured at the end of

the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised

into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in

IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which

a fair value measurement is classified is determined

with reference to the observability and significance of

the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

e |evel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e |evel 3inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

A PBBRME

ATEIE

AFEER
TRINTTAEENSH T AREELEE
ERBERRFENQTFE  WATFED
?Ell"%ﬁﬂ‘“iﬁiﬁﬁ”%13%}%("$fﬁﬁil

AEN=EARFEBRNE - X FEF
EE’JJﬁ’i& ‘*Ex%i&“%%TEIHETE&ﬁEEPﬁ
AHBAEHNABEEEREZERE
FEH

s F—MBWARBENERNFTERANGRE
MG ARGHERNEER A B R
BRE

o FMBMABIBINE R ZMEN A
REEERIMEEREEXBEMRSH
ZRABE &

o F=RBMABRBIUIABRERREE
X B BERTSH 2 BAZIR

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-% E_R E=R #at
Notes HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
Pyt HEET HEERT HEBT HEBT
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3HA31H
Asset BE
Financial assets at fair BATEGF A BERNSREE
value through profit
or loss - - 11.2 11.2
Liability i=F
Gold loans to be repaid BB S EENZLEE
by cash 29 - 3,081.4 - 3,081.4
Gold loans to be repaid ~ BUBBRELEENELEE
by physical gold 29 - 4,930.1 - 4,930.1
At 31 March 2018 R2018%F3HA31H
Liability i=F
Gold loans to be repaid BLIURSEBNESEES
by cash 29 - 1,688.8 - 1,688.8
Gold loans to be repaid ~ HUBERESEENEEEE
by physical gold 29 - 3,646.6 - 3,646.6

During the year ended 31 March 2019, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2018: nil).

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end
of the reporting period.

BHZE2019F3A3IBIEFE  E—H Kk
FERzBEAREER 1R EEARE
HE=RNBER(20184F : &) o

AEENBRERREPBRERRFEE
Hz EH AR, o
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35. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Valuation techniques used to determined
level 2 fair values

The fair value of gold loans is determined using
discounted cash flow valuation technique reference to
quoted market bid price of gold traded in active liquid
markets as a key input.

Fair value measurement using significant
unobservable input (Level 3)

The following table presents the changes in level 3
items for the periods ended 31 March 2019 and 31
March 2018 for fair value measurements:

35. AEEFE@W

(ii)

(iii)

REEERE R FEOEEKD

BE2BEZATENBMBRARSRMEEE
EY AEh2RESRBMSEEZESD
MEEAREREREHARE -

ERAEXFURSBARBZAF
EtE(B=4)

TEBIIAEATET BHEE 201943
HA31 B %2018 3 A31 B ILHEE=H
HE 2 :

2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
ER-¥: 7 BEET
Unlisted equity securities I E kiR

At 1 April R4R81H - -
Acquisitions/transfer Wk, EA 11.2 -

Net unrealised gains or losses recognised Hi AR5 FER M) A B30 U2
in profit or loss during the period Sk ES 18 H 5 - -
At 31 March M3 A31H 11.2 -

The fair value of financial assets that are grouped under
level 3 is determined using valuation technique
including discounted cash flow analysis. In determining
fair value, specific valuation technique are used with
reference to inputs such as profit forecast, dividend
stream and other specific input relevant to those
particular financial assets.

Financial instruments that are not
measured at fair value

The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.
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Financing Activities

36. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PBBRME

36. MEAGBELMRBRHER

TRAVAEERETHAEENEERY K
TEEReNIFREEY BEFDELNEE

FERSRBER(IARARESRESE)RA

those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be SEMEEHReRERYEARMEETHMERE
classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash mEZAME-
flows from financing activities.
Dividends Interest
Amounts payable payables
due to non- (included (included
controlling in trade in trade
Bank shareholders and other and other
borrowings Gold loans of subsidiaries payables) payables) Total
ERRE EMFE
EAHEAR (FtAES (;tAE5
FER Rt REf
BITER HeEE RRHE EARER) EFKER) @t
Note 28 Note 29 Note 27 Note 26 Note 26
fizt28 Kzt 29 Htzx27 ftzt26 ft=t26
HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HK$ Million HK$ million
HEHBT HEHBT BEHBT BEHBT HEBT HEBT
At 1 April 2017 R2017F4A18 6,792.5 3,215.9 89.9 - 5.0 10,103.3
Financing cash flows BERETE 1,101.8 1,805.3 0.9 (4,260.3) (244.6) (1,596.9)
Interest expenses FERX - - - - 243.7 2437
Foreign exchange translation  4ME#E 28.7 278.9 9.7 - - 317.3
Dividends declared TR E - - - 4,260.3 - 4,260.3
Fair value loss of gold loans =4 EEATEER - 35.3 - - - 35.3
At 31 March 2018 ®2018F3A31H 7,923.0 5,335.4 100.5 - 4.1 13,363.0
Financing cash flows BERERE 2,133.4 (2,939.8) 43.0 (6,080.6) (366.1) (7,210.1)
Interest expenses FERX - - - - 370.3 370.3
Foreign exchange translation ~ §MNE#RE - (246.7) (6.8) - - (253.5)
Dividends declared TR E - - - 6,080.6 - 6,080.6
Fair value loss of gold loans =4 EEAFEER - 117.2 - - - 117.2
Non-cash movements FREE 0.3 5,745.4 - - (0.3) 5,745.4
At 31 March 2019 201963 A31H 10,056.7 8,011.5 136.7 - 8.0 18,212.9
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37. Retirement Benefit Obligations

Defined contribution scheme

The Group participates in defined contribution schemes
which are registered under the Hong Kong Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme")
established under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of independent trustees. Employees who were
members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of
the MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the
ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas
all new employees joining the Group on or after 1 December
2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit cost charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
represents contributions payable to the funds by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. Where there
are employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5%
of relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which contribution
is matched by the employee. The maximum monthly amount of
contribution is limited to HK$1,500 per employee.

The eligible employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in
Mainland China and Macau are members of pension
schemes operated by local government of Mainland China
and the Macau government, respectively. The subsidiaries in
Mainland China are required to contribute a certain
percentage of the relevant cost of the payroll of these
employees to the pension schemes to fund the benefits. The
subsidiary in Macau is required to pay a monthly fixed
contribution to the retirement benefits schemes to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit schemes is to make the required
contribution under the schemes.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A

37.

B REmFRE

TR ERETE

AEE D2 EREE B ER R EGG A
*ﬁ#ﬁ#%GM%L%+ﬂMWﬁ%)&%
2000 4F 12 A B IE B 7 58 il 1 A T8 € 1651 5K 2 8
SRHIER F%EJri\J(f?ﬁF%EJr?IJ) o ZEHEIE
ERAEENEESFRE BB ITALS
MESFEA - LK BESTEE Mg
RIRETEIEOIGHEIMEE B REEA R B ER
RerBliEplztElsk 2 HRBESE MATAR
200012 A1 B2 EMAREE &S 8
BLMBFES TS -

B #7618 a8 N EL A 2 1o W ol 2% H1 B A AR IR AR R

REREEIZTERNEEN L RN TESH
K - R BN 2R B AR b B R R ARG
SEOIEHE - REBEMNHRE R IZKER
HIRL ©

MEBETENKEMS  AEEERBES
ZIBLAEE T E K AVES% K - %%\ﬂﬁﬁﬁ
MEFE—S - BARRNEREEAEBMES
1,500 7T °

ARERE A FRFMNBEARNEERERSD
B A B A E IR T SORPIEUT 2 & f RN
RIS - REAMHE A RRREHESEH
TERANE T A LR ARES R - B
B~ R RIZE T A AR KR T AT 8 S R E R 4
Ko AERBFIHEK - AR EABRKERNE SR
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37. Retirement Benefit Obligations (continued)

Defined benefit scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Company provide defined pension
benefits to the employees, who joined to these subsidiaries
before 1995. The amount payable is dependent on the
employees’ final salary and years of services. The Group
does not set aside any assets to fund such obligations.

Under the scheme, the employees are entitled to a pension
between 25% and 40% of final salary for each year of
pensionable service at an age of 65. No other post-retirement
benefits are provided. The most recent actuarial valuations of
the present value of the defined benefit obligations were
carried out in March 2019 by Roma Appraisals Limited
("Roma"), an independent qualified professional valuer, using
the projected unit credit method. The principal place of
business of Roma is 22/F, China Overseas Building, 193
Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The assumptions
which have the most significant effect on the results of the
valuation are discount rate, retirement age, turnover rate,
mortality rate and the rate of increase in salaries.

The main actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

37.
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A PBBRME

BARBERRE @
EEEMTE

ARATHETHER T M 1995 4 A/ 10 A 5% F Kt
BRARMESRETHERKES®EA - B FRIBE
RN EEZRENFEIREFH AEFTER
FEMEENSNE EAE

o

Rigzsd EERFESRSRSFRHEA
ERARENRBEN FREFE25% E40% F
BERKRE - AEBEYEEHEMERRER - &
MH)E R R AN AEREEEBETIN 201953
HEBYRERBEXMHEMEFTERFGARA
(&S DRAEA BN ERDEET - BFNE
ELEMBREREFHEFE 1935 F B
RE2218 - HEEARKAZENRRDUR
B ORRER  BAEE  RTERHFLHTE -

FRfEAMEZRBERRNOT :

2019 2018

HK$ million HK$ million

BEER BEET

Discount rate AL IR = 1.4% 1.9%
Expected rate of salary increase FEHR S £ 18 Nty X 3.0% 3.0%
Turnover rate EE R 0.0% 0.0%

Amounts recognised in comprehensive income in respect of
the defined benefit scheme are as follows:

FhERERAET N 2 HURE R A IR T -

2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
HEBT HEBT
Current service cost IR B AR 75 Ak AN 3.9 3.7
Interest on obligation AEHFER 3.3 4.7
Components of defined benefits RIB = TR E AR ZH
recognised in profit or loss 7.2 8.4
Remeasurement on defined benefit REMEE KRS RERA TR
scheme recognised in other BAGTEIEREE -
comprehensive income:
Actuarial loss arising from changes SRR FTELNBEER
in financial assumptions 7.5 5.4
Total Rk 14.7 13.8
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e SRR MR
37. Retirement Benefit Obligations (continued) 37. BREFREE
Defined benefit scheme (Continued) EEEAEE
The current service costs and interest on obligation for the HZE2019F3A31HK2018F3 31 HILFE
years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 are included in “selling A IR B AR 7S A AR B R IR B FI) B3R % B M (B B B4t
and distribution costs” and “general and administrative STATHE R SR A R — RITHAX IE -
expenses” depending on the respective employee’s function.
The remeasurement of the defined benefit scheme for the HZ=E2019F3A31HK&2018F3 A31 HILFE
years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 is included in other WERBAEIEF 2 AR MEEKE -
comprehensive income.
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit EFENAEREZHNOT :
obligations are as follows:
2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEER
At 1 April R4/818 232.2 226.6
Service costs ARFS A A 3.9 3.7
Interest costs F B AN 33 4.7
Actuarial loss BEER 75 5.4
Benefits paid =5-Eegirl (8.1) (8.2)
At 31 March M3A31H 238.8 232.2
38. Share Option Scheme 38. EERRHERTEl

Pursuant to a resolution which were passed on 17 November
2011, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme") for the purpose of attracting skilled
and experienced personnel, to incentivise them to remain
with the Group and to motivate them to strive for the future
development and expansion of the Group by providing them
with the opportunity to acquire equity interests in the
Company. Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors of
the Company may grant options to directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors), the directors of the subsidiaries and
the employees of the Group and any other persons (including
consultants or advisers) who the directors of the Company
consider, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group (the “Participants”).

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEABHRELEB AR AT

BER2011F11 17 BRBHAREER - AR T
s B ([T E)) - BEmiBieat
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38. Share Option Scheme (continued)

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing on 17 November 2011. An
offer of the grant of an option shall be made to a Participant
by a notice of grant requiring the Participant to undertake to
hold the option on the terms on which it is to be granted
(which may include a minimum period for which the option
must be held before it can be exercised and a performance
target that must be reached before the option can be
exercised in whole or in part) and to be bound by the terms
of the Share Option Scheme. An offer of the grant of an
option is deemed to be accepted by the Participant (the
“Grantee”) when the Company receives from the Grantee
the duplicate notice of grant duly signed by the Grantee. An
offer may be accepted or deemed to have been accepted in
respect of less than the number of shares in respect of
which it is offered, provided that it is accepted in respect of a
board lot or an integral multiple thereof. No amount is
payable by the Grantee upon acceptance of an offer of an
option. The offer shall remain open for acceptance for such
time to be determined by the directors of the Company,
provided that no such offer shall be open for acceptance
after the expiry of the Share Option Scheme or after the
termination of the Share Option Scheme in accordance with
its terms or after the Participant to whom the offer is made
has ceased to be a Participant. To the extent that the offer is
not accepted within the time period and in the manner
specified in the offer, the offer will be deemed to have been
irrevocably declined.

The exercise price shall be determined by the directors of
the Company, and shall not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant;
(ii) the average closing price of the shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company's share on the date of grant.

During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, no share
options were granted by the Company nor were there any
share options of the Company outstanding.

The Company issued to the directors and certain employees
share appreciation rights (the “SARs"”) that the Company
would pay the intrinsic value of the SARs in cash to the
directors and certain employees as part of the discretionary
bonus. The Group recorded a total expense of HK$52.7
million during the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018:
HK$31.1 million).
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A PBBRME

BB HEET 8l )
BRETSMNEXREAI1I0F - B2011F 118
178G - REBRENZHEANRLBAN
FRALEEED - BRSEEAHRTHIER
BEERE(JEeETEERENZEFER
B REIPREHITEBRERNAETNKRE B
Z) W BNERAR - AR AR
KARATAZESOELBASA - AR DER
ENEHNESHRRAEE2EE ([ABADER -
ARATREERABEBEMANEL - FTH KA
DHEARFMEZENENMSRERD - HATE
MNELE—FEEEMRHEBHREH] - ABEAE
MERBEZNRGEANERNE - BEZHRN
AAREEETHHEA—EHERN  EREBE
R AR 51 21 HA PR v =k S AR T B AR 4R EL IR R 1
BREELBLONLEETFAL2EEE - AR
BAMEER - WEHNERARIREOFMIERS
NER  BRAETAREMEEFEELY -

TEEABARAEREE @ WA FERNTER
2E ()R AHARB RO TIE ; (i) B
RE B A ERS B RO FHKRTE  Rii)
B A AR R EEE

HZE2019F3A31H K2018F3A31HILFE -
AN R AR ] B ARAE - IR M R T
HIREA#E -

AARREERE TIREHTRGEGERE (K
DEERE]) ARFEUREAEERETES
SR IGEREORNEREE  EARIBELH—
Efn o BE2019F3A31BILEE » AEEK
JSEMAY A2 7TEEAIT(2018F :31.1HE
BIL) °
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A MBBRME

39. Related Party Transactions

(i)

(ii)

Other than the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had entered into the following related party

39. FBEF X5

(i)

transactions during the year:

REAMBRENE BT HEHI SR

5N REEERF R T IR
25

2019 2018
Relationship Nature of transactions HK$ million HK$ million
B& xHMHE HEBET HEBT
Entities in which certain Advertising expenses 5.4 6.6
directors* of the Company E& RIS
have beneficial interests Concessionaire fees in department stores 78.2 74.1
RARETEE " HEER BEAREBDK
B Rental expenses 165.1 176.4
HeMxZ
Purchase of goods and coupons and - 0.1
commission expenses
BERREEFURASHAY
Non-controlling shareholders  Concessionaire fees in department stores 5.9 6.5
of subsidiaries BERAIEEDK
(I)EEPNGIE S i S Franchise sales 8.9 23.7
INERSHE
Entities in which a close Engineering services fee 4.2 9.5
family member of certain TRERBEE
directors* of the Company  Rental expenses 24.8 24.8
has control e
AARIETEE*RILHEZRE Purchase of equipment 37.7 3.9
X BRI E BERE
Marking fee 58.2 56.0
ZLER

* The directors also have beneficial interests in the Company.

Apart from the aforementioned transactions, no other
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts to
which the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company had, directly or indirectly, a material
interest at any time during the year.

Remuneration paid for key management personnel
includes the directors and the chief executives of the
Company as disclosed in note 10.

The remuneration of the directors and the chief
executives of the Company is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEABHRELEB AR AT

* EBENHEARARMERMES -

Br Bt 32 o0 - ARR R A FE A E A
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40. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of

the reporting period are set out below:

Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and fully paid

share capital/registered

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A PBBRME

40. KA X EME AT
THRRERE AR R A BN BA T HE -

Proportion of
ownership interest held

Name of subsidiaries establishment capital/quota capital by the Company Principal activities
AR R  CRTRESRRAES ARRFHEEEE
il PGk kAH HfER REER LA TEEH
2019 2018
Highrise Achiever Limited* BVI Share 100% 100% Investment holding
BRERAR 20 June 2011 US$1 BEER
RERBARES &2
201146 A20H 1%L
Bentley Trading Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Trading of diamond
BHEBESHERRA 10 January 2008 HK$10,000 BREE
B LRRA
200841 A 108 10,0003 7T
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products
Company Limited 6 March 1961 HK$350,000,000 KEEMAE
BARURELITAERAR 5 L@
196143 A6H 350,000,000 7T
CTF Diamond Trading Company Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Procurement of diamond
Limited 19 September 2003 HK$100 EARE
AEERESERAR Bk EARA
200349 A 19H 100%7T
CTF Watch (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Sales of watches
ERTEER (BE) BRAF 7 February 2011 HK$1 BERIHE
20114%2A78 17587
Techni Development Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Procurement of gemstones,
Investment Limited 26 May 2005 HK$5,000,000 sales of jewellery
ENERIEEERAA 5 LRRA products and investment
200545 A 26 H 5,000,000 7T holding
KEER KEEMm
HEURIREER
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery and Watch Macau Quota capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products
Company (Macau) Limited 17 March 2009 MOP5,000,000 KEERNE
BARRKEEECRF) ERAA A IR
200943 A 17H 5,000,000 27T
Hearts On Fire The United States Capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products
of America US$74,468,737 KREERHEE
14 May 2001 AR
x5 74,468,737 % T
200145 A 14 H
Beijing Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products
Company Limited 13 November 2006  US$30,000,000 and provision of services
I REAREHRESITARAR FEN FHMER to franchisees
2006411 8138 30,000,000% T REEmIHE RIRH
MR T InEEmE
Chongging Chow Tai Fook Watch PRC~ Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of watches
Marketing Company Limited 25 December 2008 RMB10,000,000 BERHE
EEARRERHEEBRAA FE- HfER
2008412 A25H AR#10,000,0007T

Annual Report 2019 4

269



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REBEMRME

270

40. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company 40. AT EEMBAT @

(Continued)

Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and fully paid

share capital/registered

Proportion of
ownership interest held

Name of subsidiaries establishment capital/quota capital by the Company Principal activities
HMRY R CRTRARERES EAR L HEERE
ol PGk kB EMER BREER LA TEEH
2019 2018
Chongging Flamingo Watches PRC- Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of watches
Company Limited 25 December 2008 RMB1,000,000 BIRIHE
EEEHRERAERAA - AR
2008412 A25H AR#1,000,0007T
Chongging Meida Watch PRC~ Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products
Company Limited 21 May 2013 RMB1,000,000 KREERHEE
ERFEERERANA - HMER
201345 H21H AR#1,000,0007T
Chongaing Xinhuang Watch PRC* Registered capital 51% 51% Sales of watches
Company Limited 2 August 2013 RMB10,000,000 BERIHE
ERNEEERERAA HE ailiF=EN
201348AH2H AR#10,000,0007C
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products
(Chongging) Company Limited 23 December 2008 US$30,000,000 and provision of services
AARARE 21T (EE)ERAA e HMER to franchisees
2008412 A23H 30,000,000 % 7T KEEMEER
RELARTS T R
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Shenyang) PRC- Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products
Company Limited 2 January 2014 RMB20,000,000 and provision of services
BAREHREL1T(BR)BRAR - FMER to franchisees
201441424 AR#20,000,0007TC HEBEEMHER
TRGLRTS T INEAm
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Shenzhen) PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacturing and sales of
Company Limited 2 April 2002 US$100,000,000 jewellery products
BRRHRE 2T ORI BRAF " Ballig-wN FEEMEERHE
200264 A2H 100,000,000 %7T
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Suzhou) PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products
Company Limited 11 January 2006 US$30,000,000 and provision of services
BAREHRELTEMN)ERAF HE" FHER to franchisees
20061 A11H 30,000,000% T HEEMHER
RAUPRS T IR
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Wuhan) PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products
Company Limited 29 January 2008 US$30,000,000 and provision of services
ARBHRE 2T (RE)ERAHE hE" & AR to franchisees
200841 A29H 30,000,000t KEEMHER
RURH T IR
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Culture PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacturing of jewellery
Industrial Park (Wuhan) 16 August 2012 US$140,000,000 products
Company Limited e AR KREEMEE
BARURELEEE (RE) 201248 A 16 H 140,000,000 % T

BEAF

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEABHRELEB AR AT
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40. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company

Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and fully paid
share capital/registered

40.
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AATEEHMBAS @

Proportion of
ownership interest held

Name of subsidiaries establishment capital/quota capital by the Company Principal activities
HMRY R CRTRARERES EARFHEEEE
ol PGk kAH EMER BREER LA TEEH
2019 2018
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC- Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products
Zhangjiagang Baoshui 21 April 2010 RMB65,723,500 KEEMEE
Company Limited AR - FMER
BAREHRESITRFBRE 20104 A21H AR#65,723,5007C
BRAR
Foshan Shunde Yuda Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacturing of jewellery
Manufacturing Company Limited 14 March 2007 US$10,639,400 products
BT IRE R E RS B e FE" Balig-wN KEEMEE
BRAR 200743 A14H 10,639,400% 7T
Foshan Yushunfu Jewellery and PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacturing of jewellery
Diamond Company Limited 9 November 1988 US$18,000,000 products
BRI EHEABRAR FE" BB KEEMEE
1988411 A9H 18,000,000 % 7T
Guangdong Chow Tai Fook Jewellery ~ PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products
Company Limited 10 December 2007 US$30,000,000 and provision of services
BEREAAGHESITARARA hE" FHER to franchisees
20074128108 30,000,000% T HBEEMHER
R T INERE
Guangdong Shunde Chow Tai PRC~ Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacturing of jewellery
Fook Jewellery Manufacturing 30 July 2014 RMB60,000,000 products
Company Limited FE- AR LEED AR
ERIBERANEHRERERR A A 201447 A30H AR#60,000,0007T
Shanghai Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products
Company Limited 26 February 2013 HK$60,000,000 and provision of services
EERAREHREEHARAR FE" FHMER to franchisees
201342 A 26 H 60,000,000 7T HKEEMHER
FRALARTS T AN B2R
Shanghai Fulong Chow Tai Fook PRC* Registered capital 60% 60% Sales of jewellery products
Jewellery Company Limited 5 January 2000 RMB 10,000,000 KEEMHE
FEEERABREERAA R HMEAR
200041 A5H AK#10,000,0007T
Shenzhen Qianhai Chow Tai Fook PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products
Jewellery Company Limited 31 October 2016 US$10,000,000 GEERHE
R ARBHRERTERAR B HfER
20164 10A31H 10,000,000 7T
Shenzhen Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC~ Registered capital 100% 100% Manufacturing of jewellery
Manufacturing Company Limited 5 March 2012 RMB50,000,000 products
AT R ERELEER AR - AER KEEMEE
201243 A5H AR#50,000,0007T
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40. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company 40. AT EEMBAT @

(Continued)

Place and date of

Issued and fully paid

Proportion of

incorporation/ share capital/registered ownership interest held
Name of subsidiaries establishment capital/quota capital by the Company Principal activities
HMRY R CRTRARERES EARFHEEEE
ol PGk kB EMER BREER LA TEEH
2019 2018
Shenzhen Chow Tai Fook Online PRC- Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products
Media Company Limited 5 January 2017 RMBS5,000,000 KREEMEE
RYNBRBEREEFR AR - EMER
201741 A5H AR#5,000,0007T
Shenzhen CTF Watch PRC" Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of watches
Company Limited 27 June 2011 HK$300,000,000 BRIHE
RYBRBEEERA A FEn HMER
201146 A27H 300,000,000 7T
Shenzhen Shenfu Jewellery PRC* Registered capital 50%* 50%* Sales of jewellery products
Company Limited 19 April 2007 RMBS,000,000 KEEMHEE
AYTARBHRERITERAA HE AR
200744 A 198 AR 8,000,0007T
Wuhan Hanfu Jewellery PRC* Registered capital 70% 70% Sales of jewellery products
Company Limited 26 November 2003  RMB90,000,000 KREERHEE
REERKELTERAA e HMER
2003411 A26H AR 90,000,000
Zhangjiagang Baoshui Dade Xinfu PRC* Registered capital 50%* 50%* Sales of jewellery products
Jewellery Company Limited 3 December 2010 RMB3,000,000 HBEERHE
REBRERAEFBARE LT FE HMER
BRAR] 2010612 A38 AR 3,000,000 7T
Zhangjiagang Baoshui Dehui PRC~ Registered capital 100% 100% Sales of jewellery products
Jewellery Company Limited 24 September 2012 RMB94,567,500 KEEMEE
RXBERUNEEERESTARRE  FE- HMER
201249 R24 8 AR 94,567,500
Zhangjiagang Baoshui Zhaofu PRC* Registered capital 51% 51% Sales of jewellery products
Jewellery Company Limited 17 November 2011 RMB70,000,000 HEERHE
RRERGEERKBESTERAR  RE: HMER
2011 %11 A17H AR#70,000,0007T

* Directly held by the Company.

G Pursuant to the relevant agreements entered into among shareholders of these entities,
the Group has power to direct the relevant activities of these entities since their
respective date of establishment/acquisition, and hence these entities are classified as

subsidiaries of the Company.

* ADFEESEA -

f RBRFERARRZ BT AN
BRI B EA SR R R
EEFEALRANMERF -

Bk AREALSREE
EENEREE  RAtts

RPBRINEEAIELE -

Being a co-operative joint venture establishment in the PRC. +

b ORINEBARK -

Being a wholly foreign owned enterprise.

Being a wholly owned enterprise in the PRC. - RPBERINBERHE -

Note: P 5 :
ERIHEERREZHEAEENEELEENARAINE DA -
I HMEEE L ESIRBRELRBROMBRA 25 EFAIR
RESBHBBNITR

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affect the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries which
are mainly inactive or engaged in investment holding would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEABHRELEB AR AT
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SREBBRKRMEE
Statement of Financial Position and 41. KATIMBIRRA TR EREH
Reserve Movement of the Company
2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT AEERT
Non-current assets EMENE E
Investment in a subsidiary R—RERBARZIRE 15,387.3 15,387.3
Amount due from a subsidiary FEU — R B A BIRIE 2,596.7 2,100.0
17,984.0 17,487.3
Current assets BN E
Amount due from a subsidiary P — M A R 5IE 13,132.0 7,662.4
Taxation recoverable A] 45 [l Fi 18 1.1 -
Cash and cash equivalents B NESEEY 1.5 2.2
13,134.6 7,664.6
Current liabilities RENEE
Other liabilities HibaE 14.4 4.3
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary B —RR KM B R E5RIE 2,410.5 -
Bank borrowings SRITER 7,460.0 5,823.0
Gold loans "eEE 3,081.4 1,688.8
12,966.3 7,516.1
Net current assets MENVE BT 168.3 148.5
Total assets less current liabilities REERTBEE 18,152.3 17,635.8
Non-current liability ERBBE
Bank borrowings RITER 2,596.7 2,100.0
15,555.6 15,535.8
Capital and reserves BAR KRG
Share capital &N 10,000.0 10,000.0
Reserves i 5,5655.6 5,5635.8
15,555.6 15,535.8
Reserves
*iE
Share Share Retained
capital premium profits total
&N BRE REEF Fob
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEAT BEART HEET BEET
At 1 April 2017 MR2017F4A1H 10,000.0 5,498.7 40.9 15,539.6
Profit and total comprehensive 4 A FIl & 2 E U A 4258
income for the year - - 4,196.2 4,196.2
Dividends % 2 = = (4,200.0) (4,200.0)
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3 A31H 10,000.0 5,498.7 371 15,535.8
Profit and total comprehensive 4% F & 2 B A £ 58
income for the year - - 6,019.8 6,019.8
Dividends &8 - - (6,000.0) (6,000.0)
At 31 March 2019 M®2019F3 A31H 10,000.0 5,498.7 56.9 15,555.6
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274 ‘ Financial Summary
WS E

Financial Summary
oS HE

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and NTAREEBEARABMBFEE EXEUAREE
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years. The financial HEERE - BBERESE FROGEMERE -
information are extracted from the consolidated financial

statements in the annual reports.

For the year ended 31 March
BE3ANALEE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

EX-Y-m BEAT BEAT BEET BEET

Revenue HERE 64,277.0 56,591.5 51,2455 59,156.4 66,660.9
Gross profit EF 19,072.4 15,641.4 14,962.7 16,213.4 18,601.8
Profit for the year FEE A 5,535.8 2,978.9 3,151.1 4,203.3 4,684.0

As at 31 March

R3A31H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEET ABET BEBT BEAT
Total assets BERTE 61,121.0 55,675.4 49,401.9 57,569.9 62,237.1
Total liabilities AfEaE 20,580.2 19,925.5 16,900.4 23,472.3 30,834.1
Net assets BETE 40,540.8 35,749.9 32,501.5 34,097.6 31,403.0

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEABHRELEB AR AT



Glossary

A%

THFY
MBFEE LFF

2HFY
MBEETHF

Articles
#n Al

ASP
FHERE

Board
EEY

CIS
JE N HAE

Company/Chow Tai Fook

EN/NCIVESP N

Directors

BE=x

FY
MBEFE

Gem-set jewellery

INE R A

Group
£/ AEE

Hearts On Fire

High-end luxury jewellery

HEURE

Karat gold
K&

Listing Rules
AR A

Mainland China
AR At

Mass luxury jewellery

TRHE

Glossary
e
AR

the first half of the financial year, six months ending 30 September

MREE L¥F - BEIA30HIEREAR

the second half of the financial year, six months ending 31 March

MRFERETH5  BEIA31 B LANEA

the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to time)
KRR BEBERAR (ETRHEET)

average selling price

FHHEER

the board of directors of the Company
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Counter-in-shop in POS
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Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (stock code: 1929)
ARBHREEBER AR (RO - 1929)

directors of the Company
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financial year, 1 April of a year to 31 March of the following year
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jewellery products made with diamonds and gemstones
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the Company and its subsidiaries
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Hearts On Fire Company, LLC.

jewellery products with a retail price of above HK$100,000 per piece
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jewellery products made from gold alloy
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Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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the mainland of the People’s Republic of China
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jewellery products with a retail price ranging from HK$2,000 to HK$100,000 per piece
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Retail Sales Value/RSV
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Same Store
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Same Store Sales/SSS
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Same Store Sales Growth/SSSG
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Stock Exchange
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Tier I, 11, Ill and other cities
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online-to-offline

LR

points of sale
EmZTEH

the sales at the ending price (VAT inclusive, if any), in respective functional currencies, of
products sold to customers in the POS network and other channels
REERBENEMRBRAEPHEERABRNI R ENKETEB(RIEEEN
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self-operated POS existing as at the end of the relevant financial period and which have
been operating since the beginning of the prior financial year
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for FY2019, the revenue from self-operated POS existing as at 31 March 2019 and which
have been opened prior to 1 April 2017, measured at constant exchange rates. Revenue
from wholesale and other channels are excluded
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a comparison between Same Store Sales of a particular period and sales from comparable
POS in the previous period, measured at constant exchange rates
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the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BERENE ST EFHFRPEHHI

Shop-in-shop in POS
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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for the list of cities, please refer to the glossary of our FY2017/18 interim report
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Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABKEEEBR A A
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